
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

August 7, 2007 
 
6:15 PM     Council Chambers 

Presentation on Pictometry GIS:  Kelly Lockhart, GIS Manager – Coles County Regional Planning & 
Development Commission   
 
6:30 PM    Work Study Caucus Session Discussion 
 

• Pending agenda items 
 
7:00 PM    Business Meeting 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  Vacation of an alley in Urban Heights Subdivision, specifically Lots One (1), Two (2), 
Three (3), Four (4), Seven (7), Eight (8), and Nine (9) of Block Three (3). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by one motion. 

Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will ask if anyone desires to remove an 

item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a 

Council Member requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item is removed from the 

Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.   

 
Minutes of the regular meeting July 17, 2007 
 
Fire Department Report for the month of July, 2007 and Police Department Report for the month of June, 
2007 
 
Payroll and Bills for the last half of July, 2007  
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the Council. The Illinois 

Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action on comments received on matters that 

have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter 

for action on the agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their 

presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious comments. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 



Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1236: Approving the variance for zero-lot lines and setbacks for The 
Meadows Subdivision Phase IV.  Reggie Phillips – Petitioner (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1237: Approving the final plat of The Meadows Subdivision, Phase 

III, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. Reggie Phillips – Petitioner (White) 
 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1238: Approving the final plat of The Meadows Subdivision, Phase 

IV, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. Reggie Phillips – Petitioner (White) 
 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1239: Vacating an alley located in Block 3 of the Urban Heights 

Subdivision from Lots One (1), Two (2), Three (3), Four (4), Seven (7), Eight (8), and Nine (9); 
Applicants – David and Dawn Paulson dba Wave Graphics. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2007-5236: Approving a Redevelopment Agreement by and between the City of 

Mattoon and Sontejroh Corporation in connection with the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project 
Area, and authorizing the Mayor to sign the document. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2705: Authorizing the Mayor to file an application on behalf of the City of 

Mattoon, Illinois, with the Cy Pres Committee for a grant for Equipment for Mattoon Police 
Department’s Dispatch/Telecommunications Division, and to sign all documents. (White)  

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-776: Approving the contract with Howell Asphalt for 

paving bituminous material in alleys in the amount of $21,900, and authorizing the Mayor to sign all 
documents. (McKenzie) (07-00155-00-AS) 

 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-777: Approving specifications for a three cubic yard front-

end wheel loader, and authorizing solicitation of bids. (McKenzie) 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-778: Approving specifications for a sewer camera truck, 

and authorizing solicitation of bids. (McKenzie) 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-779: Approving specifications for a Fire Department 

ambulance, and authorizing solicitation of bids. (Ervin) 
 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2706: Approving the mutual aid agreement [Automatic Aid Agreement] 

between the Fire Departments of the City of Mattoon and City of Charleston, and authorizing the 
Mayor and Fire Chief to sign the document. (Ervin) 

 
Motion – Adopt Resolution 2007-2707: Accepting the retirement of Police Chief Larry Metzelaars. (White) 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-780: Approving the request of $1,500 to Lincoln Heritage 

Resource Conservation District for the purpose of purchasing a forklift ramp to load 
decommissioned computer hardware for recycling within a six-district county service area 
contingent upon the District receiving adequate funding to complete the purchase. (White) 

 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1240: Authorizing the Mayor to sign an outright grant agreement by 

and between the City of Mattoon and Nathan Burton dba EZ Parcel reimbursing up to $2,500 
annually from TIF Revenues over a three-year period for the purpose of achieving compliance with 
the City’s storm water detention regulations located at 1312 Broadway Avenue. (White) 



 
 
Motion – Adopt Special Ordinance 2007-1241: Authorizing the Mayor to sign an outright grant agreement by 

and between the City of Mattoon and Cory Sanders dba Cory Sanders & Company Real Estate 
reimbursing up to $2,945.50 annually from TIF Revenues over a ten-year period for the purchase 
and installation of 22 windows, electrical wiring upgrades and the relocation of 3 Ameren/CIPS 
natural gas meters located at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway Avenue. (White) 

 
 
Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2007-781: Authorizing an emergency contract with Howell 

Asphalt to overlay streets in Mid-town Mattoon with asphalt. (McKenzie) 
 
Recess to closed session pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of considering the 
employment, performance or dismissal of employees of the municipality (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(1)). (White) 
 
Reconvene  
 
Adjourn  





Alarm Date Between {07/01/2007} And 
{07/31/2007} 

Mattoon Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
100 Fire, Other 3 1.60% $200   0.02%
111 Building fire 2 1.06% $175,000  25.68%
1110 Fire in structure, structure not involved 2 1.06% $501,050  73.54%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
150 Outside rubbish fire, Other 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
154 Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

14 7.45% $676,250 99.26%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 17 9.04% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 77 40.96% $0   0.00%
3110 Assist EMS crew, other 10 5.32% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury17 9.04% $0   0.00%
3210 Lifeline call, waver of service signed 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 6 3.19% $5,000   0.73%
3220 Vehicle accident, waivers signed 5 2.66% $0   0.00%
3221 Vehicle accident, no occupants found 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
3230 Motor vehicle/bicycle accident (MV Bcy) 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
3231 Bicycle accident 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
352 Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
381 Rescue or EMS standby 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

143 76.06% $5,000 0.73%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
400 Hazardous condition, Other 4 2.13% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

6 3.19% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
500 Service Call, other 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
5310 Smoke or odor investigation, no problem found 3 1.60% $0   0.00%
5311 Smoke or odor investigation 3 1.60% $0   0.00%
551 Assist police or other governmental agency 2 1.06% $0   0.00%

10 5.32% $0 0.00%

08/01/2007 07:44 1Page



Alarm Date Between {07/01/2007} And 
{07/31/2007} 

Mattoon Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

4 2.13% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
7000 False alarm due to severe weather 2 1.06% $0   0.00%
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 1 0.53% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 3 1.60% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

10 5.32% $0 0.00%

9 Special Incident Type
900 Special type of incident, Other 1 0.53% $0   0.00%

1 0.53% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 188 Total Est Loss: $681,250

08/01/2007 07:44 2Page





UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the Council Chambers 
at City Hall on July 17, 2007 after a 6:30 p.m. caucus session. 
 
 Mayor White presiding. 
 
 Mayor White led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call in person:  Absent 
Commissioner David Cline, YEA Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Joseph 
McKenzie, YEA Commissioner David Schilling, YEA Mayor Charles E. White.   
 
 Also in attendance in person were City personnel:  City Administrator Alan Gilmore, 
Acting City Attorney Janett Winter-Black, Public Works Director David Wortman, Fire Chief 
Mike Chism, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, Police Chief Larry Metzelaars, 
and City Clerk Susan J. O’Brien. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   
 Mayor Charles E. White opened the public hearing at 7:03 p.m. in the City of Mattoon 
Council Chambers in order to receive public comments on the proposed $375,000 CDAP grant 
application to assist with the cost of water and sewer infrastructure extensions necessary to serve 
the proposed Family Farmers Meats, L.L.C. facility located at County Road 1000N and North 
33rd Street.   Mr. Doug McDermand stated the City was seeking a $375,000 CDAP block grant to 
assist with the cost of water and sewer infrastructure extensions for the 10-acre site.  Mr. 
McDermand reviewed the application process, time component, sources of financing, Family 
Farmers Meats, L.L.C.’s contributory and investments, 50 full-time created jobs with 51 percent 
in the low to moderate income level, not displacing households, and opened the floor for public 
questions or comments.  Commissioner Ervin expressed his enthusiasm about the project and 
commended the Welchs for their public and private partnership venture.  Ms. Fran Weber, 
residence of North 19th Street, inquired as to the possibility of the infrastructure extensions 
further north.  Mr. McDermand responded with this project does not extend the lines further 
north. 
 
 Mr. Tom Donnell of the Local Affairs Committee inquired as to the number of secondary 
jobs with this project and believed this was a good project.  Mr. McDermand responded with 
possibly 30-40 jobs.  There were no other comments from the floor.  Mr. McDermand announced 
a completed grant application within two weeks, and would submit one to the City and retain one 
at the CCRP-DC office.   Mayor White closed the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
 
               Mr. McDermand continued with the second portion of the public hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
by announcing the State’s requirement of a Housing and Community Development Needs listing, 
which consisted of seven items:  1.  Rehabilitate Streets, Water and Sewer lines; 2.  Continue to 
seek single family owner occupied home rehabilitation grants; 3.  Provide road, water and sewer 
infrastructure for the Mattoon Enterprise Park; 4.  Implement TIF Districts; 5.  Implement plans 
of the Illinois Department of National Resources regarding flood control project; 6  Reorganized 
the east side TIF District; 7.  Complete the City Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. McDermand 
requested additional needs from the public. City Administrator Alan Gilmore added the OSLAD 
grant for improvements to City parks with Public Works Director David Wortman further 
elaborating on the improvements.  Administrator Gilmore further added exploring the possibility 



for a Broadway Avenue East TIF district.  There were no other comments.  Mayor White closed 
the public hearing at 7:17 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by 

one motion.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor will ask if 

anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public discussion.  No separate 

discussion of these items will occur unless a Council Member requests the item to be removed 

from the Consent Agenda.  If an item is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be considered 

elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve the consent agenda 
consisting of:  minutes of the regular meeting July 3, 2007; Fire department report for the month 
of June, 2007; and payroll and bills for the first half of July, 2007.  
 

  Bills and Payroll for the first half of July, 2007  

        
  General Fund      
Payroll         $      268,423.93  

Bills         $        78,607.03  

      Total   $      347,030.96  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         2,938.95  

Bills         $            998.77  
      Total   $         3,937.72  
  Festival Management     

Bills        $        56,728.47  
      Total  $         2,707.33  

  
Insurance & Tort 
Judgment    

Bills         $         4,544.78  
      Total   $         4,544.78  
  Capital Project Fund     

Bills         $         3,907.96  
      Total   $         3,907.96  
  Water Fund     
Payroll         $        30,760.82  

Bills         $      130,880.76  
      Total   $      161,641.58  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        24,824.94  

Bills         $      346,035.80  

      Total   $      370,860.74  
  Cemetery Fund      
Payroll         $         5,097.32  

Bills         $         1,048.94  
      Total   $         6,146.26  



  Health Insurance      

Bills         $        57,696.02  
      Total   $        57,696.02  
        

  Motor Fuel Tax Fund    

Bills         $         9,346.60  
      Total   $         9,346.60  

 
 Mayor White declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the following 
vote:  Absent Commissioner Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commission McKenzie, 
YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White. 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address the 

Council. The Illinois Open Meeting Act mandates that the City Council may NOT take action on 

comments received on matters that have not been identified on this agenda, but the Council may 

direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for action on the agenda for another meeting. 

Persons addressing the Council are requested to limit their presentations to three minutes and to 

avoid repetitious comments. 

 

 No one addressed the Council.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Special Ordinance 2007-
1234, approving the variance to a side yard setback located at 1109 Marshall Avenue.  Eric 
Eveland – Petitioner. 
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1234 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM BUILDING SET BACK 

REQUIREMENTS TO ENABLE CONSTRUCTION OF A SECOND STORY ADDITION 
TO THE HOUSE AT 1109 MARSHALL AVENUE 

 
WHEREAS there has been filed a written Petition by Eric Eveland for a variance to the side-
yard setback, respecting the property legally described as: 
 
 The North 190 Feet of even width of a tract described as: Beginning at a point  in the 
South line of Marshall Avenue 338.27 Feet East of its intersection with the West line of the 
Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of Section Thirteen (13), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Seven 
(7) East of the Third Principal Meridian, thence South parallel with said West line 452.70 Feet to 
the South line of said Section Thirteen (13), thence East 48.1 Feet to the Place of Beginning, in 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
 
 Also known as: 1109 Marshall Avenue, Mattoon, Illinois 



 
WHEREAS, said petition requests that a variance be granted pursuant to applicable ordinances 
of the municipality to allow construction of a second story addition to the house, which currently 
has a setback of 4 feet from the side property line on the East side of the property; and  
 
WHEREAS the City of Mattoon Zoning Ordinance requires a 5-foot side yard setback, of the 
primary structure; and 
 
WHEREAS the Zoning Board of Appeals held a properly noticed public hearing on July 3, 2007 
regarding petitioner’s request for said variance; and 
 
WHEREAS both the Planning Commission for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, and 
the Zoning Board of Appeals for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, have recommended 
that the requested variance be granted; and  
  
WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, deems that the 
recommended variance is in the public interest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the property legally described as aforesaid, be and the same is granted a variance of 
the side-yard setback requirement on the East side of the property as requested to enable 
construction of a second story addition to the house located at 1109 Marshall Avenue. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by Mayor White, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 17th day of July, 
2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
NAYS (Names):  None  
ABSENT (Names):   Commissioner Cline 
 
Approved this 17th day of July, 2007.  
 

/s/ Charles E. White 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ Janett Winter-Black 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               Janett Winter-Black, Acting City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on July 18, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt Special Ordinance 
2007-1235, approving the variance to increase the intensity of use for construction purposes 
located at 3332 Richmond Avenue.  Troy Howell – Petitioner. 
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1235 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM THE THIRTY (30) PERCENT 
INTENSITY OF USE TO ENABLE CONSTRUCTION OF AN ADDITION TO THE 

HOUSE AT 3332 RICHMOND AVENUE 
 
WHEREAS there has been filed a written Petition by Troy Howell for a variance, respecting the 
property legally described as: 
 

Lot Fifty-Five (55) in Maplewood Addition to the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, 
commonly known as 3332 Richmond Avenue, Mattoon, Illinois. 

 
WHEREAS, said petition requests that a variance be granted pursuant to applicable ordinances 
of the municipality to allow an increase of lot intensity not to exceed thirty-three (33) percent for 
construction of an addition to the rear of house; and  
 
WHEREAS the zoning code allows thirty (30) percent lot intensity on an interior lot in R1 
Single Family Residence Zoning District; and 
 
WHEREAS the Zoning Board of Appeals held a properly noticed public hearing on July 3, 2007 
regarding petitioners’ request for said variance; and 
 
WHEREAS both the Planning Commission for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, and 
the Zoning Board of Appeals for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, have recommended 
that the requested variance be granted; and  
  
WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, deems that the 
recommended variance is in the public interest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 



Section 1.  Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the property legally described as aforesaid, be and the same is granted a variance 
from the thirty (30) percent intensity of use, but not to exceed thirty-three (33) percent, to 
enableconstruction of an addition, to the rear of the house, located at 3332 Richmond Avenue. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by Mayor White, seconded by Commissioner Schilling, adopted this 17th day of 
July, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): Commissioner Cline 
 
Approved this 17th day of July, 2007.  

/s/ Charles E. White 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ Janett Winter-Black 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               Janett Winter-Black, Acting City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on July 18th, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
  
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adopt Resolution 2007-
2702, authorizing the Mayor to sign the joint agreement between City of Mattoon, City of 
Charleston, and Futuregen Alliance for the sale of recycled water.  
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to amend Resolution 
2007-2702 to add the language of “reduced by any grant funds obtained” to Section 3.1 Capital 
Recapture.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion to amend Resolution 2007-2702 carried by the 
following vote:  Absent Commissioner Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner 
McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 

 



CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2702 
 
A RESOLUTION STATING THE TERMS THE CITY OF MATTOON WILL OFFER 
TO THE FUTUREGEN ALLIANCE FOR A CONTRACT TO BUY EFFLUENT WATER 
FROM THE MATTOON WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, believes it would 
be a benefit to the citizens of Mattoon to have the FutureGen Alliance place the proposed 
FutureGen electricity generation facility at the Mattoon/Dole site; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FutureGen facility will require an average of up to 4.3 million gallons of water 
each day; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Mattoon and the city of Charleston combined have a sufficient quantity 
of effluent water from their wastewater treatment plants to provide 4.3 million gallons of water a 
day; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Mattoon and the city of Charleston have agreed in the past to make the 
water available to the FutureGen Alliance for the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems that it would be in the public interest of the citizens of the 
city of Mattoon to enter into a contract with the FutureGen Alliance for the supply of effluent 
water from the city’s wastewater treatment plant. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. In the case the FutureGen Alliance decides to place the FutureGen electricity 
generation facility in Mattoon, the city of Mattoon will make the effluent water from the Mattoon 
wastewater plant available to the FutureGen Alliance for the FutureGen facility. 
 
Section 2. In the case the FutureGen Alliance decides to place the FutureGen electricity 
generation facility in Mattoon, the city of Mattoon will enter into an intergovernmental 
agreement with the city of Charleston to obtain the effluent water from the Charleston 
wastewater treatment plant for the FutureGen facility. 
 
Section 3. In the case the FutureGen Alliance decides to place the FutureGen electricity 
generation facility in Mattoon, the City of Mattoon will offer a contract for the supply water to 
the FutureGen Alliance for the facility under the following terms: 
 

1) Capital Recapture: The City of Mattoon will issue debt service to cover the entire cost to 
build the city’s portion of the cooling water system. (The current cost estimate is 
$7,500,000 for pump stations at the Mattoon and Charleston wastewater treatment plants 
and the waterline.) The FutureGen Alliance will be charged a Capital Recapture monthly 
payment for twenty years equal to the city’s debt payment for the bond issue. The amount 
of the Capital Recapture payment reduced by any grant funds obtained will not be related 
to the quantity of water supplied. 



 
2) Repayment Bond: The city will require the FutureGen Alliance to obtain a bond in the 

city’s name which assures the repayment of the city’s water system infrastructure debt 
issuance. The repayment bond will be equal both in amount and in term to the city’s debt 
issuance. 

 
3) Water Sales: The Water Sales monthly payment rate will be equal to $0.80 (eighty cents) 

per 1,000 gallons based on the May 2007 the Chicago-Gary-Kenosha Consumer Price 
Index - All Urban Consumers (Series ID CUURA207SA0) (Chicago CPI). The rate will 
be increased each July 1 based on the May value of the Chicago CPI for that year. All 
usage values will be based on a meter that will be placed on the FutureGen property. 

 
4) Readiness-to-Serve: There will be a minimum monthly charge for readiness-to-serve. 

The minimum charge will be for a daily usage of 1,000,000 gallons. The minimum 
charge will be assessed regardless of usage. 

 
5) Maximum Water Sales: The maximum amount of water assured in the contract will be 

4.3 million gallons per day calculated on an annual basis from July 1 to June 30. 
Additional water may be available for purchase but is not guaranteed. 

 
 
Upon motion by Mayor White, seconded by Commissioner Schilling, adopted this 17th day of 
July, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White  
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): Commissioner Cline 
      
Approved this 17th day of July, 2007 
       /s/ Charles E. White 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ Janett Winter-Black 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     Janett Winter-Black, Acting City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on July 18th, 2007. 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion to approve Resolution 2007-2702 as amended carried 
by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA 
Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner McKenzie moved to adopt Resolution 2007-
2703, supporting a proposed $375,000 CDAP Grant application to assist with the cost of water 
and sanitary sewer infrastructure extensions necessary to serve a new organic/natural meat 
processing facility, committing $50,000 of City funds to said extensions, and authorizing the 



Mayor to execute documents agreeing to terms, conditions, understandings and assurances 
contained in the grant application. [Family Farmers Meats, LLC] 
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2703 

 
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A PROPOSED $375,000 CDAP GRANT 

APPLICATION TO ASSIST WITH THE COST OF WATER & SANITARY SEWER 
INFRASTRUCTURE EXTENSIONS NECESSARY TO SERVE A NEW 

ORGANIC/NATURAL MEAT PROCESSING FACILITY, COMMITTING $50,000 OF 
CITY FUNDS TO SAID EXTENSIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE DOCUMENTS AGREEING TO TERMS, CONDITIONS, 
UNDERSTANDINGS AND ASSURANCES CONTAINED IN THE GRANT 

APPLICATION 
 

WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats, LLC is considering constructing a new 11,400 square foot 
organic and natural meats processing facility on a 10 acre parcel located on the northwest corner 
of the 1000N and 33rd Street intersection, northwest of the City of Mattoon, that would create 50 
new jobs for the local economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, $1,553,870 is the cost estimate for the new facility and related private property 
improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, water and sanitary sewer infrastructure extensions to said facility are needed; and  
 
WHEREAS, said water and sanitary sewer infrastructure extensions are estimated to cost 
$586,500; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is applying to the State of Illinois for a $375,000 Community 
Development Assistance Program (CDAP) grant to assist with the cost of said water and sanitary 
sewer infrastructure extensions necessary to serve the proposed facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon hereby commits $50,000 for the cost of the aforesaid water 
and sanitary sewer infrastructure extensions contingent upon receipt of $375,000 CDAP Grant 
from the Illinois Department of Economic Opportunity (IL DCEO); and, 
 
WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats, LLC is willing to contribute $1,690,370 of funds necessary 
for this economic development project; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary that the application be made and agreements be entered into with the 
Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Development incidental to this CDAP grant.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is authorized to apply for a $375,000 CDAP Grant from the Illinois 
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity to assist with the cost of said water and 



sanitary sewer infrastructure extensions necessary to serve a new meat processing facility. The 
Mayor may enter into and agree to the understandings and assurances contained in said 
application on behalf of the City.   
 
Section 2. The City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to certify sources of financing and 
corresponding specific uses of funds for the Project as presented on “Exhibit A” to this 
resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to provide such additional information as may be required to 
accomplish the obtaining of the CDAP Grant. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor White, seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, adopted this 17th day of 
July, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): Commissioner Cline 
      
Approved this 17th day of July, 2007. 
 
             
       /s/ Charles E. White 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ Janett Winter-Black 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     Janett Winter-Black Acting City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on July 18, 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to approve Council Decision 
Request 2007-775, approving the appointment of Robert Becker to the Planning Commission 
with a term ending 4/30/2011.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Council did not consider Special Ordinance 2007-1236, approving the variance for zero-
lot lines and setbacks for The Meadows Subdivision Phase IV. 
 



 Council did not consider Special Ordinance 2007-1237, approving the final plat of The 
Meadows Subdivision, Phase II, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois.  
 
 Council did not consider Special Ordinance 2007-1238, approving the final plat of The 
Meadows Subdivision, Phase IV, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois.  
 
 Commissioner McKenzie seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Resolution 
2007-2704, approving a design and construction phase engineering contract between Upchurch 
& Associates and City of Mattoon in the total amount of $27,800 for the Family Farmers Meats 
project, pending approval of a CDAP Grant, and authorizing the Mayor to sign the documents.  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2704 

   
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ENGINEERING 

AGREEMENT WITH THE UPCHURCH GROUP, INC. FOR 
THE FINAL DESIGN OF SANITARY SEWER AND POTABLE 

WATER UTILITY EXTENSIONS TO SERVE THE FAMILY FARMERS 
MEATS L.L.C. CERTIFIED ORGANIC MEAT PROCESSING PLANT 

             
WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats L.L.C. has proposed to build a Certified Organic Meat 
Processing Plant to be located at the intersection of County Roads 400 East and 1000 North 
contingent upon an award of Community Development Assistance Program Grant of $375,000 
from the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity to provide sanitary sewer 
and potable water extensions, and 
 
WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats L.L.C. has verified the necessary design parameters and 
usage criteria to the Upchurch Group, Inc. for the development of preliminary design and 
construction cost estimates of these systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats L.L.C. has received a $375,000 CDAP grant commitment 
from the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for the extension of 
sanitary sewer and potable water extensions to the site of the proposed certified organic meat 
processing plant, and 
 
WHEREAS, Family Farmers Meats L.L.C. has accepted the CDAP grant commitment from the 
Illinois Department of Economic Opportunity and is ready to proceed with the final design of the 
sanitary sewer and potable water utility extension to this project as shown in Exhibit A, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mattoon City Council that the Mayor is 
authorized to execute an Engineering Agreement in the amount of $27,800 with the Upchurch 
Group, Inc. for the final design of the sanitary sewer and potable water utility extension to the 
Family Farmers Meats Certified Organic Meat Processing Plant site. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner McKenzie seconded by Commissioner Ervin adopted this 17th 
day of July 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 



AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner McKenzie,  
   Commissioner Schilling, Mayor White 
NAY  (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): Commissioner Cline 
   
Approved this 17th day of July, 2007.  
 
      /s/ Charles E. White  
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ Janett Winter-Black 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    Janett Winter-Black, Acting City Attorney   
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on July 18 , 2007.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to recess to closed session at 7:23 
p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of considering the employment, 
performance or dismissal of employees of the municipality (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(1)). 
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
 Council reconvened at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 Mayor White seconded by Commissioner Schilling moved to adjourn at 7:35 p.m.  
 
 Mayor White declared the motion carried by the following vote:  Absent Commissioner 
Cline, YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner McKenzie, YEA Commissioner 
Schilling, YEA Mayor White.  
 
        /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
        City Clerk  
  



BILLS & PAYROLL: 

 



CITY OF MATTOON

7-27-07 PAYROLL

7-7-07/7-20-07

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91$      

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,671.93$      

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 119.04$         

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,010.77$      

110 5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 158.46$         

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,000.09$      

110 5150-113 OVERTIME 2.40$             

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 139.65$         

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,116.03$      

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 235.11$         

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,636.88$      

110 5170-114 COMPENSATED ABSCENSES 1,062.22$      

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,544.54$      

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 93.10$           

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 9,557.79$      

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,489.38$      

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 1,205.17$      

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 66,371.46$    

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 2,971.80$      

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,040.43$      

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,966.62$      

COMMUNICATION SERVICES 110 5222-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,747.14$      

110 5222-113 OVERTIME 107.58$         

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,060.05$      

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 65,009.65$    

110 5241-113 OVERTIME 226.89$         

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 12,993.63$    

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,258.37$      

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 111.30$         

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,357.57$      

110 5310-113 OVERTIME 136.45$         

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 227.79$         

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 21,950.03$    

110 5320-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,280.00$      

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 318.50$         

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 8,290.21$      

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 982.56$         

110 5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,063.00$      

110 5335-113 OVERTIME 113.76$         

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,127.89$      

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 840.00$         

110 5370-113 OVERTIME 58.07$           

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,151.97$      

110 5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 200.47$         

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,657.82$      

110 5390-113 OVERTIME 198.06$         

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,894.19$      

110 5511-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 3,240.00$      

110 5511-113 OVERTIME 2,071.08$      



CITY OF MATTOON

7-27-07 PAYROLL

7-7-07/7-20-07

LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,886.26$      

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,930.50$      

110 5512-113 OVERTIME 184.67$         

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 266,545.24$  

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,954.95$      

122 5653-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 1,280.00$      

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 3,234.95$      

RESERVOIRS & WATER SOURCES 211 5351-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 402.74$         

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 10,350.94$    

211 5353-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 945.00$         

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 1,029.46$      

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,205.26$      

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,525.25$      

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 123.84$         

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,598.03$      

211 5355-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 340.00$         

211 5355-113 OVERTIME 19.17$           

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 470.93$         

211 5355-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDG 320.00$         

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,933.28$      

211 5356-113 OVERTIME 132.43$         

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 60.73$           

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 28,457.06$    

SANITARY SEWER MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 5,249.80$      

212 5342-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 340.00$         

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 27.57$           

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,226.80$    

212 5344-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 556.00$         

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 98.80$           

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,190.25$      

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,598.03$      

212 5345-113 OVERTIME 19.19$           

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 470.93$         

212 5345-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS 320.00$         

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,933.27$      

212 5346-113 OVERTIME 132.43$         

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 60.73$           

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 27,223.80$    

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,433.50$      

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 2,784.00$      

213 5361-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 51.82$           

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 5,269.32$      



CITY OF MATTOON

7-27-07 PAYROLL

7-7-07/7-20-07

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

PAY CODE # OF TIMES HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 40 3,667.00 53,427.14$    

VACATION PAY 21 504 11,619.41$    

SALARY PAY 54 11,653.47 240,381.46$  

VACATION PAY 7 472 9,886.92$      

HOLIDAY PAY-REGULAR 21 107.72 2,093.87$      

SHIFT PAY 4 268 187.60$         

SICK PAY-AFSCME 9 86 1,791.35$      

STRAIGHT OT POLICE 0 15 399.68$         

OVERTIME PAY 38 280.25 8,777.64$      

SHIFT PAY 1 409 245.40$         

SICK-FD UNION 4 64.5 1,242.98$      

SICK-NON UNION 3 25.75 562.20$         

BACK PAY 0 2 114.72$         

COMP EARNED 0 6 -$              



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 110  CITY COUNCIL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201440       110 5110-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-4633             089761          43.38

 

01-024800 IL MUNICIPAL LEAGUE    I-200707201441       110 5110-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: IML CONFERENCE       089765       1,155.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:       1,198.38

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011590       110 5120-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089960           0.17

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011591       110 5120-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089960           0.39

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251447       110 5120-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             089799         223.33

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200707271522       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 7/10-16    000000          28.00

 

01-024075 IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEAL I-200707311533       110 5120-801        VITAL RECORDS: JULY 07 VR FEES      089925         560.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5120-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851         318.85

 

01-033200 MATTOON PRINTING CENTE I-200707271513       110 5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: ENVELOPES            089944         178.28

 

01-041001 SEC OF STATE           I-200708011593       110 5120-522        NOTARY FEES  : NOTARY BOND-KAUFMAN  089971          10.00

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616645          110 5120-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER U44-895482    090001         304.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:       1,623.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-3164               110 5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEETING 7/10         089839          39.45

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-4300               110 5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEETING 7/12         089840          28.69

 

01-024800 IL MUNICIPAL LEAGUE    I-200707201441       110 5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: IML CONFERENCE       089765         105.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 130   CITY ADMINISTRATOR       TOTAL:         173.14

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011588       110 5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SUPPLIES             089960          23.21

 

01-009077 INTERACTIVE COMPUTER   I-56,055             110 5150-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: ANNUAL SOFTWARE MNTC 089931         607.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251447       110 5150-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5654             089799          97.57

 

01-024800 IL MUNICIPAL LEAGUE    I-200707201441       110 5150-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: IML CONFERENCE       089765          82.50

 

01-046900 WEST & COMPANY LLC     I-135429             110 5150-513        AUDITING & AC: AUDITING Y/E 4-30    089997      11,725.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:      12,535.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 160  LEGAL SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000513 WECKS LAWN CARE        I-1096127            110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: MOW 916 MOULTRIE     089994          25.00

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6619               110 5160-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MEETING 7/10         089840          29.00

 

01-022300 HOWARD'S TRASH         I-279614             110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: CLEAN UP 2805 DEWITT 089923          25.00

 

01-024800 IL MUNICIPAL LEAGUE    I-200707201441       110 5160-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: IML CONFERENCE       089765         132.50

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5160-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851         233.23

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200708011596       110 5160-519        OTHER PROFESS: DRUG SCREENS         089970          30.00

 

01-044430 JOHN THOMAS            I-188723.070731      110 5160-579        OTHER PURCHAS: MOWING               089986         414.00

 

01-048404 LAW OFFICES OF         I-31893              110 5160-515        LABOR RELATIO: COUNCIL MEETING 7/17 089937         225.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:       1,113.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P8614948           110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: HARD DRIVE CABLES    089987          17.97

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P86149480103       110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: HARD DRIVE CABLES    089987          14.97

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P87174360101       110 5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: 15FT USB CABLE       089987          22.48

 

01-001011 HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPAN I-23064479-001       110 5170-851        WIDE AREA NET: CH APPLICATION SERVE 089921       5,601.00

 

01-001217 GMIS ILLINOIS          I-200707311527       110 5170-571        DUES & MEMBER: MEMBERSHIP           089915         100.00

 

01-005640 CDW GOVERNMENT         I-GBV6112            110 5170-851        WIDE AREA NET: CH APPLICATION SERVE 089872         894.50

01-005640 CDW GOVERNMENT         I-GDN9327            110 5170-851        WIDE AREA NET: CH APPLICATION SERVE 089872          53.21

01-005640 CDW GOVERNMENT         I-GFQ6184            110 5170-851        WIDE AREA NET: FINANCE SCANNER      089872         944.24

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200708011596       110 5170-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DRUG SCREENS         089970          30.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:       7,678.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3635               110 5180-511        PLANNING & DE: JUNE 07 TA BILLING   089880         360.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5180-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          10.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 180   PLANNING & ZONING        TOTAL:         370.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-03786              110 5190-579        MISC OTHER PU: GOLF OUTING PRIZES   089848         647.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 190   COUNCIL CONTINGENCY      TOTAL:         647.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 211  POLICE ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000126 COLES CO HEALTH DEPT   I-493849             110 5211-519        OTHER PROFESS: SHOTS                089879         112.00

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7542               110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AMTRAK TICKET        089841          17.00

 

01-001757 TOMMY K MARTIN LAW ENF I-200707201429       110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SCHOLARSHIP FUND     089768          50.00

 

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-202422             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE,SUGAR,CREAM   089871          76.50

 

01-014115 DUNN'S I-57 MARATHON   I-55421              110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: TOW HARLEY DAVIDSON  089894          90.00

01-014115 DUNN'S I-57 MARATHON   I-55424              110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: TOW HARLEY DAVIDSON  089894         115.00

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2916317            110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: POSTS                090004           9.62

 

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-AO-141853          110 5211-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: CLEAN BLANKET        089918           8.00

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0714316-IN         110 5211-531        POSTAGE      : FREIGHT              089964           6.70

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0714662-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BELTS                089964          43.00

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0716374-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               089964         190.00

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0717566-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: NAME BAR             089964          13.47

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-200707251448       110 5211-522        NOTARY FEES  : NOTARY-WEINSTOCK     089804          10.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1B00691001         110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PAPER,FILE JACKETS,L 089767         505.90

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-1B00691002         110 5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: DRY ERASE MARKERS    089767          18.95

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616623          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER UGK-462781    090001          58.05

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616624          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER UGK-462971    090001          58.05

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616625          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER RYU-424737    090001          80.35

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616626          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER RYU-424738    090001          75.81

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616627          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER NYD-017502    090001         267.14

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:       1,805.54

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0714315-IN         110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CHARGING CRADLE      089964          32.16

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0718217-IN         110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: RAID JACKET          089964         170.74

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:         202.90

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1652               110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CHARGER              089839          29.99

 

01-001762 DARRELL COX GUNSMITHIN I-214344             110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SEMI AUTO CONVERSION 089890         476.80

 

01-001850 APT COMPUTERS/COMMUNIC I-2280               110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: HOLSTER              089858          15.30

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 213  PATROL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0717506-IN         110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TACTICAL SLING       089964         283.65

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0717748-IN         110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MAGAZINE,TRANSPORT B 089964         401.68

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0718218-IN         110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CHARGER CORD         089964          14.14

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0718934-IN*        110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PROTECTIVE HOOD      089964          29.75

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 213   PATROL                   TOTAL:       1,251.31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001714 TASER INTERNATIONAL    I-INV041061869       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAINING             089985         450.00

 

01-001758 FOUR POINTS SHERATON   I-200707201428       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: LODGING 8-6/8        089763         199.12

 

01-001768 ILLINOIS CORONERS &    I-200708011608       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: CONF REG 8/6-8       089850         950.00

 

01-014232 EAST CENTRAL LAW ENFOR I-200707271483       110 5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: TRAINING             089897       3,500.00

 

01-039221 PRECISION CARTRIDGE IN I-3443               110 5221-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: AMMO                 089766       1,808.25

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 221   POLICE TRAINING          TOTAL:       6,907.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001620 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-1734408460         110 5222-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              089847          29.28

 

01-009057 COMM REVOLVING FUND    I-T0754694           110 5222-537        I-WIN ACCESS : COMM SVCS 6/07       089883         575.00

 

01-020975 HEART TECHNOLOGIES INC I-10267              110 5222-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: DISPATCH VIDEO SYSTE 089920          38.25

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201431       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-7314             089761          65.82

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201432       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-7677             089761          35.26

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201434       110 5222-534        PAGERS       : 400-5965             089761         135.52

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707311582       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             089843          71.82

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708021622       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6969             089885           6.66

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708021623       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0433             089885          43.13

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708021624       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             089885       1,477.16

 

01-036880 NEXTEL PARTNERS, INC   I-519603086-064      110 5222-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              089846         504.47

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 222   COMMUNICATION SERVICES   TOTAL:       2,982.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-200708021621       110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SQUAD REPAIRS        089859         208.72

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-200708021621       110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        089859         414.29

01-001582 AUTO, TRUCK AND FARM R I-200708021621       110 5223-439        OTHER REPAIR : SQUAD REPAIRS        089859         158.85

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-246                110 5223-326        FUEL         : FUEL 6-1/30 POLICE D 089887       6,384.24

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 223  AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-013900 D-R AUTO BODY SHOP     I-200707271477       110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: EXPLORER REPAIRS     089889         168.97

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2895563            110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CAR WASH,OIL,BREAK F 090004          20.44

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2913466            110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: HITCH & PI N,BALL MO 090004          28.98

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0717505-IN         110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : SIREN,SPEAKER,BRACKE 089964       1,937.37

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0718288-IN         110 5223-316        TOOL & EQUIPM: RADIO CONSOLE        089964          88.12

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-0718664-IN         110 5223-316        TOOL & EQUIPM: MAG CHARGER,LED LIGH 089964         252.88

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-15746              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: INSTALL GUN RACKS    089966         255.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16200              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: INSTALL 2 NEW GUN LO 089966         255.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16202              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: INSTALL 2 GUN LOCKS  089966         255.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16253              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: INSTALL GUN RACK     089966         125.00

 

01-041000 SECRETARY OF STATE     I-200707271476       110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: RENEW STICKER 2-S-22 089972          78.00

 

01-050893 ZOLLMAN AUTO CARE      I-15060              110 5223-742        VEHICLES     : MUD FLAPS            090003          90.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:      10,720.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021617       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1321 RICHMOND        089857          36.90

 

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-2890               110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : PULLED FAN MOTOR     089929       1,437.82

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-2891               110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : INSTALL MOTOR IN CHI 089929         363.00

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-2913               110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: INSTALL REBUILT MOTO 089929          85.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707201430       110 5224-322        ELECTRICITY  : PISTOL RANGE         089760          54.80

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-20139              110 5224-312        CLEANING SUPP: GRASS KILLER         089891          19.99

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707121362       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1710 WABASH          000000         107.95

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707121363       110 5224-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 S 17TH           000000          33.12

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-23-46622           110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: SERVICE CALL         089959         114.00

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-23-46628           110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: SERVICE CALL         089959          78.50

 

01-039950 RAWLINGS ELEC MOTOR RE I-8604               110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: MOTOR REPAIRS        089963         279.85

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16060              110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : CHECK RADIO & RELAY  089966         153.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:       2,763.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-9069270            110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: A/C                  089922         119.00

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200707311532       110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ANTIFREEZE           089854          18.98

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200707311532       110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ANTIFREEZE           089854          51.47

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0417               110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: HINGES               089839         100.60

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1175               110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: HINGES               089839          79.26

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6240               110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: POSTAGE              089840          17.74

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7254               110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               089840          64.98

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7640               110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SUPPLIES             089841          55.26

 

01-000844 ACS FIREHOUSE SOLUTION I-63143              110 5241-541        SOFTWARE     : FIREHOUSE SOFTWARE   089853       8,620.00

 

01-000863 EMBLEM ENTERPRISES, IN I-383545             110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: PATCHES              089900         458.68

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707171421       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1801 PRAIRIE-STA 1   089747          41.36

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707311580       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: HWY 16 STA 2         089838          33.09

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         124.76

 

01-001479 WITMER ASSOCIATES INC. I-461230.001         110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SHIELD               089999          36.00

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  089845         150.36

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  089845         167.51

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1801 PRAIRIE STA 1   089845          44.77

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1801 PRAIRIE STA 1   089845         111.39

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  089845         192.45

 

01-001764 THE MEDICINE SHOPPE    I-200707311540       110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLUCOMETERS          089946          49.23

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    C-63351              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: RETURNS              089862           9.95-

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-63086              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : BATTERIES            089862         104.00

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-63256              110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BATTERY #2           089862          10.50

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-63336              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : RADIO BATTERY        089862         216.00

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS    I-63337              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BATTERIES            089862           9.95

 

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011589       110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SEW PATCHES          089960          54.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171420       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: HWY 16 STA 2         089749         430.27

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-242                110 5241-326        FUEL         : FUEL 6-1/30  FIRE DE 089887       1,431.34

 

01-014430 EGIZII ELECTRIC, INC.  I-112290             110 5241-741        MACHINERY    : RESET PREEMPTION     089899         554.63

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2896596            110 5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: DISH DETERGENT,TAPE  089762          70.23

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2901981            110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BUCKETS              089762          59.80

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2903925            110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TAPE                 089762           9.54

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-75558              110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   089906          37.22

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-AO-143034          110 5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: UNIFORM CLEANING     089918           3.95

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-AO-143385          110 5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: UNIFORM CLEANING     089918          20.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201436       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0947             089761          40.96

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201437       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0924             089761          48.58

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201438       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0942             089761         108.96

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707311530       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2442             089885          48.98

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707311531       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0931             089885          43.95

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708011604       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0933             089885          37.59

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708011605       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0932             089885          41.01

 

01-025600 IL MO PRODUCTS COMPANY I-200707271482       110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: CYLINDER RENTA,OXYGE 089926         144.48

 

01-029825 KIRCHNER BUILDING CENT I-40042504           110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: ELBOW                089933           2.99

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0574          110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SAFETY GLASSES       089935           6.54

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0617          110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SAFETY GLASSES,GLOVE 089935          15.62

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-113037-00          110 5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FOIL                 089938          53.69

 

01-031157 MACS FIRE & SAFETY INC I-85928              110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: HELMET               089941         122.68

01-031157 MACS FIRE & SAFETY INC I-85997              110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BOOTS                089941         112.04

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5241-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          25.41

 

01-036880 NEXTEL PARTNERS, INC   I-794726086-048      110 5241-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              089802         136.03

 

01-039423 QUARTERMASTER INC      C-P62544500001       110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: RETURNS              089962          83.95-

01-039423 QUARTERMASTER INC      I-P626012700015      110 5241-315        UNIFORMS & CL: SHIRTS               089962         101.94

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200707311536       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRE REPAIRS         089865          13.00

 

01-040250 MATTOON FARM PRIDE     I-CM11367            110 5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: 2 CYCLE OIL          089942           5.50

 

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16262              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : RADIO REPAIRS        089966          55.00

01-040358 ROY WALKER COMM. INC.  I-16263              110 5241-535        RADIOS       : RADIO REPAIRS        089966          16.35

 

01-040448 S & K AIR POWER        I-1379586-01         110 5241-460        OTHER PROP MA: THREADER RIDGE RENTA 089967          40.00

 

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-40181              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SERVICE TRUCK        089968         356.17

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2080101.001       110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: BULBS                089980          40.50

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-02399              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PAPER,STICKY NOTES,T 089848          53.49

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-02571              110 5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: MEMO PADS            089848          11.10

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026269466          110 5241-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER PDG-156851    090001          61.77

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616581          110 5241-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER PDG-156851    090001          28.69

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:      15,227.44

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-018700 KYLE GILL              I-200708021625       110 5261-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 7/1-31       089914          43.63

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5261-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          34.54

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200708011596       110 5261-579        MISC OTHER PU: DRUG SCREENS         089970          30.00

 

01-041120 RAYMOND SENTENEY       I-200708021626       110 5261-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 7/6-27       089973         135.31

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN   TOTAL:         243.48

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-007885 COLES COUNTY ANIMAL AN I-200707271521       110 5280-512        ANIMAL CONTRO: 3RD QTR ANIMAL CONTR 089881       4,572.75

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 280   ANIMAL CONTROL           TOTAL:       4,572.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P8614948           110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PRINTER INK & TONER  089987         488.03

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P86149480102       110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: COLOR PRINTER TONER  089987         176.04

01-000703 TIGER DIRECT           I-P86149480103       110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: TONER & PLOTTER INK  089987         314.99

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-2168               110 5310-561        BUSINESS MEET: LUNCH 6/27           089839          20.23

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-4446               110 5310-561        BUSINESS MEET: DRINKS               089840          18.93

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6547               110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PRINTER PART         089840          53.14

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-8279               110 5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PRINTER PART         089841          32.50

 

01-024800 IL MUNICIPAL LEAGUE    I-200707201441       110 5310-561        BUSINESS MEET: IML CONFERENCE       089765         105.00

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616638          110 5310-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER TFW-015052    090001         189.19

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:       1,398.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-3024591            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : SAND MIX             089922          12.99

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-3069880            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : SANDMIX,SQUEEGE      089922          77.94

 

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708021618       110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: SHOP TOOLS           089854           6.90

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708021618       110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: JACK OIL,OIL FILTERS 089854         243.23

 

01-001046 GERDAU AMERISTEEL      I-4512042258         110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : STAKES               089913         125.00

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         103.82

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021611       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 N 12TH           089856         121.74

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021616       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           089856         126.09

 

01-001686 ALLIED MUNICIPAL SUPPL I-5136               110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: BARRICADES           089855         554.98

 

01-001761 VARSITY STRIPING       I-200707271481       110 5320-519        OTHER PROFESS: PAVEMENT REMOVAL     089991       1,714.00

 

01-001766 TAPCO                  I-275704             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : GLASS BEADS          089984         515.60

 

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-34687              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ICE                  089863          23.50

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-123153             110 5320-440        RENTALS      : AUGER RENTAL         089867         200.00

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X12635             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: #544 REPAIRS         089867       1,202.64

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X12942             110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPLACE WINDSHIELD   089867         712.60

 

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14788              110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: #526 REPAIRS         089873         137.72

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80469              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          089886          18.35

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80473              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          089886          18.35

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-19394              110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: YELLOW JACKET FOAM   089891          71.88

 

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200707271479       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR #519          089892         557.50

01-011875 DENNING AUTOMOTIVE     I-200707271480       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPLACE U-JOINTS     089892         138.77

 

01-014015 DRUMMOND AMERICAN CORP I-5853747            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BLACK MAGIC          089893         163.00

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-102383             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FUEL CAP             089905          23.75

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2895710            110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: RAKES                089905          25.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2897986            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BARRELL VALVE,BUSHIN 089905          22.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2904329            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DRIVEWAY MARKER      089905           9.16

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2904460            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REFLECTORS           089801           5.97

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2906808            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REFLECTORS           089905          11.94

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2908332            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REFLECTORS           089905           3.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2909066            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: HANDLES,WASH MITTS   089905          25.96

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2912547            110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WASH MITTS           089905          15.96

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2919015            110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : SPRAYER              089905          38.99

 

01-018100 GANO WELDING           I-814799             110 5320-440        RENTALS      : WELDING SUPPLIES     089910          45.00

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-793950        110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT                089952          43.89

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-795021        110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : MARKING PAINT        089952         226.89

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251449       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5522             089799          79.54

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251450       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5171             089799         222.59



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251452       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5663             089799          37.70

 

01-029825 KIRCHNER BUILDING CENT I-40042681           110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WOOD STAKES          089933          34.29

 

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2007-0547          110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: AIR HOSE             089935          15.95

 

01-032980 MATTOON MOTOR SHOP     I-5519               110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SHARPEN CHAINS       089943          56.95

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5320-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851           3.48

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111304       110 5320-410        UTILITY SERVI: 221 N 12TH           000000          61.36

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67542              110 5320-363        BACKFILL AND : DIVISION & RICHMOND  089948         322.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67546              110 5320-363        BACKFILL AND : 12TH & MARSHALL      089948         109.90

 

01-036010 MIKE MORRIS TOOL SALES I-106248             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PASTE                089950          21.89

 

01-036600 NEAL TIRE SERVICE      I-200708021620       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: ENLOADER TIRE REPAIR 089953         118.95

01-036600 NEAL TIRE SERVICE      I-200708021620       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRES #509           089953         331.70

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-10299              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BUSHING & BOLTS      089954           2.88

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER TIRES          089865          74.91

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER TIRE REPAIR    089865          11.00

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SKID STEER TIRE REPA 089865          48.00

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRE REPAIRS         089865          13.00

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: TIRE REPAIRS         089865          30.95

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200708011596       110 5320-569        DRUG & ALCOHO: DRUG SCREENS         089970         225.00

 

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0274-9             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                089974          56.95

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0604-7             110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: YELLOW PAINT         089974          28.77

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0635-1             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINTER MIT          089974          14.40

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0755-7             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : THINNER,BRUSHES      089974          32.66

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-9901-8             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT,BUCKET,GLOVES  089974         155.70

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-9906-7             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                089974          14.24

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-9992-7             110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : MINERAL SPIRITS      089974          27.45

 

01-044200 KC SUMMERS BUICK       I-BUCS334951         110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: ASTRO REPAIRS        089932         163.13

 

01-050893 ZOLLMAN AUTO CARE      I-14963              110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: REDUCER,HITCH PINS   090003          34.00

01-050893 ZOLLMAN AUTO CARE      I-14964              110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: NERF BARS            090003         990.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:      10,686.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 323  SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000742 BARTELS CONSTRUCTION,  I-200707311537       110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : SDWLK 2414 WESTERN   089861         352.00

 

01-040469 DURWIN SANDERS         I-27029-B            110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : SDWLK 3201 RICHMOND  089895         154.00

01-040469 DURWIN SANDERS         I-27053              110 5323-351        CONCRETE     : SDWLK 1101 & 1105 MA 089895         836.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 323   SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS   TOTAL:       1,342.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251466       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 208 N 19TH           089796          27.05

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251467       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH & RICHMOND      089796          41.02

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         750.32

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 18TH & MARSHALL SIGN 089845         111.02

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 18TH & MARSHALL SIGN 089845         118.89

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH LIGHTS          089845          78.51

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 19TH LIGHT           089845          81.86

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & CHARLESTON LIG 089845          10.61

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & CHARLESTON LIG 089845           9.64

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1721 CHARLESTON LIGH 089845          80.76

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 18TH & MARSHALL LIGH 089845         114.74

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 15TH & CHARLESTON LI 089845         102.11

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 15TH & CHARLESTON LI 089845          93.09

 

01-001692 TRAFFIC TECHNICAL SUPP I-611.1              110 5326-432        REPAIR OF BUI: CONTROLLER REPAIR    089988         436.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251454       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45              089798          61.46

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251455       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : EAST RT 16           089798          74.11

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251456       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   089798         175.57

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251457       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : 3020 LAKELAND BLVD   089798           5.15

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251458       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   089798          12.53

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251459       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : OLD STATE VILLAGE    089798           6.65

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251460       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S 9TH ST             089798           6.40

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251461       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : SUNRISE APTS         089798           6.65

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251462       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : S RT 45 & PARADISE   089798          12.53

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251463       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : PIATT & RT 316       089798          10.90

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707251464       110 5326-322        ELECTRIC     : LAKELAND INN ENT     089798           6.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:       2,433.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003756 BROWN TRAFFIC PRODUCTS I-001799             110 5327-359        OTHER STREET : PED BUTTONS          089870          81.83

01-003756 BROWN TRAFFIC PRODUCTS I-001849             110 5327-359        OTHER STREET : CONFLICT MONITORS    089870         554.73

01-003756 BROWN TRAFFIC PRODUCTS I-002346             110 5327-359        OTHER STREET : RT 16 & SWORDS DR    089870         535.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 327   TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES  TOTAL:       1,171.56

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 331  STREET CLEANING

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708021618       110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: RELAY                089854          10.75

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2908780            110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: REPAIR KIT,SPRAYER T 089905          23.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 331   STREET CLEANING          TOTAL:          34.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111294       110 5335-410        UTILITY SERVI: 420 LOGAN            000000          31.67

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:          31.67

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-8044242            110 5370-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: STRIPING             089922           5.29

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-794185        110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT                089952          58.94

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-9614               110 5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS: OFFICE SUPPLIES      089805          10.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 370   CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION  TOTAL:          74.23

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         514.12

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: CITY HALL            089845       1,254.16

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707251453       110 5381-534        PAGERS       : 402-2636             089799          11.30

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:       1,779.58

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         122.32

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2895566            110 5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAWN BAGS,RAKE       089905          14.96

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111292       110 5383-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1701 WABASH          000000          30.48

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:         167.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000083 IL CENTRAL RAILROAD CO I-2070-9500024260    110 5384-460        OTHER PROP MA: SIDEWALK LEASE       089924         125.00

 

01-044230 SUPERIOR GLASS & ALUMI I-259                110 5384-432        REPAIR OF BUI: DOOR REPAIRS         089983         323.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:         448.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 388  GARMENT FACTORY

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251475       110 5388-321        NATURAL GAS &: 316 S 32ND           089797          14.89

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 388   GARMENT FACTORY          TOTAL:          14.89

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5505-579        MISC OTHER PU: POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851           2.46

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 505   ARTS COUNCIL             TOTAL:           2.46

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0430               110 5511-326        FUEL         : FUEL                 089839          58.50

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-245                110 5511-326        FUEL         : FUEL 6-1/30 PUBLIC W 089887       1,633.34

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       1,691.84

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-5888               110 5512-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089840          21.40

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7457               110 5512-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089840          21.40

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200708011594       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 7-10/16    000000         198.75

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-200708011595       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: HUNT/FISH 7/17-23    000000         122.75

 

01-024101 IL DEPARTMENT OF REVEN I-200707201442       110 5512-803        SALES TAX REM: JUNE 07 SALES TAX    089764         520.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       110 5512-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          18.45

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:         902.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111283       110 5521-410        UTILITY SERVI: 418 RICHMOND         000000          75.92

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 521   DEMARS CENTER            TOTAL:          75.92

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856         243.38

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           089845           4.21

 

01-001747 GREENTREE SCIENCE      I-200707271511       110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MULCH TREES          089916       2,095.00

 

01-011600 DEBUHR'S SEED STORE    I-20017              110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CYPRESS MULCH        089891          99.60

 

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-822-190506         110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT SUPPLIES       089940          15.04

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-822-190639         110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD MARKING PAINT  089940          30.22

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-822-190869         110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD MARKING PAINT  089940          30.22



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 541  PETERSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-822-190971         110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD MARKING PAINT  089940          30.22

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111284       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000         113.01

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111285       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 301 RICHMOND         000000       1,254.92

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111286       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 305 RICHMOND         000000       1,093.83

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111287       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 307 RICHMOND         000000         306.27

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111288       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY SHED      000000         212.64

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111289       110 5541-410        UTILITY SERVI: 500 B'DWAY           000000          12.99

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-46592              110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PADLOCK KEYS         089959          17.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:       5,559.05

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-031300 MAB PAINT STORE #822   I-822-190507         110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT SUPPLIES       089940           6.49

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-479579             110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BUSHING,CAM & GROOVE 089939           9.61

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707121348       110 5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BASEBALL DIAMOND     000000       1,338.27

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:       1,354.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251468       110 5544-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1200 CHAMPAIGN       089796          35.95

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 544   CUNNINGHAM PARK          TOTAL:          35.95

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251473       110 5551-321        NATURAL GAS &: 312 N 10TH           089797         467.86

 

01-001747 GREENTREE SCIENCE      I-200707271510       110 5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MULCH TREES, POLES & 089916       2,070.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111293       110 5551-410        UTILITY SERVI: 801 SHELBY           000000          24.04

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   BOYS COMPLEX             TOTAL:       2,561.90

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251471       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH BLDG 2     089796          26.31

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251472       110 5552-321        NATURAL GAS &: 311 N 6TH            089796         160.00

 

01-001747 GREENTREE SCIENCE      I-200707271510       110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: MULCH TREES, POLES & 089916       2,070.00

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111290       110 5552-410        UTILITY SERVI: 713 SHELBY           000000       1,366.26

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:       3,622.57

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 553  JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-3178428            110 5553-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: TOOLS                089922         136.84

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-9178673            110 5553-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: TOOLS                089922         222.32

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251474       110 5553-321        NATURAL GAS &: 409 SHELBY           089797          76.33

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-200707111291       110 5553-410        UTILITY SERVI: 421 SHELBY           000000         176.60

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 553   JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX      TOTAL:         612.09

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251469       110 5554-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1 S 22ND             089796          38.03

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         110 5554-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1 S 22ND             089845          61.24

 

01-001759 ADAM FIFIELD           I-200707311581       110 5554-432        REPAIR OF STR: SHIP BACKBOARD       089844         115.84

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 554   LITTLE KINZEL PARK       TOTAL:         215.11

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707251470       110 5556-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 SHELBY           089796         381.97

 

01-001760 SEAL COAT              I-200707251451       110 5556-450        CONSTRUCTION : SEAL COAT BIKE TRAIL 089803       3,100.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 556   T-BALL COMPLEX           TOTAL:       3,481.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-020803 HARRELSON PLUMBING & H I-10166              110 5561-432        REPAIR OF BUI: CLEAN SEWER          089919         190.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 561   EAST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:         190.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-006256 COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES  I-6108014227         110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          089877         362.50

01-006256 COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES  I-6118023417         110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          089877         370.50

 

01-020534 VERIZON NORTH          I-200707251465       110 5563-532        TELEPHONE    : 895-2922             089807          57.75

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-21-46547           110 5563-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PADLOCK              089959          23.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:         813.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-020803 HARRELSON PLUMBING & H I-10177              110 5564-440        RENTALS      : POTTY RENTAL         089919         140.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 564   BEACH AREA               TOTAL:         140.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 651  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000070 ILLINOIS EPA           I-13F-2              110 5651-519        OTHER PROFESS: PROF SERVICES        089927       8,323.86

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 651   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT     TOTAL:       8,323.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86809              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: MIDTOWN BUS DIST P/E 089957       3,000.00

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86810              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: B'DWAY E TIF P/E 6/2 089957       5,501.14

01-000467 PECKHAM GUYTON ALBERS  I-86811              110 5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BU: B'DWAY E BUS DIST P/ 089957       1,800.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 652   SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRTOTAL:      10,301.14

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:     131,485.37



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0074               122 5653-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 7/2          089839           6.94

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0423               122 5653-561        BUSINESS MEET: WATER,ORANGE JUICE   089839           6.93

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6013               122 5653-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089840          41.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7935               122 5653-319        MISCELLANEOUS: INTERNET SERVICE     089841           9.99

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707311584       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: MARSHALL WELCOME SIG 089838          14.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707311585       122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: B'DWAY WELCOME SIGN  089838          23.78

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: B'DWAY WELCOME SIGN  089845          41.42

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         122 5653-321        NATURAL GAS &: MARSHALL WELCOME SIG 089845          13.04

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707311579       122 5653-322        ELECTRICITY (: WELCOME SIGN         089842          27.04

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2898744            122 5653-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BANNER               090005          35.98

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708011609       122 5653-532        TELEPHONE    : 800-500-6286         089849          54.85

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       122 5653-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          65.23

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-200708011596       122 5653-319        MISCELLANEOUS: DRUG SCREENS         089970          30.00

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04220              122 5653-319        MISCELLANEOUS: SUPPLIES             089848           2.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         373.09

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:         373.09



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 582  JULY 4TH FIREWORKS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-2908               123 5582-540        ADVERTISING  : I STOCK PHOTO        089839          30.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-3946               123 5582-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BATTERIES            089839          24.26

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-7832               123 5582-579        MISC. OTHER P: SUPPLIES             089841          84.02

 

01-030050 LAIDLAW EDUCATION SERV I-1209               123 5582-519        OTHER PROFESS: JULY 4TH SHUTTLES    089936       2,100.00

 

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F5049787           123 5582-579        MISC. OTHER P: JULY 4TH TRASH       089756         267.25

 

01-044430 JOHN THOMAS            I-188655.070731      123 5582-519        OTHER PROFESS: CLEAN UP DEBRIS      089986         365.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 582   JULY 4TH FIREWORKS       TOTAL:       2,870.53

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000517 PROTECTION SERVICES IN I-697014             123 5584-579        MISC OTHER PU: CONES,DRUMS,MESSAGE  089961         500.00

 

01-000627 WEIU                   I-200707311534       123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : BAGELFEST ADVERTISIN 089995       2,000.00

 

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-0996               123 5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT: GIFT CARDS           089839          75.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-1067               123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : TABLESKIRT           089839           4.95

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-4134               123 5584-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 7/6          089839          46.11

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-4896               123 5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT: SUPPLIES             089840          58.19

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-5912               123 5584-561        BUSINESS MEET: MEETING 7/12         089840          20.00

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-6280               123 5584-561        BUSINESS MEET: CANDY                089840          12.10

01-000720 CARDMEMBER SERVICE     I-8421               123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: SUPPLIES             089841          84.00

 

01-001235 ANGELIA D BURGETT      I-200707171422       123 5584-832        BEER TENT    : START UP CASH        089748       2,000.00

 

01-001276 WEJT,WYDS,WZNX,WZUS    I-57801              123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          089996         372.00

 

01-001283 KNOX-ARRAY EVEN PRODUC I-00001290           123 5584-440        RENTALS      : STAGE RENTAL         089934       4,500.00

 

01-001324 STEPHANEE GRIFFITH     I-200707171412       123 5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT: QUEEN PAGEANT SUPPLI 089753         142.36

01-001324 STEPHANEE GRIFFITH     I-200707311538       123 5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT: BAGELFEST SUPPLIES   089917          17.84

 

01-008975 COMFORT SUITES         I-200707311529       123 5584-574        SPECIAL EVENT: LODGING 7/21-22      089882         179.74

 

01-017450 FIT TO A TEE           I-0010004            123 5584-317        CONCESSION & : T-SHIRTS             089907       1,736.00

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-793973        123 5584-319        MISCELLANEOUS: STRIPING PAINT       089952         169.72

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-112280-00          123 5584-832        BEER TENT    : TOWELS,BLEACH        089938          90.06

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       123 5584-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851         100.03

 

01-038005 FIVE STAR RENTAL       I-19112              123 5584-579        MISC OTHER PU: SCAFFOLD RENTAL      089908          89.88

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 584  BAGELFEST

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-038082 PELICAN SIGNS          I-3585               123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: BANNERS              089958         590.40

 

01-043202 SPECTRUM               I-200708011599       123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : POSTERS              089978          15.00

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2071382.001       123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: ZIP TIES             089980         122.31

 

01-045510 VARIETY ATTRACTIONS IN I-200707201443       123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: BAGELFEST ENTERTAINM 089769      20,000.00

01-045510 VARIETY ATTRACTIONS IN I-200707201444       123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: BAGELFEST ENTERTAINM 089770       2,000.00

 

01-045603 WMCI,WWGO,WCBH         I-200708011600       123 5584-540        ADVERTISING  : WWGO,WMCI ADVERTISIN 090000         274.90

 

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-03997              123 5584-330        FOOD         : POP                  089848          25.48

01-045820 WALMART COMMUNITY BRC  I-04667              123 5584-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: SUPPLIES             089848          32.50

 

01-050820 Z'S MUSIC & SOUND      I-200708011606       123 5584-440        RENTALS      : SOUND & LIGHTING EQU 089852       7,900.00

01-050820 Z'S MUSIC & SOUND      I-2950               123 5584-440        RENTALS      : NO LOADERS           090002         750.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 584   BAGELFEST                TOTAL:      43,908.57

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:      46,779.10



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: 150  FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       125 5150-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851          17.65

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:          17.65

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:          17.65



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 128  MIDTOWN TIF FUND

DEPARTMENT: 604  MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001763 CUSTOM BLUEPRINTS      I-200707271516       128 5604-519        OTHER PROFESS: PRELIMINARY PLANS    089888         375.00

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       128 5604-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851           0.80

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 604   MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT     TOTAL:         375.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 128   MIDTOWN TIF FUND         TOTAL:         375.80



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 351  RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707311577       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, PICNIC PAVILION 089838          11.76

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021612       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: LAKE PARADISE RD     089856          70.06

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021615       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, POLE BARN       089856          40.82

 

01-001756 LAKE SARA MARINA       I-200707171419       211 5351-740        MACHINNERY & : BOAT FOR WTP         089754       5,667.95

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171426       211 5351-322        ELECTRICITY  : RESERVOIR CONTROL    089749           4.90

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 351   RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES TOTAL:       5,795.49

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001178 ROLANKA INTERNATIONAL, I-6021               211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: CLEAN LAKES PROJECT  089965       4,664.33

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-001228 GENESIS NURSERY, INC.  I-8946               211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: WETLAND PLANTS       089912       2,975.42

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-001512 SPENCE RESTORATION NUR I-N5663              211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: SEED                 089979       1,120.00

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-001767 FROMM-HUFF FARM, INC.  I-120                211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: WETLAND PLANTS       089909       8,689.00

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

01-001770 SHUPE'S WOODWORKS & SA I-200708021627       211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: CLEAN LAKES PROJECT  089975         555.84

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              C-2884279            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: RETURNS              089800          49.98-

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2880822            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: HOOKS,SPIDERWIRE     089800          15.68

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2884303            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: FENCE POSTS          089800         203.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2884499            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: OIL                  089800           3.58

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2886141            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: HOSE                 089800          21.20

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2886367            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: WATER PUMP           089800         189.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2893021            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: HAMMER,NAILS,SIGN    089800          16.74

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2895579            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: CABLE TIES           089800          15.96

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2895757            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: TWINE                089800           7.49

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2896312            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: BLADE                089800           1.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2903983            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: FENCE POSTS          089800         159.20

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 352  RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2904322            211 5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS O: SPRINKLER            089801           9.99

          PROJ: 127-500           LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 352   RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS  TOTAL:      18,600.42

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000061 HOME DEPOT             I-3067606            211 5353-379        OTHER WATER M: FOAM PIPE INSULATION 089922          14.00

 

01-000189 BALLINGER AUTO COMPANY I-200708011602       211 5353-432        REPAIR OF STR: CLEAN LARGE PIT      089860       4,000.00

 

01-000484 ETHANOL PRODUCTS CO2   I-CO233127           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIQUID CO2           089903         532.37

 

01-000839 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC C-BMS650996          211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : DRUM RETURN          089869         300.00-

01-000839 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC I-BMS275603          211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : AMMONIA              089869         772.50

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021657       211 5353-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER TREATMENT PLAN 089857          94.59

 

01-001414 GENERAL CHEMICAL PERFO I-90035442           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            089911       2,239.20

 

01-002985 BEELMAN TRUCK CO       I-50912              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 089864         810.91

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707201427       211 5353-322        ELECTRICITY  : WATER PURIFICATION P 089760       4,108.55

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2891576            211 5353-379        OTHER WATER M: OIL                  089800           9.52

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2896513            211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : BATTERIES,ROUND UP   089800          16.84

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708011601       211 5353-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2454             089885         208.54

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-480054             211 5353-378        PLANT MTCE & : COUPLING             089939           3.54

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-480611             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: COUPLING,ELBOWS,TEES 089939           4.91

 

01-035365 MISSISSIPPI LIME COMPA I-758214             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 089951       2,532.39

 

01-037976 PDC LABORATORIES       I-559044S            211 5353-519        OTHER PROFESS: WATER TESTING        089956          15.00

 

01-040465 SAL CHEMICAL           I-74341              211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            089969       1,853.96

 

01-041806 SIDENER                I-272153             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: BALL VALVES          089976         111.67

 

01-045147 ULRICH CHEMICAL INC    I-351332             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : CHEMICALS            089806       2,041.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:      19,069.59

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708011592       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        089856          33.50

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021613       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2800 E LAKE PARADISE 089856         948.35



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021614       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, WATER DEPT      089856          73.80

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021657       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: L MATTOON PUMP       089857      13,260.01

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021657       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER TOWER          089857          15.93

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021657       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST STORAGE      089857          26.86

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2, WATER DEPT      089845           5.97

 

01-001686 ALLIED MUNICIPAL SUPPL I-5136               211 5354-313        MEDICAL & SAF: BARRICADES           089855         554.99

 

01-001769 SCOTT P. MCDEVITT      I-200708021610       211 5354-432        REPAIR OF STR: 12TH & MARSHALL      089945         715.50

 

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-34283              211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: ICE                  089863          31.00

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-T52385             211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: STRAP,BOLTS          089867          26.29

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X12966             211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: CONCRETE BREAKER REP 089867          83.50

 

01-006016 CENTRAL IL TRANSMISSIO I-14775              211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: #528 REPAIRS         089873       2,600.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171425       211 5354-322        ELECTRICITY  : SBLHC-PUMP STA       089749         107.29

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80466              211 5354-439        OTHER REPAIR : SAFETY TEST          089886          18.35

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI82905            211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: #545 REPAIRS         089898          48.58

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI82940            211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: #545 REPAIRS         089898          66.75

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2908226            211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: MEASURING WHEEL      089905          35.99

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-793950        211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PAINT                089952          43.89

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1002723-00         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: WOOD SHIMS           089928          80.92

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1003082-00         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : METER COUPLING       089928          96.88

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1003082-01         211 5354-374        SERVICE LINE : METER VALVES,COUPLIN 089928       1,557.93

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1004023-00         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: GLAND PACKS          089928         122.14

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1004023-01         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: VALVES               089928         185.70

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-112669-01          211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BATTERIES            089938          52.70

 

01-033200 MATTOON PRINTING CENTE I-200708031659       211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: BOIL ORDERS          089944         255.97

 

01-035050 METZGER WELDING SERVIC I-200707271478       211 5354-439        OTHER REPAIR : TURN DOWN FLANGE     089947          47.50

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67547              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 19TH & OLIVE         089948         322.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67812              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 1108 EDGAR           089948         239.70

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68053              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 1712 CHAMPAIGN       089948       1,278.40

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68054              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: RICHMOND & LOGAN     089948         189.80

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68055              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 19TH & RUDY          089948         115.00



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    25

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68056              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 1416 B'DWAY          089948         230.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68338              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 14TH & B'DWAY        089948         189.80

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68339              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 16TH & B'DWAY        089948         557.80

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-68340              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 28TH & CHAMPAIGN     089948         184.00

 

01-036010 MIKE MORRIS TOOL SALES I-106091             211 5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SOCKET               089950          49.25

 

01-036600 NEAL TIRE SERVICE      I-200708021620       211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRES #545           089953         939.42

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021619       211 5354-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BACKHOE TIRES        089865          33.95

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-200708021658       211 5354-434        REPAIR OF VEH: TIRE REPAIRS         089865          13.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:      25,438.41

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-009077 INTERACTIVE COMPUTER   I-56,055             211 5355-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: ANNUAL SOFTWARE MNTC 089931         607.00

 

01-019900 GREATER BAY CAPITAL    I-200638011-0707     211 5355-815        POSTAGE METER: POSTAGE METER LEASE  089752         369.99

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707201439       211 5355-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-5483             089761         198.50

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       211 5355-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851         652.28

 

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      C-1557               211 5355-372        METER TILES, : RETURNS              089949         589.00-

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-85760              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          089949         272.95

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-85792              211 5355-372        METER TILES, : EXT RINGS,SETTER,COU 089949         995.12

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86028              211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          089949       3,435.00

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-026616604          211 5355-814        PRINTING/COPY: COPIER URR-895305    090001         210.44

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:       6,152.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707311578       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: S 12TH ST            089838          26.36

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200708021657       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        089857          50.07

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST LIGHTING     089845          40.32

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST LIGHTING     089845          41.24

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           089845           2.20

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           089845           2.56

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        089845         128.83

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10231455-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        089845         134.69

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST LIGHTING     089845          41.85

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           089845           2.01

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        089845         105.41

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    26

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 356  ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3638               211 5356-511        PLANNING & DE: JUNE 07 GIS BILLING  089880       3,196.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       3,771.62

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      78,827.81



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    27

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200708021618       212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: HEAD LAMP BULBS      089854          29.40

 

01-001585 STARWALT'S TIRE & AUTO I-2306               212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: BACKHOE TIRES        089981         235.00

 

01-001686 ALLIED MUNICIPAL SUPPL I-5136               212 5342-313        MEDICAL & SAF: BARRICADES           089855         554.99

 

01-002970 BEACHY'S ICE COMPANY   I-34618              212 5342-369        OTHER SEWER M: ICE                  089863          31.00

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-X13068             212 5342-433        REPAIR OF MAC: #544 REPAIRS         089867         110.50

 

01-007820 COE EQUIPMENT INC      I-41939              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PRESSURE GAUGES,SPRI 089878         193.23

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-80492              212 5342-439        OTHER REPAIR : SAFETY TEST          089886          18.35

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-793950        212 5342-369        OTHER SEWER M: PAINT                089952          43.90

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67543              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 12TH & DEWITT        089948         399.50

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67549              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 1100 MARSHALL        089948         109.90

 

01-039211 ERC/COLES COUNTY LANDF I-001413             212 5342-460        OTHER PROPERT: GRIT DISPOSAL        089902       1,710.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:       3,435.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001606 INDUSTRIAL PROCESS EQU I-3000261-01         212 5343-365        LIFT STATION : HYDROMATIC ROTATING  089930       2,370.00

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: DEWITT LIFT STA      089845          26.38

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: 28TH LIFT STA        089845          27.88

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 19TH LIFT STA      089845           6.58

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 19TH LIFT STA      089845          10.31

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: WILLOWSHIRE SEWAGE   089845          32.64

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: WILLOWSHIRE SEWAGE   089845          35.44

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171413       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: SBLHC LIFT STA       089749         253.06

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171414       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: GOLDEN VALLEY SEWER  089749         113.60

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171415       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: LLC LIFT STA         089749          93.33

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-200707171416       212 5343-322        ELECTRICITY (: BUXTON LIFT STA      089749          63.09

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-23004001           212 5343-433        REPAIR OF MAC: LLC LIFT STA REPAIRS 089884         720.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:       3,752.39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000059 WILKENS-ANDERSON       I-S1078853.001       212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: LAB SUPPLIES         089998         601.48

 

01-000300 PARKSON CORPORATION    I-AR1/7070144        212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : SHEATHS & FLAPPERS   089955       1,842.68

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    28

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000337 CERTIFIED BALANCE &    I-17727              212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : REPAIR,CLEAN & TEST  089874          83.00

 

01-001042 EAGLE CHEMICAL & SUPPL I-10234              212 5344-312        CLEANING SUPP: CLEANING SUPPLIES    089896         193.32

 

01-001621 BIG LOTS               I-2000010679         212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: 3-BUTTON MOUSE       089866          19.98

 

01-001765 SMO SALES & SERVICE    I-070207             212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : GRIT PUMP PARTS      089977       3,731.33

 

01-003312 BODINE ELECTRIC        I-0035397            212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR TOSHIBA DRIVE 089868       3,609.56

 

01-006300 CHARLESTON STONE CO    I-8768               212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : CA-6                 089875         156.00

 

01-007090 CM WALKER TRUCKING INC I-71307              212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE HAULING 5-21/ 089876       5,692.50

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-200707271519       212 5344-730        IMPROVEMENTS : WWTP AUTOMATION      089884     185,303.86

          PROJ: 146-700           WWTP AUTOM & MCC REPL          Property (Capital Assets)

 

01-015220 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE I-485961             212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: CHEMICALS            089901         101.00

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2884264            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SQUEEGEE             089751          77.97

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2885624            212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : MOWER PARTS,KEY SET  089751          25.98

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2889730            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: DRAIN MASTER,WING NU 089751          45.94

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2897972            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: CEMENT,PRIMER,COFFEE 089751          37.13

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-2902070            212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: SEALANT              089751          14.76

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707171417       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6828             089750          70.51

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707171418       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2737             089750          39.81

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200707271517       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0475             089885          88.10

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY CO I-1003235-00         212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : BREAKAWAY KIT        089928         149.00

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-10279              212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : MOWER PARTS          089954          24.65

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-10343              212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: INSPECT CASE LOADER  089954          99.38

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-10345              212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: KUBOTA REPAIRS       089954         238.36

 

01-040448 S & K AIR POWER        I-1378740-01         212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BATTERIES,SABRELITES 089967         115.35

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-11196              212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      089755         265.94

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-9071               212 5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: OFFICE SUPPLIES      089755         182.90

 

01-044211 SUNSHINE FILTERS OF PI I-87564              212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : FILTER ELEMENT       089982         732.18

 

01-045505 VANDEVANTER ENGINEERIN I-1121011            212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPLACE CONTROL BOAR 089990         962.00

 

01-046606 WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDE I-200707271515       212 5344-340        BOOKS & PERIO: ANNUAL DUES          089992         152.00

 



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    29

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-046615 WATTS COPY SYSTEMS     I-355084             212 5344-814        COPY MACHINE : COPIER 7-8/8-8       089993          77.70

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:     204,734.37

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011586       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089960           3.06

01-004395 PETTY CASH             I-200708011587       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE              089960           3.99

 

01-009077 INTERACTIVE COMPUTER   I-56,055             212 5345-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: ANNUAL SOFTWARE MNTC 089931         607.00

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-44080              212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             089904          28.90

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-44326              212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             089904          19.87

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011603       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : UTILITY BILL POSTAGE 089989       1,500.00

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851         652.27

 

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-85760              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          089949         272.95

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-86028              212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : AMR PROJECT          089949       3,435.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:       6,523.04

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001620 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-1734241116         212 5346-533        CELLULAR PHON: MOBILES              089808         891.28

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 346   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:         891.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:     219,336.85



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    30

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 213  CEMETERY FUND

DEPARTMENT: 361  MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000550 ALEXANDERS AUTO PARTS  I-200707311526       213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: OIL                  089854          47.28

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707171423       213 5361-321        NATURAL GAS &: 917 N 22ND           089747          49.25

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-200707171424       213 5361-321        NATURAL GAS &: 917 N 22ND           089747          25.02

 

01-001630 INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVIC I-10314745-1         213 5361-321        NATURAL GAS &: 917 N 22ND           089845          26.66

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-200708011597       213 5361-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2055             089885         114.26

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-200708011607       213 5361-531        POSTAGE      : POSTAGE 6/6/07-8/1/0 089851           0.41

 

01-040250 MATTOON FARM PRIDE     I-CM11361            213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SPOOL,LOWER COVER    089942          67.71

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 361   MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS TOTAL:         330.59

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 213   CEMETERY FUND            TOTAL:         330.59

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     477,526.26



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 110-5110-532        TELEPHONE                          43.38         600         471.89

          110-5110-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,155.00       2,500       1,345.00

          110-5120-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   178.28       5,000       4,652.74

          110-5120-522        NOTARY FEES                        10.00         180          90.00

          110-5120-531        POSTAGE                           319.41       2,500       1,857.89

          110-5120-532        TELEPHONE                         223.33       3,000       2,349.34

          110-5120-801        VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN        560.00       7,500       5,914.00

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R         28.00       1,000         768.50

          110-5120-814        PRINT/COPY MACH. LEASE & M        304.74       3,800       2,812.21

          110-5130-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 173.14       2,000       1,826.86

          110-5150-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             23.21         500         527.42

          110-5150-513        AUDITING & ACCOUNTING SERV     11,725.00      14,300       2,575.00

          110-5150-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVIC         607.00      10,500       3,176.00

          110-5150-532        TELEPHONE                          97.57         850         556.35

          110-5150-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  82.50       1,750       1,667.50

          110-5160-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   233.23       2,000       1,523.99

          110-5160-515        LABOR RELATIONS COUNSEL           225.00       1,000         775.00

          110-5160-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         30.00       4,000       3,970.00

          110-5160-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                 161.50         750         588.50

          110-5160-579        OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES          464.00       7,500       4,792.50

          110-5170-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  55.42       2,000       1,824.64

          110-5170-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             30.00       1,000         920.02

          110-5170-571        DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                100.00         500         400.00

          110-5170-851        WIDE AREA NETWORK SERVERS       7,492.95      21,000      12,002.80

          110-5180-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        360.00      15,000      13,751.62

          110-5180-531        POSTAGE                            10.20         100          75.08

          110-5190-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        647.00      12,500      10,470.00

          110-5211-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   524.85       3,600       2,710.63

          110-5211-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               246.47       1,500       1,253.53

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             76.62       2,000       1,134.81

          110-5211-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        112.00       5,000       4,888.00

          110-5211-522        NOTARY FEES                        10.00         700         588.24

          110-5211-531        POSTAGE                             6.70       2,500       2,281.91

          110-5211-573        LAUNDRY SERVICE                     8.00         250         228.00

          110-5211-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        281.50       5,000       4,500.89

          110-5211-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        539.40       7,000       4,681.26

          110-5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            202.90       4,000       3,565.03

          110-5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,251.31       6,000       4,232.14

          110-5221-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,808.25       9,300       7,491.75

          110-5221-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING               5,099.12      27,500      11,531.90

          110-5222-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  38.25       2,000       1,961.75

          110-5222-532        TELEPHONE                       1,699.85      26,000      18,387.42

          110-5222-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    533.75       7,000       5,338.17

          110-5222-534        PAGERS                            135.52       1,800       1,391.44

          110-5222-537        I-WIN ACCESS CHARGE               575.00       8,000       6,850.00

          110-5223-316        TOOL & EQUIPMENT                  341.00         500          94.05

          110-5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     237.70       4,000       3,143.10



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    32

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             98.44       1,000         721.61

          110-5223-326        FUEL                            6,384.24      55,000      42,560.94

          110-5223-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              1,473.26      20,000      16,192.80

          110-5223-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS        158.85         750         226.81

          110-5223-742        VEHICLES                        2,027.37      87,550      63,810.63

          110-5224-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                  19.99       2,500       1,994.53

          110-5224-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         36.90      50,000      47,191.22

          110-5224-322        ELECTRICITY                        54.80       1,000         894.41

          110-5224-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  141.07       2,300       1,845.06

          110-5224-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               557.35      15,000      12,202.27

          110-5224-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS      1,953.82       5,000       2,434.94

          110-5241-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   105.09       2,500       2,038.05

          110-5241-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         193.71       6,000       4,860.53

          110-5241-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               906.27      15,000      10,814.61

          110-5241-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  42.72       6,000       4,244.59

          110-5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     106.73       6,000       5,755.11

          110-5241-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            152.51       7,500       6,909.23

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,295.96      15,000      12,915.83

          110-5241-326        FUEL                            1,431.34      18,500      15,445.45

          110-5241-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               121.99      10,000       8,276.65

          110-5241-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                549.03      15,000       8,997.88

          110-5241-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES          40.00       5,000       2,950.81

          110-5241-531        POSTAGE                            25.41         300         251.95

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         370.03       5,000       3,324.47

          110-5241-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    136.03       3,600       2,894.77

          110-5241-535        RADIOS                            391.35      10,000       9,270.60

          110-5241-541        SOFTWARE                        8,620.00      12,000       3,380.00

          110-5241-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  70.23      24,000      18,537.35

          110-5241-573        LAUNDRY SERVICES                   23.95       5,500       5,441.05

          110-5241-741        MACHINERY                         554.63       6,000       5,222.39

          110-5241-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA         90.46       1,500       1,352.16

          110-5261-531        POSTAGE                            34.54         250         186.89

          110-5261-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB         178.94       2,000       1,155.10

          110-5261-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         30.00         200         170.00

          110-5280-512        ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES         4,572.75      18,291      13,718.25

          110-5310-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,064.70       2,000         803.29

          110-5310-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          144.16         800         626.38

          110-5310-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        189.19       2,500       1,743.24

          110-5320-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         626.86       1,500          33.49-  Y

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT                32.88       2,000         610.47

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                   1,290.98      25,000      20,581.00

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            430.12      10,000       9,051.15-  Y

          110-5320-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            351.65       7,500       6,466.65

          110-5320-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      1,298.81      35,000      27,708.33

          110-5320-363        BACKFILL AND SURFACE MATER        431.90      10,000       9,568.10

          110-5320-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   61.36       1,000         754.35

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             2,274.77      12,500       6,918.78

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              1,359.75      10,000       7,939.14



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    33

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5320-440        RENTALS                           245.00       5,000       2,611.25

          110-5320-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,714.00       2,500         786.00

          110-5320-531        POSTAGE                             3.48         400         369.27

          110-5320-532        TELEPHONE                         339.83       5,000       3,499.95

          110-5320-569        DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING            225.00       1,500         945.00

          110-5323-351        CONCRETE                        1,342.00      20,000      17,954.00

          110-5326-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      1,619.62     150,000     125,313.08

          110-5326-322        ELECTRIC                          378.35       6,000       5,329.31

          110-5326-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               436.00       5,000       4,223.03-  Y

          110-5327-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      1,171.56         500         681.81-  Y

          110-5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS                      34.73       5,000       4,627.75

          110-5335-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   31.67         500         404.99

          110-5370-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   5.29       2,000       1,868.01

          110-5370-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             68.94       2,000       1,859.74

          110-5381-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,768.28      15,000      12,412.72

          110-5381-534        PAGERS                             11.30         150         127.40

          110-5383-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             14.96       2,500       2,349.19

          110-5383-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            122.32       6,000       5,660.93

          110-5383-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   30.48         500         402.40

          110-5384-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               323.00       1,000          31.14-  Y

          110-5384-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         125.00         500         245.68

          110-5388-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             14.89         300         270.22

          110-5505-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          2.46       4,000       3,937.94

          110-5511-326        FUEL                            1,691.84      10,000       6,464.86

          110-5512-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    18.45         500         291.88

          110-5512-531        POSTAGE                            42.80         100          35.80

          110-5512-802        HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE        321.50       6,500       1,010.25

          110-5512-803        SALES TAX REMITTANCE              520.00       2,500       1,278.00

          110-5521-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   75.92       1,000         897.21

          110-5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,317.80      10,000       1,408.83

          110-5541-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            247.59      16,500      15,629.53

          110-5541-410        UTILITY SERVICES                2,993.66       6,000       1,516.47

          110-5542-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,354.37       1,000       1,972.18-  Y

          110-5544-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         35.95         300         225.53

          110-5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,070.00       2,000         391.19-  Y

          110-5551-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        467.86       5,500       5,032.14

          110-5551-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   24.04       1,500       1,046.49

          110-5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,070.00       2,500         305.51-  Y

          110-5552-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        186.31       5,500       4,948.98

          110-5552-410        UTILITY SERVICES                1,366.26       4,000       1,887.95

          110-5553-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 359.16         500         140.84

          110-5553-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         76.33       2,500       2,405.02

          110-5553-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  176.60       3,000       2,768.85

          110-5554-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         99.27         500         363.26

          110-5554-432        REPAIR OF STRUCTURES              115.84         500         384.16

          110-5556-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            381.97       1,500         739.46

          110-5556-450        CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           3,100.00       8,000       4,900.00

          110-5561-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               190.00       1,500       1,310.00



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    34

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5563-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP        733.00      28,000      16,565.93

          110-5563-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             23.00       7,000       6,739.25

          110-5563-532        TELEPHONE                          57.75         800         684.42

          110-5564-440        RENTALS                           140.00       1,000         650.00

          110-5651-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      8,323.86      42,500      34,122.14

          110-5652-511        SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRI     10,301.14      75,000      63,524.54

          122-5653-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             77.97       1,000         328.03

          122-5653-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         93.13       2,500       2,354.99

          122-5653-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES MOULTRI         27.04         650         595.92

          122-5653-531        POSTAGE                           106.23       1,000         694.09

          122-5653-532        TELEPHONE                          54.85       3,000       2,274.43

          122-5653-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           13.87       1,750       1,691.57

          123-5582-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             24.26       1,000         367.17

          123-5582-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      2,465.00       3,500         915.00-  Y

          123-5582-540        ADVERTISING                        30.00       3,500       1,945.00

          123-5582-579        MISC. OTHER PURCHASED SERV        351.27       1,000         648.73

          123-5584-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    32.50         100          67.50

          123-5584-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      1,736.00       3,500       1,764.00

          123-5584-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            169.72       1,000         830.28

          123-5584-330        FOOD                               25.48         200         174.52

          123-5584-440        RENTALS                        13,150.00      19,000       5,850.00

          123-5584-531        POSTAGE                           100.03       1,000         779.49

          123-5584-540        ADVERTISING                     2,666.85      10,000       4,863.65

          123-5584-561        BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           78.21         300         133.96

          123-5584-574        SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES            179.74       1,000         820.26

          123-5584-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        589.88      15,000       9,874.16

          123-5584-832        BEER TENT                       2,090.06      12,000       2,436.71-  Y

          123-5584-833        QUEEN PAGEANT                     293.39       1,000         790.63

          123-5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT                  22,796.71      40,000      15,453.29

          125-5150-531        POSTAGE                            17.65           0          17.65-  Y

          128-5604-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        375.00       1,500       1,125.00

          128-5604-531        POSTAGE                             0.80           0           0.80-  Y

          211-5351-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            122.64       5,000       4,610.71

          211-5351-322        ELECTRICITY                         4.90         100          90.20

          211-5351-740        MACHINNERY & EQUIPMENT          5,667.95           0       5,667.95-  Y

          211-5352-730        IMPROVEMNTS OTHER THAN BUI     18,600.42     200,000       7,793.75

          211-5353-314        CHEMICALS                      10,482.43     190,000     129,147.99

          211-5353-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             94.59      20,000      19,707.94

          211-5353-322        ELECTRICITY                     4,108.55      55,000      47,037.90

          211-5353-377        PLANT EQUIPMENT                   116.58       7,500       7,322.34

          211-5353-378        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR                20.38       2,500       1,976.81

          211-5353-379        OTHER WATER MNTCE MATERIAL         23.52         500         404.93

          211-5353-432        REPAIR OF STRUCTURES            4,000.00      22,000       7,471.46

          211-5353-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         15.00       7,000       5,457.00

          211-5353-532        TELEPHONE                         208.54       3,500       2,668.94

          211-5354-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         554.99       1,000         274.81

          211-5354-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  85.24       3,000       2,498.96

          211-5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     141.62       4,000       3,804.71



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    35

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          211-5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            383.56       1,500       1,032.36

          211-5354-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         14,364.42      55,000      38,483.37

          211-5354-322        ELECTRICITY                       107.29       2,000       1,785.94

          211-5354-363        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA      3,306.50      15,000      11,693.50

          211-5354-374        SERVICE LINE MATERIALS          1,654.81      12,000      10,345.19

          211-5354-379        OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA        388.76      10,000       9,488.40

          211-5354-432        REPAIR OF STRUCTURES              715.50       3,400       2,275.94

          211-5354-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               117.45       8,000       7,704.60

          211-5354-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              3,552.42       3,000         949.53-  Y

          211-5354-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV         65.85       6,000       5,558.40

          211-5355-372        METER TILES, RIMS & LIDS          406.12       3,000         559.38

          211-5355-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE        607.00       6,039       5,432.00

          211-5355-531        POSTAGE                           652.28      14,000       9,391.26

          211-5355-532        TELEPHONE                         198.50       1,250         855.67

          211-5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      3,707.95      15,000       6,030.80

          211-5355-814        PRINTING/COPY MACH LEASE/M        210.44       1,750         897.18

          211-5355-815        POSTAGE METER LEASE & MAIN        369.99       1,250         800.32

          211-5356-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            575.54      20,000      18,275.96

          211-5356-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES      3,196.08      30,000      18,411.43

          212-5342-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         554.99       1,000         269.20

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     457.63      10,000       8,997.60

          212-5342-363        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA        509.40      10,000       4,356.70

          212-5342-369        OTHER SEWER MTCE SUPPLIES          74.90      10,000       9,172.08

          212-5342-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               110.50      10,000       9,589.50

          212-5342-439        OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC         18.35       5,000       3,340.44

          212-5342-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC      1,710.00      30,000      22,090.00

          212-5343-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM        139.23      23,000      22,373.66

          212-5343-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI        523.08       6,000       5,032.31

          212-5343-365        LIFT STATION REPAIR MATERI      2,370.00      30,000      23,629.85

          212-5343-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               720.08       8,000       6,260.02

          212-5344-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                   448.84       2,500       2,033.66

          212-5344-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 193.32       4,000       3,386.37

          212-5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 311.13      10,000       8,924.45

          212-5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            702.48      15,000      12,114.28

          212-5344-340        BOOKS & PERIODICALS               152.00         500          11.50-  Y

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI      2,930.49      40,000      31,486.23

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             4,909.30      40,000      27,131.65

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI      3,814.33      25,000      21,140.97

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC      5,692.50      25,000      13,336.18

          212-5344-532        TELEPHONE                         198.42       6,000       4,611.68

          212-5344-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    185,303.86     850,000     525,403.14

          212-5344-814        COPY MACHINE                       77.70       1,000         764.60

          212-5345-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE        607.00      10,065       9,458.00

          212-5345-531        POSTAGE                         2,208.09      12,500       8,058.83

          212-5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      3,707.95      15,000       6,030.80

          212-5346-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    891.28       3,300       2,408.72

          213-5361-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            100.93       2,200       1,928.71

          213-5361-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               114.99       2,000       1,592.96



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    36

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          213-5361-531        POSTAGE                             0.41         200         192.56

          213-5361-532        TELEPHONE                         114.26       2,500       2,037.27

                                TOTAL:                      477,526.26

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                      1,198.38

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                        1,623.76

                    110-130                 CITY ADMINISTRATOR                                  173.14

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                         12,535.28

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                    1,113.73

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                             7,678.37

                    110-180                 PLANNING & ZONING                                   370.20

                    110-190                 COUNCIL CONTINGENCY                                 647.00

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                             1,805.54

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                              202.90

                    110-213                 PATROL                                            1,251.31

                    110-221                 POLICE TRAINING                                   6,907.37

                    110-222                 COMMUNICATION SERVICES                            2,982.37

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                              10,720.86

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                  2,763.93

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                           15,227.44

                    110-261                 CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN                              243.48

                    110-280                 ANIMAL CONTROL                                    4,572.75

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                1,398.05

                    110-320                 STREETS                                          10,686.39

                    110-323                 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                            1,342.00

                    110-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                   2,433.97

                    110-327                 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                           1,171.56

                    110-331                 STREET CLEANING                                      34.73

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                                31.67

                    110-370                 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION                              74.23

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                1,779.58

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                     167.76

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                      448.00

                    110-388                 GARMENT FACTORY                                      14.89

                    110-505                 ARTS COUNCIL                                          2.46

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                               1,691.84

                    110-512                 LAKE ADMINISTRATION                                 902.75

                    110-521                 DEMARS CENTER                                        75.92

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                     5,559.05

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                       1,354.37



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    37

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-544                 CUNNINGHAM PARK                                      35.95

                    110-551                 BOYS COMPLEX                                      2,561.90

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                     3,622.57

                    110-553                 JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX                                 612.09

                    110-554                 LITTLE KINZEL PARK                                  215.11

                    110-556                 T-BALL COMPLEX                                    3,481.97

                    110-561                 EAST CAMPGROUND                                     190.00

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                         813.75

                    110-564                 BEACH AREA                                          140.00

                    110-651                 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                              8,323.86

                    110-652                 SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTR                        10,301.14

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                    131,485.37

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                            373.09

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                      373.09

                    123-582                 JULY 4TH FIREWORKS                                2,870.53

                    123-584                 BAGELFEST                                        43,908.57

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                               46,779.10

                    125-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                             17.65

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                              17.65

                    128-604                 MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                                375.80

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    128  TOTAL              MIDTOWN TIF FUND                                    375.80

                    211-351                 RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES                          5,795.49

                    211-352                 RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS                          18,600.42

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                            19,069.59

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                               25,438.41

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                           6,152.28

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          3,771.62

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       78,827.81

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                           3,435.77

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                               3,752.39

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                       204,734.37

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                           6,523.04

                    212-346                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                            891.28

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                      219,336.85

                    213-361                 MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS                            330.59

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    213  TOTAL              CEMETERY FUND                                       330.59

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     477,526.26



 8/03/2007 12:48 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    38

 

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               127 LAKE PARADISE CLEAN LAKES        500      OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                18,044.58

                                                                     ** PROJECT 127 TOTAL **         18,044.58

 

               146 WWTP AUTOM & MCC REPL            700      Property (Capital Assets)              185,303.86

                                                                     ** PROJECT 146 TOTAL **        185,303.86

 

    NO ERRORS



 8/03/2007 12:55 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3778MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: HOT MIX              090007         486.00

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3779MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: HOT MIX              090007         459.00

01-022400 HOWELL ASPHALT CO      I-3780MB             121 5321-353        BITUMINOUS PA: COLD MIX             090007         465.30

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67544              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 1100 S 19TH          090008         799.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67545              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 14TH & S LAWN        090008       1,118.61

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67548              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : BLAW KNOX            090008         679.15

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67550              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : S LAWN               090008         479.40

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67811              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 14TH & S LAWN        090008       1,128.63

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67812-B            121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 1108 EDGAR           090008         399.50

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67813              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : E RICHMOND           090008         479.40

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-67814              121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : RICHMOND & LOGAN     090008         519.35

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:       7,013.34

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0085-9             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : TRAFFIC PAINT        090009         397.25

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0113-9             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                090009         238.35

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0157-6             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : YELLOW PAINT         090009          79.45

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0271-5             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : TRAFFIC PAINT        090009          79.45

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0593-2             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT,THINNER,TRIM   090009         139.31

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-0633-6             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : THINNER,PAINT        090009          66.05

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-5150-1             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : WHITE PAINT          090009          79.45

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-9975-2             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT,STRAINER       090009          91.55

01-041800 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO    I-9983-6             121 5327-359        OTHER STREET : PAINT                090009          79.45

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 327   TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES  TOTAL:       1,250.31

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:       8,263.65

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       8,263.65



 8/03/2007 12:55 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 121-5321-351        CONCRETE                        5,603.04      15,200       8,348.48

          121-5321-353        BITUMINOUS PATCHING             1,410.30      30,310      14,841.86

          121-5327-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      1,250.31       7,500       5,931.89

                                TOTAL:                        8,263.65

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                           7,013.34

                    121-327                 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                           1,250.31

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                               8,263.65

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       8,263.65

    NO ERRORS



 8/03/2007 12:57 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: RLFBN

FUND      : 127  REVOLVING LOAN FUND

DEPARTMENT: 652  REVOLVING LOANS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-3636               127 5652-519        OTHER PROFESS: JUNE 07 RLF BILLING  090010          38.80

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 652   REVOLVING LOANS          TOTAL:          38.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 127   REVOLVING LOAN FUND      TOTAL:          38.80

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:          38.80



 8/03/2007 12:57 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 127-5652-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         38.80       2,500       2,116.30

                                TOTAL:                           38.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    127-652                 REVOLVING LOANS                                      38.80

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    127  TOTAL              REVOLVING LOAN FUND                                  38.80

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                          38.80

    NO ERRORS



 8/03/2007 12:53 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 411  STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200707201435       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS AGGREGATE  089771       1,063.92

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200707201435       221 5411-211        STOP LOSS INS: STOP LOSS SPECIFIC   089771       8,291.88

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 411   STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE   TOTAL:       9,355.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000221 PERSONALCARE INSURANCE I-200707201435       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: ADMIN FEES           089771      10,110.10

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:      10,110.10

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000794 EMC NATIONAL LIFE COMP I-200708011598       221 5417-212        LIFE INSURANC: AUGUST LIFE INS      090006       2,566.70

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 417   LIFE INSURANCE           TOTAL:       2,566.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:      22,032.60

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      22,032.60



 8/03/2007 12:53 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 221-5411-211        STOP LOSS INSURANCE             9,355.80     135,000     106,969.20

          221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION     10,110.10     160,000     125,823.94

          221-5417-212        LIFE INSURANCE                  2,566.70      30,500      22,799.90

                                TOTAL:                       22,032.60

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-411                 STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE                            9,355.80

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                10,110.10

                    221-417                 LIFE INSURANCE                                    2,566.70

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                            22,032.60

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      22,032.60

    NO ERRORS



 8/03/2007 12:52 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200707271518       221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,282.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:       1,282.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200707271518       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,853.90

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-200707271520       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DENTAL CLAIMS 7/12-1 000000       2,693.10

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       4,547.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       5,829.50

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       5,829.50



 8/03/2007 12:52 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION      1,282.50     160,000     125,823.94

          221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   4,547.00      80,000      58,205.69

                                TOTAL:                        5,829.50

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                 1,282.50

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     4,547.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             5,829.50

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       5,829.50

    NO ERRORS



 8/03/2007 12:56 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200707271487       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604684       1,562.15

01-000250 CARLE CLINIC ASSOC     I-200707311542       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE CLINIC ASSOC   604646         141.67

 

01-000251 CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSOC  I-200707271489       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSO 604686         193.81

01-000251 CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSOC  I-200707311545       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CHRISTIE CLINIC ASSO 604649         150.84

 

01-000252 MARIA HORVAT MD        I-200707311552       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARIA HORVAT MD      604656         557.81

 

01-000254 LAKELAND RADIOLOGISTS  I-200707271498       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LAKELAND RADIOLOGIST 604695         535.89

01-000254 LAKELAND RADIOLOGISTS  I-200707311558       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LAKELAND RADIOLOGIST 604662         141.25

 

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200707271501       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604698       7,205.54

01-000255 SARAH BUSH-HEALTH INS  I-200707311563       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SARAH BUSH-HEALTH IN 604667       4,894.33

 

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200707271502       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604699       4,087.44

01-000256 SBL PHYSICIAN BILLING  I-200707311564       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SBL PHYSICIAN BILLIN 604668       4,105.49

 

01-000257 SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTIC  I-200707311566       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SELVIDGE CHIROPRACTI 604670         106.31

 

01-000262 JAMES WILLIAMS CHIROPR I-200707311555       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES WILLIAMS CHIRO 604659          74.62

 

01-000265 JAMES KOHLMANN         I-200707271495       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JAMES KOHLMANN       604692          23.31

 

01-000278 LABCORP OF AMERICA HOL I-200707271496       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LABCORP OF AMERICA H 604693          59.16

01-000278 LABCORP OF AMERICA HOL I-200707271497       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LABCORP OF AMERICA H 604694          50.90

01-000278 LABCORP OF AMERICA HOL I-200707311557       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LABCORP OF AMERICA H 604661          96.22

 

01-000279 ST ANTHONYS MEM HOSP   I-200707271505       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ST ANTHONYS MEM HOSP 604702       1,533.93

01-000279 ST ANTHONYS MEM HOSP   I-200707311570       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: ST ANTHONYS MEM HOSP 604674         422.96

 

01-000283 BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC     I-200707271486       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC   604683          16.96

01-000283 BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC     I-200707311541       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BONUTTI ORTHOPEDIC   604645          61.63

 

01-000284 COLES CO MENTAL HEALTH I-200707271490       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: COLES CO MENTAL HEAL 604687         104.00

01-000284 COLES CO MENTAL HEALTH I-200707311547       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: COLES CO MENTAL HEAL 604651          57.81

 

01-000285 CARLE FOUNDATION       I-200707311543       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE FOUNDATION     604647          21.88

 

01-000286 TERRY A WARD           I-200707271508       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TERRY A WARD         604705          71.11

01-000286 TERRY A WARD           I-200707311575       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TERRY A WARD         604679         144.27

 

01-000295 FAMILY CARE ASSOC      I-200707271493       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: FAMILY CARE ASSOC    604690          71.40

 

01-000296 MARSHALL CLINIC EFFING I-200707271499       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MARSHALL CLINIC EFFI 604696         138.60

 

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200707271500       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604697         224.98



 8/03/2007 12:56 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000308 LELAND E MCNEILL MD    I-200707311560       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: LELAND E MCNEILL MD  604664         246.03

 

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200707271507       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604704         356.77

01-000311 UROLOGY ASSOCIATES     I-200707311574       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: UROLOGY ASSOCIATES   604678         141.01

 

01-000313 HELMS CHIROPRACTIC     I-200707271494       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HELMS CHIROPRACTIC   604691          29.55

 

01-000321 DONALD FREESMEIER DC   I-200707311550       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DONALD FREESMEIER DC 604654          44.07

 

01-000323 HUTTI CHIROPRACTIC CEN I-200707311553       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HUTTI CHIROPRACTIC C 604657         165.27

 

01-000325 CARL JOHNSON MD        I-200707311556       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARL JOHNSON MD      604660          87.28

 

01-000326 HARIKRISHNA P PATEL MD I-200707311561       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: HARIKRISHNA P PATEL  604665           9.96

 

01-000328 WILLIAM G SCHUBERT MD  I-200707271503       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM G SCHUBERT M 604700         828.52

01-000328 WILLIAM G SCHUBERT MD  I-200707311565       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: WILLIAM G SCHUBERT M 604669         200.84

 

01-000330 SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQUIP I-200707271506       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQU 604703           2.42

01-000330 SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQUIP I-200707311571       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SUPERIOR MEDICAL EQU 604675          39.68

 

01-000334 SIU PHYSICIANS         I-200707271504       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SIU PHYSICIANS       604701          17.02

01-000334 SIU PHYSICIANS         I-200707311568       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SIU PHYSICIANS       604672         176.74

 

01-000339 RUTH A CRADDOCK MD     I-200707311548       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: RUTH A CRADDOCK MD   604652          31.28

 

01-000380 SUZANNE TRUPIN MD      I-200707311573       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SUZANNE TRUPIN MD    604677         428.76

 

01-000389 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH      I-200707271485       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH    604682         113.60

 

01-000569 EFFINGHAM OPTHALMOLOGY I-200707271492       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: EFFINGHAM OPTHALMOLO 604689          11.42

 

01-000690 BASHAR ALZAHABI MD     I-200707271484       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: BASHAR ALZAHABI MD   604681         177.45

 

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200707271488       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604685          66.56

01-000723 CARLE PHYSICIAN SERVIC I-200707311544       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CARLE PHYSICIAN SERV 604648         120.74

 

01-001212 J R GOLD INC           I-200707311554       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: J R GOLD INC         604658         152.96

 

01-001279 TAMARAC MEDICAL INC    I-200707311572       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: TAMARAC MEDICAL INC  604676          40.00

 

01-001312 GIBSON AREA HOSPITAL   I-200707311551       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: GIBSON AREA HOSPITAL 604655          50.00

 

01-001355 SHELBY MEMORIAL HOSPIT I-200707311567       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: SHELBY MEMORIAL HOSP 604671       2,073.32

 

01-001384 MATTOON DIALYSIS       I-200707311559       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: MATTOON DIALYSIS     604663       6,711.25

 



 8/03/2007 12:56 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: PCBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 413  MEDICAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      7/16/2007 THRU  7/31/2007

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001490 CLINICAL RADIOLOGISTS  I-200707311546       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: CLINICAL RADIOLOGIST 604650           3.61

 

01-001609 RIVER TO RIVER HEART G I-200707311562       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: RIVER TO RIVER HEART 604666           1.78

 

01-001636 JOSEPH SOLAN DC        I-200707311569       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: JOSEPH SOLAN DC      604673          67.05

 

01-017610 RODNEY G FLEMING OD    I-200707311549       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: RODNEY G FLEMING OD  604653          11.26

 

01-050850 DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIATES I-200707271491       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: DR ZAVERI & ASSCOIAT 604688         131.45

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      39,393.92

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200707271509       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604706      17,286.75

01-000258 CAREMARK INC           I-200707311576       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : CAREMARK INC         604680      10,861.60

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      28,148.35

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:      67,542.27

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      67,542.27



 8/03/2007 12:56 PM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2007-2008 221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 39,393.92   1,050,000     690,517.05

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      28,148.35     460,000     348,195.05

                                TOTAL:                       67,542.27

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   39,393.92

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        28,148.35

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                            67,542.27

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      67,542.27

    NO ERRORS



 7-25-2007 11:09 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet:  9617 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  7/25/2007

 

                                                                  --------CHECK-------- ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- NUMBER ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

14-07800-04    BARRIENTOS, MANUEL           7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89793        20.81CR  100 31812          60.00CR

14-21600-08    GORRELL, DEREK D             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89794        48.81CR  100 31345          60.00CR

36-32000-02    SMITH, BILL B                7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89795        66.63CR  100 28303          60.00CR



 7-25-2007 11:07 AM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet:  9589 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  7/25/2007

 

                                                                  --------CHECK-------- ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- NUMBER ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

02-02700-08    PORTER JR, JAMES A           7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89773        46.44CR  100 30457          60.00CR

03-13510-14    FISCHER, TAMMY L             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89774        40.79CR  100 32253          60.00CR

05-12200-08    GOLDSTEIN, MICHAEL J         7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89775        48.97CR  100 31620          60.00CR

08-06100-05    WASSON, ANDREW S             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89776        28.23CR  100 31733          60.00CR

09-18610-05    DAILY APARTMENTS             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89777        13.04CR  000                 0.00

11-22910-14    SHOTTS, DUSTIN E             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89778        39.64CR  100 30900          60.00CR

13-16100-04    HANFLAND, CONNIE S           7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89779        50.63CR  100 31288          60.00CR

14-22110-05    DUKEMAN, MITCHELL D          7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89780        11.42CR  100 31033          60.00CR

15-06100-11    HASKAMP, ERIC M              7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89781        41.24CR  100 32028          60.00CR

20-24700-08    BUSHUE, JOYCE                7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89782        56.96CR  100 29547          60.00CR

21-02700-06    TRUE, BRIAN C                7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89783         6.40CR  100 31701          60.00CR

22-02000-09    RODRIGUEZ, JENNY L           7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89784        27.59CR  100 31385          60.00CR

23-09100-03    NUNAMAKER, JUNE A            7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89785        26.15CR  100 29686          60.00CR

25-27600-03    GARZA, GUADALUPE             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89786        19.43CR  100 27610          60.00CR

29-21600-15    CRAVENS, MITCHELL J          7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89787        20.40CR  100 31350          60.00CR

36-06100-11    ROGER SMITH, AMBER WILSON    7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89788        20.27CR  100 31495          60.00CR

36-12420-15    HEWELT, AMANDA E             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89789        48.34CR  100 32103          60.00CR

41-01210-10    WALK, CLINT P                7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89790        35.00CR  100 30759          60.00CR

41-01600-11    LAFFERTY, RYAN K             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89791        53.15CR  100 31181          60.00CR

41-20900-10    BROWN, ZACHARY R             7/25/07 FINAL BILL     89792        36.44CR  100 31252          60.00CR



 8-03-2007 12:35 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet:  9658 - Refunds:  7/27/2007                                                                  G/L POSTING DATE:  7/31/2007

 

                                                                  --------CHECK-------- ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- NUMBER ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

04-29800-06    PHIPPS, PATRICK A            7/31/07 DEMAND RETURN  90011        60.00CR  100 32376          60.00CR





NEW BUSINESS: 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1236 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE IN MINIMUM LOT SIZE 
REQUIREMENT AND A VARIANCE FOR A ZERO SIDE YARD SETBACK, ON ONE 
SIDE, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF ZERO LOT LINE HOUSING IN PHASE IV OF THE 

MEADOWS SUBDIVISION 
 
WHEREAS there has been filed a written Petition by Reginald Phillips for a variance in the 
minimum lot size and to the side-yard setback, respecting the property legally described as: 
 

 “EXHIBIT A” 
  
 Also known as: The Meadows Subdivision Phase IV, Mattoon, Illinois 
 
WHEREAS, said petition requests that variances be granted pursuant to applicable ordinances 
of the municipality to allow construction of zero lot line housing; and  
 
WHEREAS the City of Mattoon Zoning Ordinance requires a 5-foot side yard setback, of the 
primary structure; and 
 
WHEREAS the Zoning Board of Appeals held a properly noticed public hearing on July 3, 2007 
regarding petitioner’s request for said variances; and 
 
WHEREAS both the Planning Commission for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, and 
the Zoning Board of Appeals for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, have recommended 
that the requested variances be granted; and  
  
WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, deems that the 
recommended variances are in the public interest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority provided at Section §159.05 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances, the property legally described as aforesaid, be and the same is granted a variance in 
the minimum lost size requirement and a variance for a zero side yard setback, on one side, for 
the construction of zero lot line housing in Phase IV of the Meadows Subdivision 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  



 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ___ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007.  
 

___________________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007.  
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“EXHIBIT A” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
FOR 

THE MEADOWS PHASE IV 
 

 
 
A tract of land being part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 23, 
Township 12 North, Range 7 East, of the Third Principal Meridian, Coles County, Illinois, the 
boundary of which is described as follows, with bearing on local datum: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 97 of The Meadows Phase I as recorded in Book 5 at 
Page 144 as Document No. 577812 at the Coles County Recorder's Office; thence North 88° 56' 



31" East, 6.57 feet along the South line of said Lot 97 to the True Point of Beginning; thence 
North 88° 56' 31" East, 408.58 feet along the South line of said The Meadows Phase I and the 
South line of Lot 102 of Replat Elmwood Addition Lots 8, 9, 10, & 11 Phase I to the West line 
of 27th Street; thence North 00° 32' 37" West, 36.69 feet along said West line; thence North 88° 
35' 37" East, 234.21 feet along the South line of Elmwood Addition Phase I as recorded at the 
Coles County Recorder's Office to the East line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest 
Quarter of said Section 23; thence South 00° 23' 29" East, 788.08 feet along said East line to the 
South line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 23; thence South 
89° 39' 37" West, 482.81 feet along the said South line; thence North 00° 13' 08" West, 159.92 
feet; thence South 89° 46' 52" West, 12.00 feet; thence North 00° 13' 08" West, 185.00 feet; 
thence South 89° 46' 51" West, 150.00 feet; thence South 64° 03' 26" West, 83.25 feet; thence 
North 30° 13' 09" West, 10.00 feet; thence North 45° 21' 01" East, 49.01 feet; thence North 00° 
13' 09" West, 40.69 feet; thence North 00° 43' 27" East, 75.01 feet; thence North 13° 16' 34" 
East, 77.13 feet; thence South 89° 46' 51" West, 125.52 feet; thence 10.52 feet along a curve to 
the right, concave to the Southeast, having a radius of 370.00 feet and a chord bearing of North 
16° 14' 46" East; thence North 17° 03' 39" East, 30.15 feet; thence 8.86 feet along a curve to the 
left, concave to the Northwest, having a radius of 430.00 feet and a chord bearing of North 16° 
28' 14" East; thence North 89° 46' 51" East, 123.78 feet; thence North 08° 20' 55" East, 75.85 
feet; thence North 01° 01' 36" East, 76.78 feet to the True Point of Beginning, encompassing 
10.374 acres, more or less. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  HDC Engineering, L.L.C. 
   201 W. Springfield Ave. 
   Champaign, IL  61820 





CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1237 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE MEADOWS, 
PHASE III  

 
WHEREAS, Reginald and Martha Phillips as owners of the following described 
property: 
 

A tract of land being part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 23, Township 12 North, Range 7 East, of the Third Principal Meridian, Coles 
County, Illinois, the boundary of which is described as follows, with bearing on local 
datum: 
 
Beginning at the Northwest corner of The Meadows Phase II as recorded in Book 5 at 
Page 182 as Document No. 636144 at the Coles County Recorder's Office, point also 
being the Northwest corner of Lot 17 of said subdivision; thence South 00° 25' 29" 
East, 584.24 feet along the West line of said The Meadows Phase II boundary to the 
Southwest corner of Lot 95 of said The Meadows Phase II; thence South 88° 54' 01" 
West, 132.08 feet along the Westerly extension of the South line of said The 
Meadows Phase II; thence 21.79 feet along a curve to the right, concave to the 
Northwest, having a radius of 430.00 feet and a chord bearing of South 17° 13' 39" 
West; thence 8.89 feet along a curve to the left, concave to the Southeast, having a 
radius of 1,140.00 feet and a chord bearing of South 18° 27' 22" West; thence North 
71° 46' 02" West, 60.00 feet; thence North 81° 57' 31" West, 121.42 feet; thence 
South 00° 24' 22" East, 94.85 feet; thence South 28° 13' 37" East, 29.26 feet; thence 
South 73° 25' 38" East, 75.00 feet; thence 60.11 feet along a curve to the left, concave 
to the Southeast, having a radius of 1,200.00 feet and a chord bearing of South 10° 36' 
36" West; thence North 75° 58' 35" West, 115.00 feet; thence South 11° 58' 56" West, 
116.58 feet; thence North 89° 47' 08" West, 8.89 feet to the West line of the 
Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 23, Township 12 North, Range 
7 East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence North 00° 11' 37" East, 860.18 feet 
along said West line to the Northwest corner of said Southeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 23; thence North 88° 54' 02" East, 380.70 feet along the 
North line of said Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 23 to the 
Point of Beginning, encompassing 5.612 acres, more or less. 

 
has caused said premises to be surveyed and subdivided into lots and streets as shown 
on the plat submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance with the Statute 
of the State of Illinois in such made and provided; and 

 

WHEREAS, said plat of the subdivision to be known as The Meadows, Phase III, 
City of Mattoon, Coles County , Illinois has been submitted to the City Council of the 
City of Mattoon for approval in the manner as by law required, which plat is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof by reference thereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, it appears from an examination of said plat that the same is in due form as required 
by law and complies with all rules, regulations, and requirements relative to subdivisions in the 



City of Mattoon, Illinois, and that by said plat should be approved; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has 
recommended that said plat be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority, that the plat, of The Meadows, Phase III, to the City 
of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, be hereby approved and that a certificate of such approval be 
endorsed upon said plat signed by the Mayor and the City Clerk in the manner as provided by 
law. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007.  
 

___________________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007.  
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1238 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE MEADOWS, 
PHASE IV  

 
WHEREAS, Reginald and Martha Phillips as owners of the following described 
property: 
 

A tract of land being part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 23, Township 12 North, Range 7 East, of the Third Principal Meridian, Coles 
County, Illinois, the boundary of which is described as follows, with bearing on local 
datum: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 97 of The Meadows Phase I as recorded in 
Book 5 at Page 144 as Document No. 577812 at the Coles County Recorder's Office; 
thence North 88° 56' 31" East, 6.57 feet along the South line of said Lot 97 to the 
True Point of Beginning; thence North 88° 56' 31" East, 408.58 feet along the South 
line of said The Meadows Phase I and the South line of Lot 102 of Replat Elmwood 
Addition Lots 8, 9, 10, & 11 Phase I to the West line of 27th Street; thence North 00° 
32' 37" West, 36.69 feet along said West line; thence North 88° 35' 37" East, 234.21 
feet along the South line of Elmwood Addition Phase I as recorded at the Coles 
County Recorder's Office to the East line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest 
Quarter of said Section 23; thence South 00° 23' 29" East, 788.08 feet along said East 
line to the South line of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said 
Section 23; thence South 89° 39' 37" West, 482.81 feet along the said South line; 
thence North 00° 13' 08" West, 159.92 feet; thence South 89° 46' 52" West, 12.00 
feet; thence North 00° 13' 08" West, 185.00 feet; thence South 89° 46' 51" West, 
150.00 feet; thence South 64° 03' 26" West, 83.25 feet; thence North 30° 13' 09" 
West, 10.00 feet; thence North 45° 21' 01" East, 49.01 feet; thence North 00° 13' 09" 
West, 40.69 feet; thence North 00° 43' 27" East, 75.01 feet; thence North 13° 16' 34" 
East, 77.13 feet; thence South 89° 46' 51" West, 125.52 feet; thence 10.52 feet along 
a curve to the right, concave to the Southeast, having a radius of 370.00 feet and a 
chord bearing of North 16° 14' 46" East; thence North 17° 03' 39" East, 30.15 feet; 
thence 8.86 feet along a curve to the left, concave to the Northwest, having a radius of 
430.00 feet and a chord bearing of North 16° 28' 14" East; thence North 89° 46' 51" 
East, 123.78 feet; thence North 08° 20' 55" East, 75.85 feet; thence North 01° 01' 36" 
East, 76.78 feet to the True Point of Beginning, encompassing 10.374 acres, more or 
less. 

 
has caused said premises to be surveyed and subdivided into lots and streets as shown 
on the plat submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance with the Statute 
of the State of Illinois in such made and provided; and 

 

WHEREAS, said plat of the subdivision to be known as The Meadows, Phase IV, 
City of Mattoon, Coles County , Illinois has been submitted to the City Council of the 
City of Mattoon for approval in the manner as by law required, which plat is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof by reference thereto; and 



 
WHEREAS, it appears from an examination of said plat that the same is in due form as required 
by law and complies with all rules, regulations, and requirements relative to subdivisions in the 
City of Mattoon, Illinois, and that by said plat should be approved; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has 
recommended that said plat be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to enabling authority, that the plat, of The Meadows, Phase IV, to the City 
of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, be hereby approved and that a certificate of such approval be 
endorsed upon said plat signed by the Mayor and the City Clerk in the manner as provided by 
law. 
 
Section 2. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council.  
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4. The City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of this ordinance with the 
Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2007.  
 

___________________________________ 
       Charles E. White, Mayor 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk               J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007.  







 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1239 

 
AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 20’ WIDE ALLEY BETWEEN LOTS ONE (1), 

TWO (2), THREE (3), FOUR (4) AND LOTS SEVEN (7), EIGHT (8), NINE (9) IN 
BLOCK THREE OF URBAN HEIGHTS SUBDIVDION IN THE CITY OF MATTOON, 

COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
 

WHEREAS, David and Dawn Paulson has heretofore presented a Petition to the City Clerk to 
vacate an alley, which Petition requests that said alley be vacated by the City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, Illinois, and 
 
WHEREAS, said Petition was recommended for approval at a regular meeting of the Mattoon 
Planning Commission held June 11, 2007, and 
 
WHEREAS, said Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Mattoon Journal Gazette on 
July 19, 2007, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, has determined 
that the public interest will be served by vacating said alley. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, as follows:  
 
Section 1.  That the alley described as follows:  
 

That certain 20’ wide alley located between the West property line of Lots One (1), Two 
(2), Three (3) and Four (4) in Block Three (3) of Urban Heights Subdivision and the East 
property line of Lots Seven (7), Eight (8), and Nine (9) in Block Three (3) of Urban 
Heights Subdivision, Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 

Be and the same is hereby vacated by the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, a Municipal 
Corporation.  

 
Section 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after David and Dawn Paulson 
have tendered to the City of Mattoon an amount equivalent to the average of two appraisals of 
the fair market value of the alley premises. 
 
Section 3.  Dave and Dawn Paulson having made the entire payment of the average appraised 
value shall be and is vested to title of the vacated alley premises as authorized by 65 ILCS 5/11-
91-2.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 5. Upon becoming effective, the City Clerk shall make and file a duly certified copy of 
this ordinance with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Coles County, Illinois.  
 



Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2007.  
  

___________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Effective Date:  ____________________. 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on ______________________. 



Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 9

Lot 1

Lot2

Lot 3

Lot 4

Lot 5Lot 6

Richmond Ave.

N
o
rt

h
 2

n
d
 S

tr
e
e

t

N
o
rt

h
 1

s
t 
S

tr
e

e
t

SPECIAL ORDINANCE 2007-1239 
ALLEY VACATION - WAVE GRAPHICS



ORDINANCE NO. 2007-5236 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND 
SONTEJROH CORP., IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOUTH ROUTE 45 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

 

  WHEREAS, Sontejroh Corp. (the “Developer”), has submitted a proposal to the 

City of Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality's 

South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, 

thereafter, the Municipality and the Developer have engaged in negotiations related to a 

Redevelopment Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in connection therewith, the 

“Redevelopment Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and assistance related to 

the preservation, development and redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Project Area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

  Section 1.  Approval.  The Redevelopment Agreement, in substantially the form 

thereof presented before the meeting of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall 

be and is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized 

to execute and deliver the Redevelopment Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and 

upon the execution thereof by the Municipality and the Developer, the appropriate officers, 

agents, attorneys and employees of the Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental 

actions, including the execution and delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, 

agreements and instruments not inconsistent with the Redevelopment Agreement, desirable or 

necessary to implement and otherwise give full effect to the Redevelopment Agreement.  Upon 

full execution thereof, the Redevelopment Agreement shall be attached as an exhibit to this 

ordinance.  This shall also constitute a “reimbursement” action under Section 1.150-2 of the 

Federal Income Tax Regulations. 

  Section 2.  Bid Waiver.  Pursuant to Section 8-9-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code 

bidding requirements, if any, related to the Redevelopment Agreement and related documents 

and related contracts entered into or to be entered into shall be and are hereby waived.  The 

Developer shall be responsible for compliance with applicable law related to the Redevelopment 

Agreement, including without limitation the Prevailing Wage Act. 

  Section 3.  Effective.  Under Section 4-5-13 of the Illinois Municipal Code this 

Ordinance remained on file with the City Clerk for public inspection, in the form in which it 

finally passed, at least one week before final passage.  This ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect 10 days after its adoption and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by 

law. 

 



  Upon motion by __________________________, seconded by 

__________________________, adopted this 7th day of August, 2007, by roll call vote, as 

follows: 

AYES (Names): ____________________________________________________________

   ____________________________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________________________ 

NAYS (Names): ____________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT (Names): ____________________________________________________________ 

 

    Approved this 7th day of August, 2007. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)     _______________________________________ 
      Mayor, City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois 
Attest:       
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk, City of Mattoon, Coles County, 
Illinois 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality's Records on August 7, 2007. 



 
  

  
 

 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 
by and between the 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, 
 
 

And 
 

SONTEJROH CORP.,  
as Developer 

 
 

dated as of 
 

August 17, 2007 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
  

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 Page 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................................... 2 
1.1 Definitions. ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE II.  DEVELOPER DESIGNATION ....................................................................................................... 8 
2.1 Developer Designation. .................................................................................................................. 8 
2.2 Developer to Submit Costs............................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE III.  ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT .................. 8 
3.1 Development Project and Construction Schedule ....................................................................... 8 

3.2.1 Approval of Concept Site Plan........................................................................................ 9 
3.2.2 Changes ............................................................................................................................. 9 

3.4 Developer to Undertake the Development Project ...................................................................... 9 
3.4.1 Construction Contracts. ................................................................................................ 11 
3.4.2 Compliance with Applicable Law ................................................................................. 11 

3.5 Construction Plans. ...................................................................................................................... 11 
3.5.1 Submittal of Construction Plans. .................................................................................. 11 
3.5.2 Standards ........................................................................................................................ 11 
3.5.3 Review and Approval of Construction Plans. .............................................................. 11 

3.6 Changes. ........................................................................................................................................ 13 
3.7 Acquisition of Development Property by Negotiation............................................................... 13 
3.10 Village Approvals. ........................................................................................................................ 13 
3.11 Certification of Substantial Completion. .................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE IV.  PAYMENT OR REIMBURSEMENT OF REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS ............ 14 
ARTICLE VI.  COLLECTION AND USE OF TIF REVENUES........................................................................ 14 
ARTICLE VII.  GENERAL PROVISIONS ........................................................................................................... 15 

7.3 Assignment. ................................................................................................................................... 15 
7.4 Remedies. ...................................................................................................................................... 15 
7.5 Force Majeure. ............................................................................................................................. 15 
7.7 Notices. .......................................................................................................................................... 16 
7.8 Conflict of Interest. ...................................................................................................................... 17 
7.9 Insurance....................................................................................................................................... 17 
7.10 Inspection. ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
7.11 Choice of Law. .............................................................................................................................. 17 
7.12 Entire Agreement; Amendment. ................................................................................................. 17 
7.13 Counterparts................................................................................................................................. 17 
7.14 Severability. .................................................................................................................................. 18 
7.15 Representatives Not Personally Liable. ...................................................................................... 18 
7.16 Actions Contesting the Validity and Enforceability of the Redevelopment Plan. .................. 18 
7.17 Release and Indemnification. ...................................................................................................... 18 
7.18 Covenant to Comply with Applicable Laws. .............................................................................. 20 

ARTICLE VIII.  REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PARTIES.............................................................................. 21 
8.1 Representations of the Village. .................................................................................................... 22 
8.2 Representations of the Developer................................................................................................ 22 

 
 
 EXHIBITS 
 
EXHIBIT A Legal Description of Development Property 
EXHIBIT B Form of Certificate of Substantial Completion 
EXHIBIT C Form of Certificate of Qualified Project Costs 
EXHIBIT D Concept Site Plan 
EXHIBIT E Redevelopment Activities/Qualified Project Costs 



 
 

 
  

EXHIBIT F Form of TIF Note 
 
 
 



 

 

1  

 REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 17th  day of 
August, 2007, by and between the CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois (the 
“Municipality”), and SONTEJROH CORP., an Illinois corporation (the “Developer”).  (All capitalized terms used herein, 
other than proper nouns, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in  Article I of this Agreement, except as they may be 
defined elsewhere in this Agreement.) 
 
 RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Chapter 65,  Sections 5/11-74.4-1 through 
5/11-74.4-11 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), the City Council, (i) by Ordinance 
Nos. 2007-5229, 2007-5230,  and 2007-5231 adopted on April 17, 2007 (as supplemented and amended, collectively the 
“Approving Ordinances”), (i) approved a redevelopment plan and project titled “Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment 
Plan and Project” (the “Redevelopment Plan,” and includes the related “Redevelopment Project”), (ii) designated the “South 
Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area” within the Municipality (the “Redevelopment Area”), and (iii) adopted tax increment 
allocation finance (“TIF”) for the Redevelopment Area, all as set forth in the Approving Ordinances and in accordance with 
the requirements of the Act and (ii) by Ordinance No. 2007-5232, adopted April 17, 2007 (the “BD Ordinance”), adopted the 
“Business District Plan, South Route 45” (the “BD Plan”), under Business District Development and Redevelopment (65 ILCS 
5/11-74.3-1 et. seq.,  as supplemented and amended, the “BD Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the redevelopment of a part of the Redevelopment Area, the Developer proposes to 
undertake the redevelopment of a portion of the Redevelopment Area (the “Proposal”) constituting approximately 7.5 acres on 
a part of the Redevelopment Area to be owned, acquired, or otherwise controlled by the Developer and developed and 
redeveloped  as provided in this Agreement (the “Development Property,” as described in Exhibit A to this Agreement); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to redevelop the Development Property and make certain infrastructure 
improvements all as set forth in the Redevelopment Plan and in this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of the Act, the Municipality is authorized to make and enter into all contracts 
necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan, to pay directly or to issue one or 
more TIF Notes (each a “TIF Note”) as evidence of the Municipality’s special and limited obligation to pay certain 
redevelopment project costs incurred in furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan (the “Redevelopment Project Costs”), and to 
apply TIF Revenues and/or to pledge certain TIF Revenues to the payment of the TIF Notes; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan and the Act, the City Council approved and adopted 
Ordinance No. 2007-5236 on August 7, 2007, authorizing this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby ratifies and affirms its determination that the approval of the Redevelopment 
Plan and the BD Plan and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement are in the best interests of the Municipality, and the 
health, safety, morals and welfare of its residents, and in accord with the public purposes set forth in the Redevelopment Plan, 
the BD Plan and the Act. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  2 

 AGREEMENT 
 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the above premises and the promises contained herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, each party hereto hereby agrees as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS} 

1.1 Definitions.{tc \l2 "1.1 Definitions.}  As used in this Agreement, the following words and terms shall have 
the following meanings: 
 

“Act” or “TIF Act” means the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Chapter 65, Sections 5/11-74.4-1 
through 5/11-74.4-11 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, as amended. 
 

“Agreement” means this Redevelopment Agreement, as the same may be from time to time in writing modified, 
amended, or supplemented by the Municipality and the Developer. 

 

“Applicable Building Codes”  shall have the meaning in paragraph 3.3 of this Agreement. 

 
 “Authorized Developer Representative” means the individuals executing this Agreement (or such other persons, 
designated in writing filed with the City Clerk) who shall have full authority on behalf of the Developer to execute all further 
and supplemental documents, instruments and agreements, to give all consents and approvals, and to take all further 
supplemental actions, to give full effect for the Developer to this Agreement. 
 
 “Authorized Municipal Representative” means the Mayor (or the Mayor’s designee in writing filed with the City 
Clerk), who shall have full authority on behalf of the Municipality to the extent lawful to execute all further and supplemental 
documents, instruments and agreements, to give all consents and approvals, and to take all further supplemental actions, to give 
full effect for the Municipality to this Agreement. 
 

“Available Revenues” means, net of all amounts constituting Surplus, as herein defined,  all amounts constituting ad 
valorem taxes, if any, arising from the levies upon taxable real property in the Development Property by taxing districts and tax 
rates determined in the manner provided in paragraph (c) of Section 11-74.4-9 of the TIF Act attributable to the increase in the 
current equalized assessed valuation of each taxable lot, block, tract or parcel of real property in the Development Property over 
and above the initial equalized assessed value of each property in the Development Property Area shall be allocated to and 
when collected shall be paid to the Municipality’s treasurer who shall credit such taxes to the “Special Tax Allocation Fund” 
to be deposited into the Development Account or the Municipality Account, as the case may be, of the Special Allocation Fund 
in accordance with this Agreement, as provided in paragraph 5.1 of this Agreement. 
 
 “BD  Act” means Business District Development and Redevelopment, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.3-1 et. seq., as supplemented 
and amended. 
 
 “BD Costs” means Business District Costs under the BD Plan. 
 
 “BD Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 2007-5232 adopted April 17, 2007. 
 
 “BD Plan” means the Business District Plan approved under the BD Ordinance. 
 
 “Business District” means the South Route 45 Business District designated under the BD Act and the BD Ordinance. 
 



 

 

  3 

“Certificate of Qualified Project Costs” means one or more documents substantially in the form of  Exhibit C, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, delivered by the Developer to the Municipality in accordance with this 
Agreement and evidencing Qualified Project Costs incurred in furtherance of implementation of the Redevelopment Activities. 
 

“Certificate of Substantial Completion” means one or more documents substantially in the form of  Exhibit B, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, delivered by the Developer to the Municipality in accordance with this 
Agreement and evidencing the Developer’s satisfaction of all obligations and covenants to implement all or the specified 
functional portion of the Redevelopment Activities. 
 
 “Commencement” “commence” and similar terms with respect to the Development Project means that (i) there are 
fully executed contract(s) for the complete construction of the Private Development; and (ii) the Developer has financing for 
the entire Private Development subject to no conditions precedent to any claims thereon; and (iii) that the contractor for the 
Private Development has fully mobilized on the Development Property. 
 

“Concept Site Plan” means a preliminary plan sheet, attached to this Agreement as  Exhibit D and incorporated by 
reference herein, depicting the conceptual program for the Private Development and other improvements to be constructed in 
accordance with the Redevelopment Plan and this Agreement. 
 

“Construction Advances” means the amount of any Certificate of Qualified Project Costs delivered by the Developer 
to the Municipality in accordance with paragraph 5.1.3 of this Agreement, which amount represented by such Certificate of 
Qualified Project Costs has been approved by the Municipality and for which TIF Notes or other payment or reimbursement 
shall be provided by the Municipality, subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement. 
 

“Development Inspector” means members of the Municipality’s Code enforcement department. 
 

“Development Plans” means plans, drawings, specifications, cost estimates,  construction schedules and related 
documents for the acquisition, construction and installation  of the Development Project and related, together with all 
supplements, amendments or corrections thereto, submitted by the Developer in accordance with this Agreement. 
 

“Developer” means Sontejroh Corp., an Illinois corporation, or its successors or assigns in interest as authorized by 
this Agreement. 
 

“Development Account” means the account by that name in the Special Allocation Fund related to the Development 
Property. 

 
“Development Inspector” means the Municipality’s applicable code enforcement department personnel.  
 
“Development Project” means the Private Development Infrastructure and related facilities and improvements 

described in the Concept Site Plan, and this Agreement, including without limitation the implementation of the Redevelopment 
Activities within the Development Property. 
 

“Development Property” means the real property owned, acquired or otherwise controlled by the Developer, 
constituting approximately 7.5 acres, on which the Private Development is to be constructed, located in the Redevelopment 
Area and in the Business District, as further described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

“Development TIF Notes” or “TIF Notes” means one or more of the Promissory Notes issued from time to time by 
the Municipality pursuant to and subject to this Agreement  in substantially the form as set forth in Exhibit H, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, to evidence the Municipality’s special and limited obligation to pay or reimburse the 



 

 

  4 

Developer for Qualified Project Costs incurred by the Developer on behalf of the Municipality in accordance with this 
Agreement and the TIF Act.  
 

 “Governing Body” means the Municipality’s City Council. 
 

“Infrastructure” means the acquisition, construction and installation by the Developer of public infrastructure, 
facilities and improvements within or adjacent to the Development Property, as follows:  all generally applicable public 
facilities, improvements and related costs, including water, sanitary sewer, streets, curbs, gutters, water drainage and street 
lighting, to be in compliance with the Municipality’s generally applicable subdivision and other applicable development 
ordinances, codes and regulations, as shown in the Development Plans. 
 

“Material Changes” means those changes that could reasonably be expected to result in a decrease of at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the aggregate amount of Available Revenues generated within the Development Property. 

 
“Municipal Infrastructure” means, if any, the acquisition, construction and installation by the Municipality of public 

infrastructure, facilities and improvements within  or adjacent to the Development Property, under this Agreement. 
 

“Municipality” means the City of Mattoon, Illinois, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of Illinois. 
 

“Municipality Account” means the account by that name within in the Special Allocation Fund established by this 
Agreement. 
 

“Municipality Approvals” means all plat approvals, re-zoning or other zoning changes, site plan approvals, conditional 
use permits, building permits, storm water management plan approvals or other subdivision, zoning, building or similar 
approvals required for the implementation of the Development Plans and the Development Project and consistent with the Act, 
the Concept Site Plan, and this Agreement. 
 

“Municipal Attorney” means the Municipality’s duly selected City Attorney or any attorney at law or a firm of 
attorneys acceptable to the Municipality in general matters pertaining to municipal law and duly admitted to the practice of law 
before the highest court of the State of Illinois. 
 
 “Order and Timing of Payment of Municipal Financial Incentives” means to the extent that the Developer has 
secured proper title to the Development Property to be redeveloped and has appropriately documented such expenditures and 
property title according to the Redevelopment Agreement, the Municipality shall pay the TIF Note, to be held by the Developer 
against its advance of funds for up to $560,000 of qualifying Redevelopment Project Costs upon the Municipality’s approval of 
the Developer’s progress in achieving substantial completion of the Development Project, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 

 “Paying Agent” means, for Notes, the City Treasurer, or his/her designee. 
 

“Payment Date” means each June 1 (or such date as extended by the number of days after the date required by 
applicable law for the issuance of general property tax bills in Coles County that such bills are actually issued) and December 
1, or if either of such days is not a business day, the first business day thereafter, beginning with the first Payment Date after the 
Municipality’s acceptance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion until the earlier of repayment or the maturity date of the 
TIF  Notes. 
 

“Private Development” means the private commercial and other trade business facilities to be acquired, constructed 
and installed as a part of the Development Project on the Development Property by the Developer, as follows:  (i) a first class 



 

 

  5 

hotel with not less than 88-room capacity, with appurtenant facilities; and (ii) an attached 4,000 net sq. ft. banquet center; and 
(iii) a separate 2,000 sq. ft. retail and/or restaurant structure. 

 



 

 

  6 

“Qualified Project Costs” means only those costs associated with the Redevelopment Activities that are qualified 
under Article IV hereof, which shall not exceed the aggregate sum set forth in  Exhibit E, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 

“Redevelopment Area” means the Municipality’s South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area as described in the  
Redevelopment Plan. 
 

“Redevelopment Activities” means the Municipal Infrastructure to be acquired, constructed and installed by the 
Municipality, if any, and the Infrastructure, if any, and the Private Development, to be acquired, constructed and installed by 
the Developer set forth and as more fully described in Exhibit E, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and as 
incorporated in, the Concept Site Plan, and Development Plans. 
 
 “Redevelopment Plan” means the redevelopment plan titled the “Redevelopment Plan and Project” for the 
Redevelopment Area duly approved and adopted by the City Council pursuant to the Approving Ordinances on April 17, 2007, 
and as such Redevelopment Plan has been amended and may be amended from time to time. 
 

“Redevelopment Project” means the redevelopment project described in the Redevelopment Plan. 
 

“Redevelopment Project Costs” means and includes, subject to this Agreement, the sum total of all reasonable or 
necessary costs incurred or estimated to be incurred in undertaking Redevelopment Activities and any such costs incidental to 
the Redevelopment Plan and the Redevelopment Project, which include, subject to the Redevelopment Plan, the 
“redevelopment project costs” under Section 11-74.4-3(8) of the TIF Act in connection with the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of the Development Project in the manner provided by the TIF Act and paragraph 4.8 of this Agreement. 
 



 

 

  7 

 “Special Allocation Fund” means the “Special Tax Allocation Fund” for the Municipality’s Redevelopment Project 
Area. 
 

“Special TIF Counsel” means an attorney at law or a firm of attorneys acceptable to the Municipality of nationally 
recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt nature of interest on obligations issued by states and their political 
subdivisions duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any state of the United States of America or the 
District of Columbia. 
 

“Surplus” means that portion of TIF Revenues declared to be (or required by applicable law to be declared surplus or 
paid) surplus or paid (i) by the Municipality or (ii) by operation of applicable law, and to be passed through to each affected 
taxing district on a pro rata basis or otherwise as required by applicable law. 
 
 “TIF Note” means each note obligation of the Municipality, in substantially the form set forth in Schedule F, which 
shall bear interest at not to exceed the interest rate of the Developer’s financing(s) for the Infrastructure. 

 

“TIF Revenues” means all moneys constituting incremental taxes derived from the Redevelopment Project Area on 
deposit in the designated accounts of  the Special Allocation Fund in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan and the TIF Act. 
 

 



 

 

  8 

 ARTICLE II.  DEVELOPER DESIGNATION 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE II.  DEVELOPER DESIGNATION} 

2.1 Developer Designation.{tc \l2 "2.1 Developer Designation.}  The Municipality hereby selects the 
Developer to serve as the Municipality’s agent in connection with the acquisition, construction and installation of the 
Redevelopment Activities on its part to be acquired, constructed and installed under this Agreement in accordance with (i) the 
Act, (ii) the Redevelopment Plan, (iii) the Redevelopment Project, (iv) this Agreement, and (v) the Concept Site Plan.  Any 
conflict among any of the aforementioned documents shall be resolved by giving preference to the documents in the foregoing 
order (i) – (v), with the Act being given the highest preference. 
 

2.2 Developer to Submit Costs.{tc \l2 "2.2 Developer to Submit Costs.}  The Developer agrees to submit a 
requisition for payment by the Municipality of Qualified Project Costs as necessary to complete the Redevelopment Activities, 
all subject to the Developer’s right to abandon the Development Project and terminate this Agreement as set forth in 
paragraph 7.1 of this Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, simultaneously with the issuance of or 
endorsement of a draw upon one or more  TIF Notes, the Developer shall advance to the Municipality an amount equal to the 
Qualified Project Costs which amount the Municipality shall either (i) immediately apply to such Qualified Project Costs or (ii) 
keep in a separate sub-account of the Developer Account of the Special Allocation Fund and which the Municipality shall use 
solely for the purpose of paying such costs incurred with respect to the related TIF Notes.  All amounts so advanced to the 
Municipality by the Developer shall constitute Qualified Project Costs and shall be eligible for payment or reimbursement 
exclusively from the proceeds of TIF Notes issued in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Article IV and Article V 
of this Agreement.   

 
2.3. TIF Payments.  The Developer shall not receive any TIF payments hereunder or payment on any TIF Note 

until timely substantial completion of the Private Development under paragraph 3.1.1.  The Developer shall fund the TIF 
Notes from time to time to advance funds for Qualified Project Costs under this Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE III.  ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE III.  ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT} 

3.1 Development Project and Schedules{tc \l2 "3.1 Development Project and Construction Schedule}.  
The Developer shall commence its obligations under this Agreement with respect to the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of its Redevelopment Activities and the Development Project. 

 
 3.1.1. The Developer shall commence and complete the acquisition, construction and installation of the 

Development Project in accordance with a development schedule, as follows: 
 
Activity Commencement Date Completion Date 
   
Preliminary Concept Plan ------------ Completed 
Final Concept Plan 09/15/07 10/15/07 
Construction Plans 09/15/07 10/15/07 
Financing 09/15/07 10/15/07 
Construction 09/16/07 01/15/08 
 



 

 

  9 

 3.1.2. Development Project sources & uses of funds: 
 

Activity  Costs  

   
Real Estate Acquisition  $    465,000 
Hotel-Renovation  $ 1,923,000 
Service Station-Redevelopment  $      60,000 
Furniture, Fixtures, & Equipment  $    450,000 
Soft Costs  $    157,000 
   
 Total: $ 3,055,000 
   
Sources of Funds:   
   
Developer Equity  $    500,000 
Developer Financing  $ 2,010,000 
Municipal Incentive (Under this 
Agreement) 

 $    560,000 

   
 Total: $ 3,055,000 
 
 3.2 Concept Site Plan. 
 

3.2.1 Approval of Concept Site Plan{tc \l3 "3.2.1 Approval of Concept Site Plan}.  The Concept Site 
Plan attached hereto as Exhibit D is hereby approved. 

 
3.2.2 Changes{tc \l3 "3.2.2 Changes}.  During the progress of the Redevelopment Activities and 

Development Project, the Developer and the Municipality may authorize changes to the Concept Site Plan or any aspect thereof 
as may be in furtherance of the general objectives of the Redevelopment Plan and this Agreement and as site conditions or 
other issues of feasibility may dictate or as may be required to meet the reasonable requests of prospective tenants or owners or 
as may be necessary or desirable in the sole determination of the Developer  and the Municipality to enhance the economic 
viability of the Development Project; provided, however, that the Developer may not make any Material Changes to the 
Concept Site Plan, whether individually with respect to any phase or in the aggregate, without the advance written consent of 
the Municipality. 

 
Neither the Developer nor any contractor shall have any claim against the Special Allocation Fund or the 

Business District Tax Allocation Fund.  
 

3.3 Developer to Undertake the Development Project{tc \l2 "3.4 Developer to Undertake the Development 
Project}.  The Developer, as the agent of the Municipality in connection with Infrastructure, shall undertake the 
Redevelopment Activities, and shall commence and complete the Development Project, in each case in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement.  The Developer shall undertake and complete the Redevelopment Activities and the Development 
Project in a good and workmanlike manner according to the schedule in paragraph 3.1.1.  Except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein, the Developer shall have discretion and control, free from interference, interruption or disturbance, in all 
matters relating to the management, development, redevelopment and construction of the Development Project, provided that 
the same shall, in any event, conform to and comply with the terms and conditions of the Concept Site Plan, the Redevelopment 
Plan and this Agreement, and all applicable state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, including without limitation 
applicable zoning, subdivision, land use, building, fire, environmental and other applicable development codes (collectively 
“Applicable Building Codes”), subject to any variances and governmental approvals. 



 

 

  10 

 



 

 

  11 

3.3.1 Construction Contracts.{tc \l3 "3.4.1 Construction Contracts.}  The Developer may enter into one 
or more construction contracts to complete the Redevelopment Activities and the Development Project.  Prior to execution of 
any acquisition or construction contract, the Developer shall provide satisfactory documentation to the Municipality evidencing 
that such contractor has agreed that it has no recourse against the Special Allocation Fund or any other Municipality funds and 
any recourse of any such contractor against the Municipality is limited to any mechanic’s lien rights such contractor may have 
against the Development Property or the Developer.  Prior to the commencement of the Redevelopment Activities, the 
Developer shall obtain, or shall ensure that any such contractor obtain workers’ compensation, comprehensive public liability 
and builder’s risk insurance coverage in amounts customary in the industry for similar type projects and as provided in 
paragraph 7.9 of this Agreement.  Prior to commencement of the Redevelopment Activities or simultaneously with the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Developer, whichever is later, the Developer shall deliver to the Municipality 
evidence of all insurance to be maintained by such contractor as required by this Section.  Developer shall ensure that the 
insurance required is maintained by any such contractor for the duration of the implementation of the Redevelopment 
Activities. 

 
Neither the Developer nor any contractor shall have any claim against the Special Allocation Fund or the 

Business District Tax Allocation Fund, except as expressly provided in this Agreement. 
 

3.3.2 Compliance with Applicable Law{tc \l3 "3.4.2 Compliance with Applicable Law}.  Prior to the 
execution of any contract with contractors for construction or installation in connection with the Redevelopment Activities 
pursuant to paragraph 3.4.1 of this Agreement, the Developer shall comply with all applicable laws, including without 
limitation those laws pertaining to environmental, bidding and contracting, prevailing wages, performance, labor and material 
payment bonds, and applicable Building Codes.  Subject to the foregoing, the Developer, as the Municipality’s agent with 
respect to the acquisition, construction and installation of the Infrastructure,  may select such contractors as it deems fit. 
 

3.4 Construction Plans.{tc \l2 "3.5 Construction Plans.}  The Developer shall not commence any 
Redevelopment Activities without obtaining the approval of the Development Inspector of  Development Plans relating to such 
Redevelopment Activities, as further provided in this paragraph 3.4. 
 

3.4.1 Submittal of Construction Plans.  {tc \l3 "3.5.1 Submittal of Construction Plans.  }The 
Developer shall submit Development Plans for approval by the Development Inspector prior to the initiation of the portions of 
the Redevelopment Activities contemplated by such Development Plans. 
 

3.4.2 Standards{tc \l3 "3.5.2 Standards}.  The Development Plans shall be prepared by a professional 
engineer or architect licensed to practice in the State of Illinois and the Development Plans and all construction practices and 
procedures with respect to the Redevelopment Activities shall be in conformity with all applicable state and local laws, 
ordinances and regulations, including without limitation any performance, labor and material payment bonds required for the 
Redevelopment Activities.  Development Plans shall be submitted for approval by the Development Inspector in sufficient 
completeness and detail to show that the Redevelopment Activities will be in general conformance with the Concept Site Plan 
and in accordance with the provisions of the Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Project, the Redevelopment Plan and this 
Agreement.  The Development Inspector may condition approval of Development Plans relating to Redevelopment Activities 
on the satisfaction of conditions of other applicable  governmental agencies. 
 

3.4.3 Review and Approval of Development Plans.{tc \l3 "3.5.3 Review and Approval of 
Construction Plans.}  The Development Inspector shall approve or reject in writing the Development Plans according to the 
standards set forth in paragraph 3.4.2 of this Agreement within twenty-one (21) days after submittal by the Developer; 
otherwise, the Development Plans shall be deemed approved.  The Development Inspector shall reject Development Plans only 
if, in the reasonable exercise of the Development Inspector’s discretion, the Development Inspector finds that the Development 
Plans show that construction will not be in general conformance with the Concept Site Plan and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Redevelopment Plan and this Agreement.  Any such rejection shall specify any and all deficiencies in the 



 

 

  12 

Development Plans relating to lack of conformity with the Concept Site Plan, the Redevelopment Plan or this Agreement and 
with Applicable Building Codes, ordinances and regulations; provided that the Development Inspector’s failure to specify 
deficiencies in the Development Plans relating to the codes, ordinances and regulations of the Municipality shall not relieve the 
Developer of its obligations to perform the Redevelopment Activities in accordance therewith.  Within thirty (30) days after the 
date the Developer receives written notice of the Development Inspector’s rejection of the Development Plans referred to in the 
latest such notice, the Developer shall submit new or revised Development Plans.  The provisions of this Section relating to 
approval, rejection and resubmittal of the Development Plans shall continue to apply to resubmittal of corrected Development 
Plans until the Development Plans have been approved by the Development Inspector.  The Developer shall ensure that all 
construction work by the Developer or its agents or independent contractors pursuant to Article III of this Agreement shall be 
in substantial conformity with the Development Plans as finally approved by the Development Inspector. 
 



 

 

  13 

3.5 Changes.  {tc \l2 "3.6 Changes.  }During the progress of the Development Project, the Developer may make 
such reasonable changes , including, without limitation, modification of the construction schedule, including dates of 
commencement and completion within the limitations otherwise set forth in this Agreement, modification of the areas in which 
the Development Project is to be performed, relocation, expansion or deletion of items, and such other changes to the 
Development Plans as site conditions or orderly development may dictate or as may be required to meet any reasonable 
requests of prospective tenants or purchasers of any portion of the Development Property, or as may be necessary or desirable 
to enhance the economic viability of the Development Project; provided that any such changes shall be in accordance with the 
general objectives of, and shall be in substantial conformity with, the Development Project as provided in the Concept Site 
Plan, the Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Project, and this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer 
shall not make any changes pursuant to this Section that will result in a Material Change to the Concept Site Plan unless the 
Developer obtains the advance written consent of the Municipality pursuant to Paragraph 3.2.2 of this Agreement.  
 

3.6 Acquisition of Development Property.  {tc \l2 "3.7 Acquisition of Development Property by 
Negotiation.  }The Developer represents to the Municipality that, prior to the date of this Agreement, it has assembled all of the 
Development Property by negotiated purchase. The Developer has obtained all title commitments, inspections, tests, surveys 
and reports, hire and retain all experts, professionals, including attorneys or engineers and staff, and cause to be paid, pay or 
advance all acquisition costs as may be necessary to acquire the Development Property and to assure that the Development 
Property is appropriate for the Private Development.  
 

3.7 Municipality Approvals.{tc \l2 "3.10 Village Approvals.}  The Municipality agrees to cooperate with the 
Developer and to expeditiously process and timely consider all applications for Municipality Approvals as received, all in 
accordance with the applicable ordinances, codes and regulations of the Municipality and laws of the State of Illinois, and to 
take all further actions on Municipality Approvals (after processing in accordance with applicable laws and ordinances) as are 
consistent with the Concept Site Plan, the Redevelopment Plan, the  BD Plan and this Agreement. 
 



 

 

  14 

3.8 Certification of Substantial Completion.{tc \l2 "3.11 Certification of Substantial Completion.}  Promptly 
after substantial completion of all or a functional portion of the Redevelopment Activities in accordance with the provisions of 
this Agreement, the Developer shall so certify by furnishing to the Development Inspector a Certificate of Substantial 
Completion in the form of Exhibit B to this Agreement.  Such certification by the Developer and acceptance by the 
Development Inspector shall be a conclusive determination of the  substantial satisfaction of the Developer’s agreements and 
covenants to implement, as applicable, all or the specified functional portion of the Redevelopment Activities.  The accepted 
Certificate of Substantial Completion may be recorded by the Developer in the office of the Coles County Recorder.  If the 
Development Inspector shall refuse or fail to accept such Certification, the Development Inspector shall, within fifteen (15) 
days after written request by the Developer, provide to the Developer a written statement stating in adequate detail in what 
respects the Developer has failed to complete the applicable  Redevelopment Activities in reasonable accordance with the 
Concept Site Plan, the Redevelopment Plan, and/or this Agreement, or is otherwise in default, and what reasonable measures or 
acts the Developer must take or perform, in the opinion of the Development Inspector, to obtain such acceptance. 

 
3.9 Refunding TIF Notes. Within 45 days of submission of a Certificate of Substantial Completion of the Private 

Development, and upon the Developer’s written request, the Municipality will refund the TIF Notes up to $560,000 by 
applying proceeds of TIF revenue bonds (or other legally available funds). 
 
 ARTICLE IV.  RELATED ACTIVITIES. 
 
 4.1 Related Municipal Activities. 
 

4.1.1.  Promotional.  The Municipality will assist in promotional activities in connection with the attractions 
of participants and uses of tourism, convention, conference and hotel/motel facilities in the Mattoon/Charleston area.{tc 
\l1 "ARTICLE IV.  PAYMENT OR REIMBURSEMENT OF REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS} 

 
 ARTICLE V.  COLLECTION AND USE OF TIF REVENUES 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE VI.  COLLECTION AND USE OF TIF REVENUES} 

5.1 Special Allocation Fund.  The Municipality agrees to maintain the Special Allocation Fund, including the 
following accounts and such further accounts as the Municipality may deem appropriate in connection with the administration 
of the Special Allocation Fund pursuant to this Agreement: (A)  Development Account, and within it  (i) with respect to each 
TIF Note, a  debt service, (ii) a qualified project costs sub-account, and (iii) an interest subsidy sub-account;  and (B) the 
Municipality Account.  All TIF Revenues shall be credited to the Special Allocation Fund.  The Available Revenues shall be 
those TIF Revenues attributable to the Development Property, less any amounts payable to the Municipality as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement.  Available Revenues to pay (x) debt service on a TIF Note shall be deposited into the debt service 
sub-account; (y) Qualified Project Costs other than debt service or interest subsidy shall be deposited into the Qualified Projects 
Costs sub-account; and (z) interest subsidy under Section 11-74.4-3 (g) (ii) of the TIF Act shall be deposited into the interest 
subsidy sub-account.  All TIF Revenues in excess of the required deposits to the Development Account shall be deposited into 
the Municipality Account.   
While any TIF Note is outstanding and unpaid, Available Revenue shall be deposited into the debt service sub-account, and 
otherwise shall be deposited into (y) or (z) above as the Developer directs, into (y) if there is no direction, and into the 
Municipality Account if bonds are issued under paragraph 3.9 to refund the TIF Notes. 

 
5.2  Verification of Available Revenues.  Unless TIF Notes are refunded as herein provided on or before 

November 1 in each calendar year, commencing November 1, 2008 it shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer to 
provide to the Municipality true, correct and complete copies of real estate tax bills for each lot, block, tract and parcel 
constituting the Development Property for the levy year prior to the calendar year of each such November, together with 
evidence of payment.  The failure of the Developer to provide any of the information required in this Agreement shall be 
considered a material default and breach of this Agreement and shall be sufficient cause for the Municipality to deny payments 
under this Agreement to or in respect of the Developer, which payments are expressly conditioned upon the receipt of the 



 

 

  15 

foregoing information, for the levy year with respect to such a failure.  The Notice and cure provisions of paragraph 6.2 of this 
Agreement shall not apply to this paragraph 5.2. 

 
 ARTICLE VI.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE VII.  GENERAL PROVISIONS} 

6.1 Assignment.{tc \l2 "7.3 Assignment.}  The rights, duties and obligations of a party to this Agreement shall be 
assignable subject to prior written approval of the other party, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, 
provided that the Developer may not make any such assignment without the Municipality’s written consent until completion of 
the Development Project at the times, in the manner and in the effect as provided in this Agreement. 
 

6.2 Remedies.{tc \l2 "7.4 Remedies.}  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, in the event 
of any default in or breach of any term or condition of this Agreement by either party or any permitted successor or assign, the 
alleged defaulting or breaching party shall, upon written notice from the other party, proceed immediately to cure or remedy 
such default or breach, and, shall, in any event, within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, commence to cure or remedy 
such default.  In case such cure or remedy is not taken or not diligently pursued or the default or breach is not cured or 
remedied within a reasonable time, the aggrieved party may institute such proceedings as may be necessary or desirable in its 
opinion to cure and remedy such default or breach, including but not limited to proceedings to compel specific performance by 
the defaulting or breaching party.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary.  The sole remedy of the Developer in the 
event of a default by the Municipality under any of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be to institute legal action 
against the Municipality for specific performance or other appropriate equitable relief; and under no circumstances shall the 
Municipality be subject to any monetary liability or be liable for damages (compensatory or punitive) under the provisions, 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Except as to the foregoing, the parties shall have all remedies with respect to this 
Agreement available under applicable law.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Municipality shall be liable for 
no amount hereunder in excess of Available Revenues duly deposited into the Development Account. 
 

6.3 Force Majeure.{tc \l2 "7.5 Force Majeure.}  Neither the Municipality nor the Developer nor any 
successor in interest shall be considered in breach or default of their respective obligations under this Agreement, and times for 
performance of obligations hereunder shall be extended, in the event of any delay caused by force majeure, including, without 
limitation, damage or destruction by fire or casualty; condemnation; strike; lockout; civil disorder; war; restrictive government 
regulations; issuance of any permits and/or legal authorization by the governmental entity necessary to proceed with the 
Redevelopment Activities or any portion thereof; shortage or delay in shipment of material or fuel; inability to secure labor or 
materials within established budget limitations, including contingencies; acts of God; unusually adverse weather or wet soil 
conditions; adverse conditions affecting the work on the Development Property; or other like causes beyond the parties’ 
reasonable control, including but not limited to, any litigation, court order or judgment resulting from any litigation affecting 
the validity of the Redevelopment Plan, the Development Project, this Agreement, or the TIF Notes; provided that such event 
of force majeure shall not authorize a delay hereunder of more than 60 days in any one calendar year without the approval of 
the other party, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and any days unused in one calendar year shall 
not be carried over to increase the number of days of permitted delay in any subsequent calendar year.  A party seeking to 
extend the time for performance of obligations pursuant to this Section shall notify the other party within ten (10) days of the 
event of delay caused by force majeure, and otherwise may not claim any time extension in that connection. 
 



 

 

  16 

6.4 Notices.{tc \l2 "7.7 Notices.}  Any notice, demand, or other communication required by this Agreement to 
be given by either party hereto to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given or delivered if dispatched by 
certified United States first class mail, postage prepaid; sent by facsimile with confirmation of transmittal; or delivered 
personally, 
 

(i)  In the case of the Developer, to: 
 

Sontejroh Corp.      tel: (630) 341-0120 
1335 Lorraine Place     fax: (630) 832-2880 
Schaumburg, Illinois  60173 
Attn:  Paul Zala and Nat Zala 

 
   With a copy to: 
 

n/a       tel:  (___) ___-____ 
_________________________    fax: (___) ___-____ 
_________________________ 
_________________________ 
Attn:   ___________________ 

 
(ii)  In the case of the Municipality, to: 

 
City of Mattoon      tel:  (217) 235-5511 
208 N. 19th Street     fax: (217) 258-6435 
Mattoon, Illinois  61938-5511    
Attn: City Administrator 

 
With a copy to the City Attorney: 

 
City Attorney       tel: (217) 258-7932 
208 N 19th Street     fax: (217) 258-6435 
Mattoon, Illinois  61938 
Attn: J. Preston Owen, Esq. 

 
or to such other address with respect to either party as that party may, from time to time, designate in writing and forwarded to 
the other as provided in this Section. 
 



 

 

  17 

6.5 Conflict of Interest.{tc \l2 "7.8 Conflict of Interest.}  No member of the City Council or any branch of the 
Municipality’s government who has any power of review or approval of any of the Developer’s undertakings, or of the 
Municipality’s contracting for goods or services for the Development Property, shall participate in any decisions relating 
thereto which affect that member’s personal interests or the interests of any corporation or partnership in which that member is 
directly or indirectly interested or otherwise in violation of and otherwise in compliance with Section 11-74.4-4(n) of the TIF 
Act.  Any person having such interest shall immediately, upon knowledge of such possible conflict, disclose in writing to the 
City Council the nature of such interest and seek a determination by the City Council with respect to such interest, and in the 
meantime shall not participate in any actions or discussions relating to the activities herein proscribed and otherwise in 
compliance with Section 11-74.4-4(n) of the TIF Act. 
 

6.6 Insurance.{tc \l2 "7.9 Insurance.}  The Developer shall cause there to be insurance as hereinafter set forth at 
all times during the process effecting, acquiring, constructing and installation Redevelopment Activities or the Development 
under this Agreement and shall provide the Municipality with a certificate of insurance naming the Municipality, its Governing 
Body, officials, agents, employees, and independent contractors as additional insureds on; 
 

 (i) Builder’s risk insurance, written on the so called “Builder’s Risk — Completed Value 
Basis,” in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the insurable value of any construction work at the date of 
completion, and with coverage available in non-reporting form on the so called “all risk” form of policy; 
 

 (ii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, contingent liability, 
operations of subcontractors, completed operations and contractual liability insurance) together with an owner’s contractor’s 
policy, with limits against bodily injury and property damage of not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for each 
occurrence (to accomplish the above required limits, an umbrella excess liability policy may be used); and 
 

 (iii) Worker’s compensation insurance, with statutorily required coverage. 
 

The policies of insurance required pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) above shall be in form and content satisfactory to the 
Municipality and shall be placed with financially sound and reputable insurers licensed to transact business in the State of 
Illinois.  The policy of insurance delivered pursuant to clause (i) above shall contain the agreement of the insurer to give not 
less than thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Municipality in the event of cancellation of such policy or change 
affecting the coverage thereunder. 
 

6.7 Inspection.{tc \l2 "7.10 Inspection.}  Prior to the completion of the Redevelopment Activities, the Developer 
shall allow authorized representatives of the Municipality access to the Development Property from time to time for reasonable 
inspection thereof upon reasonable advance notice. 
 

6.8 Choice of Law.{tc \l2 "7.11 Choice of Law.}  This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been 
fully executed, made by the parties in, and governed by the internal laws of the State of Illinois for all purposes and intents. 
 

6.9 Entire Agreement; Amendment.{tc \l2 "7.12 Entire Agreement; Amendment.}  The parties agree that this 
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and that no other agreements or representations other than those 
contained in this Agreement have been made by the parties.  This Agreement shall be effective when signed by the authorized 
officers of the parties, and shall be amended only by a writing signed by the authorized officers of the parties. 
 

6.10 Counterparts.{tc \l2 "7.13 Counterparts.}  This Agreement is executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 



 

 

  18 

6.11 Severability.{tc \l2 "7.14 Severability.}  In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is held to 
be unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect, to the extent the 
remainder can be given effect without the invalid provision. 

 
6.12 Representatives Not Personally Liable.{tc \l2 "7.15 Representatives Not Personally Liable.}  No 

official, agent, employee, independent contractor or representative of the Municipality shall be personally liable to the 
Developer in the event of any default or breach by any party under this Agreement, or for any amount which may become due 
to any party, or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 
 

6.13 Actions Contesting the Validity and Enforceability of the Redevelopment Plan.{tc \l2 "7.16 Actions 
Contesting the Validity and Enforceability of the Redevelopment Plan.}  In the event a third party brings an action against 
the Municipality or the Municipality’s Governing Body, officials, agents, employees and representatives contesting the validity 
or legality of the Redevelopment Area, the Redevelopment Plan, the TIF Notes, this Agreement or the ordinances approving 
this Agreement or the TIF Notes, the Developer may at the Developer’s option, assume the defense of such claim or action 
(including, without limitation, to settle or compromise any claim or action for which the Developer has assumed the defense) 
with counsel mutually acceptable to the Municipality and the Developer.  The parties expressly agree that so long as no 
conflicts of interest exist between them, the same attorney or attorneys may simultaneously represent the Municipality and the 
Developer in any such proceeding.  All cost of any such defense, whether incurred by the Municipality or the Developer, shall 
be deemed to be eligible Qualified Project Costs and reimbursable from any amounts in the Special Allocation Fund, subject to 
Article IV of this Agreement. 

 
6.14 Release, Defense and Indemnification.{tc \l2 "7.17 Release and Indemnification.} 

 
6.14.1 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Municipality, its Governing Body, officials, 

attorneys, agents, employees and independent contractors shall not be liable to the Developer for damages of any kind or nature 
whatsoever or otherwise in the event that all or any part of the TIF Act, or any ordinance of the Municipality adopted in 
connection with either the TIF Act, this Agreement or the Redevelopment Plan, shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in 
whole or in part by the final (as to which all rights of appeal have expired or have been exhausted) judgment of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, and by reason thereof either the Municipality is prevented from performing any of the covenants and 
agreements herein or the Developer is prevented from enjoying the rights and privileges hereof; provided that nothing in this 
paragraph shall limit claims by Developer against the Development Account of the Special Allocation Fund or actions by the 
Developer seeking specific performance of relevant contracts.  
 

6.14.2 The Developer releases from and covenants and agrees that the Municipality and its Governing Body, 
officials, agents, employees and independent contractors shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Governing Body, officials, attorneys, agents, employees and independent contractors thereof against, any loss or damage to 
property or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from any defect in the construction of the 
Development Project, except as such may be caused by the intentional conduct, gross negligence, negligence or other acts or 
omissions of the Municipality, its Governing Body, officials, agents, employees or independent contractors that are contrary to 
the provisions of this Agreement. 
 



 

 

  19 

6.14.3 The Municipality and its Governing Body, officials, agents, employees and independent contractors 
shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, independent 
contractors or employees or any other person who may be about the Development Property or Development Project due to any 
act of negligence of any person, except as such may be caused by the intentional misconduct, gross negligence, or acts or 
omissions of the Municipality, its Governing Body, officials, agents, employees, or independent contractors that are contrary to 
the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

6.14.4 All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the Municipality contained herein 
shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the Municipality and not of any of 
its Governing Body, officials, attorneys, agents, employees or independent contractors in their individual capacities. 
 

6.14.5 No member of the Governing Body, officials, attorneys, agents, employees or independent contractors 
of the Municipality shall be personally liable to the Developer (i) in the event of a default or breach by any party under this 
Agreement, or (ii) for any amount or any TIF Notes which may become due to any party under the terms of this Agreement. 
 

6.14.6 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Municipality shall not be liable to the Developer 
for damages of any kind or nature whatsoever arising in any way from this Agreement, the TIF Notes or any other obligation or 
agreement made in connection therewith or from any breach thereof, or arising from a declaration by a final judgment by a 
court of competent jurisdiction that all or any portion of the Act is unconstitutional or that any ordinance of the Municipality 
adopted in connection with this Agreement, the Redevelopment Plan or the TIF Act is invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in 
part; provided that nothing in this paragraph shall limit claims by Developer against the Special Allocation Fund or actions by 
the Developer seeking specific performance of relevant contracts.  
 

6.14.7 The Developer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Municipality, its Governing Body, 
officials, agents, employees and independent contractors, from and against any and all suits, claims and cost of attorneys’ fees, 
resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with (i) this Agreement or the TIF Notes (except contractual agreements 
or covenants undertaken by the Municipality outside of this Agreement or tax increment revenue obligations issued by the 
Municipality not authorized by this Agreement), including any opinions regarding their validity, (ii) the construction of the 
Development Project, and (iii) the negligence or willful misconduct of the Developer, its officials, agents, employees or 
independent contractors in connection with the management, development, redevelopment and construction of the 
Development Project, except as such may be caused by the intentional conduct, gross negligence, negligence or breach of this 
Agreement by the Municipality, its Governing Body, officials, agents, employees or independent contractors. 
 



 

 

  20 

6.14.8  To the extent permitted by law, the Developer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Municipality, its Governing Body, officials, attorneys, agents, employees and independent contractors, from and against any 
and all claims, demands, costs, liabilities, damages or expenses, including attorneys’ and consultants’ fees, investigation and 
laboratory fees, court costs and litigation expenses, arising from:  (i) any release or threat of a release, actual or alleged, of any 
hazardous substances, upon or about the Development Property or respecting any products or materials previously, now or 
thereafter located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the Development Property regardless of whether such release or 
threat of release or alleged release or threat of release has occurred prior to the date hereof or hereafter occurs (and except 
where such release occurs as a result of any act, omission, negligence or misconduct of the Municipality); (ii) (A) any violation 
now existing (actual or alleged) of, or any other liability under or in connection with, any environmental laws relating to or 
affecting the Development Property, or (B) any now existing or hereafter arising violation, actual or alleged, or any other 
liability, under or in connection with, any environmental laws relating, to any products or materials previously, now or 
hereafter located upon, delivered to or in transit to or from the Development Property, regardless of whether such violation or 
alleged violation or other liability is asserted or has occurred or arisen prior to the date hereof or hereafter is asserted or occurs 
or arises and regardless of whether such violation or alleged violation or other liability occurs or arises, as the result of any act, 
omission, negligence or misconduct of the Municipality or any third party or otherwise; (iii) any assertion by any third party of 
any claims or demands for any loss or injury arising out of, relating to or in connection with any hazardous substances on or 
about or allegedly on or about the Development Property; or (iv) any breach, falsity or failure of any of the representations, 
warranties, covenants and agreements of the like.  For purposes of this paragraph, “hazardous materials” includes, without 
limit, any flammable explosives, radioactive materials, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or toxic substances, 
or related materials defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et seq.), the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.), and in the regulations adopted and 
publications promulgated pursuant thereto, or any other federal, state or local environmental law, ordinance, rule, or regulation. 
 
 
  6.14.9. In the event litigation or other proceedings are threatened or commenced against the Municipality 
related to the designation of the Redevelopment Area as a redevelopment project area under the TIF Act or the approval of the 
Redevelopment Plan or Redevelopment Project for the Redevelopment Area or the adoption of TIF for the Redevelopment 
Area, the Developer hereby covenants and agrees to undertake the defense of any such litigation or other proceedings.  The 
Municipality will cooperate with the Developer in connection with any such defense.  All costs of such defense, including 
attorneys fees, disbursements and costs, shall be additional Qualifying Project Costs under this Agreement, and when incurred 
shall constitute a prior claim, pledge or lien against Available Revenues and all other TIF Revenues not subject at the time to 
any prior claim, pledge or lien, including but not limited to any debt service payments on any TIF Notes. 

 
6.15 Covenant to Comply with Applicable Laws.{tc \l2 "7.18 Covenant to Comply with Applicable 

Laws.}  The Developer hereby warrants and covenants that in performing the Development Project it will comply with all 
applicable laws. 
 

6.16 Recordable Memorandum.   The Developer may record a memorandum of this Agreement in the office of the 
Coles County Recorder within one day of its execution and delivery, and the agreements and covenants contained herein shall 
be a covenant running with the land. 
 

6.17 Survival.  Notwithstanding the expiration, termination or breach of this  Agreement by either party, the 
agreements contained in Article VI, Sections 3.9 (as to the certification), 6.3, 6.11, 6.12, 6.13, 6.14, 6.15, 6.16, 6.18 and 
Article VIII of this Agreement shall, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, survive such expiration, termination or 
breach of this Agreement by either party. 
 



 

 

  21 

6.18 Term.  This Agreement shall be in effect upon its execution by the Municipality and the Developer and shall 
terminate at the end of the longest period provided for by the TTIF Act or otherwise applicable law, unless otherwise earlier 
terminated by the provisions hereof. 
 
 ARTICLE VII.  REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PARTIES 
{tc \l1 "ARTICLE VIII.  REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PARTIES} 



 

 

  22 

7.1 Representations of the Municipality.{tc \l2 "8.1 Representations of the Village.}  The Municipality 
hereby represents and warrants that the Municipality has full constitutional and lawful right, power and authority, under current 
applicable law, to execute and deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this Agreement, and all of the foregoing have 
been or will be duly and validly authorized and approved by all necessary Municipality proceedings, findings and actions.  
Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes legal, valid and binding obligations of the Municipality, enforceable in accordance 
with its terms. 
 

7.2 Representations of the Developer.{tc \l2 "8.2 Representations of the Developer.}  The Developer hereby 
represents and warrants that the Developer has full lawful power to execute and deliver and perform the terms and obligations 
of this Agreement and all of the foregoing has been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate proceedings.  This 
Agreement constitutes legal, valid and binding obligations of the Developer, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.) 



 

 

  23 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Municipality and the Developer have caused this Agreement to be executed in their 
respective names and caused their respective seals to be affixed thereto and attested as to the date first above written. 
 

[This page may be executed in counterparts.] 
 
 

“MUNICIPALITY”:     CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 
(SEAL) 

By_____________________________________ 
     Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 

 
_________________________________, 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
“DEVELOPER”:     SONTEJROH CORP. 
 
 
 
      

 By_____________________________________ 
    Its__________________________________



 

 

  24 

 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 

) SS. 
COUNTY OF COLES  ) 
 
 

On this ______ day of ____________, 2007, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared  
______________________ and __________________________, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did 
say that they are the Mayor and the City Clerk, respectively, of the CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, a body politic and 
corporate duly authorized, incorporated and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois, and that the seal 
affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of such Municipality, and that such instrument was signed and sealed in 
behalf of the Municipality by authority of its City Council, and said officials acknowledged said instrument to be executed for 
the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of such Municipality. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal, the day and year last above 
written. 
 
 

  
Notary Public  
 

 
(SEAL) 



 

 

  25 

 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 

) SS. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
 

On this ______ day of ____________, 2007, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared 
___________________________, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that (s)he is   
___________________ of Sontejroh Corp., an Illinois corporation duly authorized, established and existing under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois, and that such instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of such 
limited liability company by authority of its members, and such officer acknowledged said instrument to be executed 
for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of said limited company. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal, the day and year last above 
written. 
 

  
Notary Public  

 
(SEAL) 
 



 

 

  

 EXHIBIT A 
 
 Legal Description of the Development Property 
 
 

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of 
Section Two (2), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Seven (7) East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence South 
89 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds east along North line of said Section, a distance of 508.00 feet; thence South 2 
degrees 19 minutes 43 seconds East 350 feet to the point of beginning; thence South 2 degrees 19 minutes 43 
seconds East 515 feet; thence South 89 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds East 487.5 feet to the West right-of-way line 
of U. S. Route 45; thence North 2 degrees 19 minutes 43 seconds West 515 feet along the West right-of-way line of 
U. S. Route 45; thence North 89 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds West 487.5 feet to the point of beginning, situated in 
Coles County, Illinois, together with an easement for purposes of ingress and egress over and across the following 
described premises: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of the Northeast Quarter Northeast (NE 1/4) 
of Section Two (2), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Seven (7) East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence 
South 89 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds East along the North line of said Section, a distance of 660.5 feet to the 
point of beginning; thence South 2 degrees 19 minutes 43 seconds East 350 feet; thence South 89 degrees 43 minutes 
50 seconds East 60 feet; thence North 2 degrees 19 minutes 43 seconds West 350 feet; thence North 89 degrees 43 
minutes 50 seconds West 60 feet to the point of beginning, situated in Coles County, Illinois. 
 

 



 

 

  

 EXHIBIT B 
 
 Certificate of Substantial Completion 
 

The undersigned is the _____________ of Sontejroh, the Architect/Engineer for the Project, including the 
Redevelopment Activities, carried out by Sontejroh Corp., (the “Developer”), in accordance with the terms of that certain 
Redevelopment Agreement dated as of ______________, 2007 (the “Agreement”) between the Developer and the City of 
Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) in the South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area. 
 

The undersigned hereby certifies to the Developer and the Municipality that: (a) the implementation of [all/a 
functional portion] of the Redevelopment Activities[, which functional portion is described in the following paragraph,] 
has been reviewed and found to be substantially complete; (b) [all/such functional portion] of the improvements associated 
with the Redevelopment Activities have been constructed in a workmanlike manner and in accordance with the Development 
Plans (as those terms are defined in the Agreement); (c) lien waivers for applicable portions of such improvements have been 
obtained; and (d) the date of substantial completion of [all/such functional portion] of the Redevelopment Activities is the 
date of this Certificate. 
 

The functional portion of the Redevelopment Activities consists of:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

In witness whereof, the undersigned has duly executed this Certificate on the ______ day of _________________, 
_____7. 
 

[NAME OF PROJECT ARCHITECT/ENGINEER] 
 
(SEAL) 

By:  
Title:  

Attest: 
 
 

 



 

 

  B-2 

 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF                         ) 

)  SS. 
COUNTY OF                      ) 
 
 

On this ______ day of _____________, _____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, appeared 
________________________________, who being before me duly sworn did say that he is the _____________________ 
of _________________________________ [name of project architect/engineer], a ___________________________________, 
and that said instrument was authorized by and signed on behalf of said _________________________, and said 
_______________ acknowledged said instrument to be executed for the purposes therein stated and as the free act and deed of 
said ___________________________. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal, the day and year last above 
written. 
 
 

  
Printed Name:  
Notary Public in and for said State 
Commissioned in __________________ County 

 
(SEAL) 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 



 

 

  

EXHIBIT C 
 

Certificate of Qualified Project Costs 
 
TO: City of Mattoon, Illinois 
 
RE: Up to $560,000 Tax Increment Revenue Note [South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area], Series 200_  
 

You are hereby notified that in accordance with Ordinance No. 2007-5236 adopted on August 7, 2007 (the 
“Ordinance”), of the City of Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”), and that certain Redevelopment Agreement  (the 
“Agreement”) dated as of August 17, 2007, by and between Sontejroh Corp. (the “Developer”) and the Municipality,  that the 
Developer has incurred the following Qualified Project Costs: 
 

 
 Payee 

 
 Amount 

 
Description of Qualified Project Costs 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.   
 
 
The undersigned hereby states and certifies that: 
 

1. Each item listed above is a Qualified Project Cost and was incurred in connection with the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of the Development Project.  Attached to this Certificate is supporting documentation of the 
nature and amount of each Qualified Project Cost submitted herein. 
 

2. The(se) Qualified Project Cost(s) has/have been incurred by the Developer and are presently due and payable 
or have been paid by the Developer and are payable or reimbursable under the Agreement. 
 

3. Each item listed above has not previously been paid or reimbursed from moneys in the Special Allocation Fund 
and no part thereof has been included in any other certificate previously filed with the Municipality. 
 

4. There has not been filed with or served upon the Developer any notice of any lien, right of lien or attachment 
upon or claim affecting the right of any person, firm or corporation to receive payment of the amounts stated in this request, 
except to the extent any such lien is being contested in good faith. 
 

5. All necessary permits and approvals required for the portion of the Redevelopment Activities on the 
Development Project for which this certificate relates have been issued and are in full force and effect. 
 



 

 

  C-2 

6. All Redevelopment Activities for which payment or reimbursement is requested has been performed in a good 
and workmanlike manner and in accordance with, the Development Plans,  the Concept Site Plan and the Agreement. 
 

7. In the event that any cost item to be paid or reimbursed under this certificate is deemed to not constitute a 
“development project cost” within the meaning of the TIF Act and the Redevelopment Agreement, the Developer shall have 
the right to substitute other eligible Qualified Project Costs for payment hereunder. 
 

8. The costs to be paid or reimbursed under this certificate constitute advances qualifying for issuance of or draw 
upon a TIF Note. 
 

9. The following shows: (i) the line item under the Redevelopment Plan for each Qualified Project Cost identified 
above and the beginning line item balance; (ii) the amount of each such Qualified Project Cost identified above; and (iii) the 
line item balance after giving effect to the payment of such Qualified Project Costs. 
 

 
 

(i) Line Item under the Plan 

 
And 

Beginning Line Item Balance 

 
(ii) Amount of  

Qualified Project Cost 

 
 

(iii) Ending Line Item Balance 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10. The Developer is not in default or breach of any term or condition of the Agreement. 

 
Dated this ______ day of _______________, __________. 

 
 

 
 

By:  
Printed Name:  
Title:  

 
 
Approved for Payment this ______ day of _____________, __________. 
 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 
 
By:       
Title:       



 

 

  

 EXHIBIT D 
 
 Concept Site Plan 
 
 



 

 

  

 EXHIBIT E 
 
 Redevelopment Activities/Qualified Project Costs 
 

 
 

DEVELOPER’S 
REDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES/ 
QUALIFIED PROJECT COSTS 
 

 
 

AMOUNT  

A. Development Property Acquisition / 
Rehabilitation 
 

$560,000 

 
B. 

  

 
C. 

  

 
D. 

  

 
E. 

  

 
F. 

  

 
G. 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

TOTAL OF DEVELOPER’S QUALIFIED 
PROJECT COSTS 

$560,000 

 
 

 
 

MUNICIPALITY’S 
REDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES/ 
QUALIFIED PROJECT COSTS* 
 

 
 

AMOUNT  

A. N/A 
 

 

B. N/A 
 

 

C. N/A 
 

 

D. N/A  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

TOTAL OF DEVELOPER’S QUALIFIED 
PROJECT COSTS 

 



 

 

 EXHIBIT F 

 
REGISTERED   NON-NEGOTIABLE      REGISTERED 
NO. -__- (_____)            $____________ 

Maximum Aggregate      Principal 

Amount 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

THE COUNTY OF COLES 
CITY OF MATTOON 

 
TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT REVENUE NOTE 
[SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA] 

SERIES 200__ 
 
INVESTMENT IN THIS NOTE IS SPECULATIVE AND INVOLVES A VERY HIGH DEGREE OF RISK.  THIS 

NOTE MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY AS A WHOLE AND NOT IN PART.  THIS NOTE INCLUDES THE 

ATTACHED “SCHEDULE OF ADVANCES” AND “PAYMENT SCHEDULE”.  THE HOLDER OF THIS NOTE 

AND ANY PROSPECTIVE TRANSFEREE MUST CONTACT THE PAYING AGENT FOR THIS NOTE TO 

CONFIRM PAYMENT STATUS.  THE PAYMENT SCHEDULE MAY NOT REFLECT CURRENT PAYMENT 

STATUS.  THIS NOTE IS SUBJECT TO A CONDITION HEREIN THAT ANY INSUFFICIENT COVERAGE 

OF INCREMENTAL TAXES IS NOT A DEFAULT OR AN EVENT OF DEFAULT. 

 
Interest Rate: 
 
4.00% 

Maturity Date: 
 
Variable (__________, 20__, 
but not to exceed 20 years 
with respect to any specific 
Draw) – See Schedule of 
Advances 

Dated Date: 
 
Variable – See Schedule 
 of Advances 

 
 
Registered Owner:  
 
Maximum Aggregate  Principal Amount:                        
 
 
  KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (the 
“Municipality”), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay from the source and as 



 

 

hereinafter provided to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, up to 
the Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount identified above (to the extent drawn as shown on the attached Schedule 
of Advances and outstanding and unpaid) and to pay interest (subject to limitations and restrictions hereinafter 
stated) on the outstanding principal balance (as shown on the attached Schedule of Advances) of such Maximum 
Aggregate Principal Amount (the “Principal Amount”) from the first advance shown on the Schedule of Advances 
and from the date or dates of each subsequent advance as shown on such Schedule of Advances (or from the most 
recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid, as the case may be) at the Interest Rate per annum set 
forth above, commencing the first December 15 following at least twelve (12) months from the date of the first draw 
hereon, and on each December 15 thereafter until such Principal Amount is paid, except as the provisions hereinafter 
set forth with respect to prepayment and the application of Available Revenues (defined below), pursuant to the 
Redevelopment Agreement dated as of August 17, 2007 (with respect to which undefined terms herein shall have the 
meanings therein, the “Redevelopment Agreement”) by and between the Municipality and Sontejroh Corp., an 
Illinois corporation (the “Developer”), are and become applicable hereto.  All principal and interest payments, if 
any, shall be made on December 15 of each year, commencing the first December 15 following at least twelve (12) 
months from the date of the first draw hereon.  The principal hereof and interest hereon are payable in lawful money 
of the United States of America by check or draft of the Municipality upon the debt service subaccount of the 
Development Account.  The transmittal of such a check or draft shall specify the principal component (in integral 
multiples of $0.01) and interest component of such a payment.  Such payment of principal and interest shall be made 
to the Registered Owner hereof on the registration books of the Municipality, maintained by the City Treasurer as 
registrar (“Registrar”, and who also shall be the paying agent, the “Paying Agent”), at the close of business on the 
fifth (5th) day of the calendar month of the applicable payment date and shall be paid by check or draft of the 
Municipality mailed to the address of such Registered Owner as it appears on such registration books or at such other 
address furnished in writing by such Registered Owner to the Registrar.  The Registrar shall not authenticate this 
Note until the Registered Owner and/or any pledgee, as the case may be, shall sign the Acceptance below. 
 
THE FAILURE TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THIS NOTE WHEN DUE SOLELY 
BECAUSE OF AN INSUFFICIENCY OF AVAILABLE REVENUES SHALL NOT BE AN EVENT OF 
DEFAULT HEREUNDER OR UNDER THE REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, A CONDITION AND 
RISK TO WHICH THE OWNER/HOLDER HEREOF BY THE ACCEPTANCE OF THIS NOTE 
IRREVOCABLY ASSENTS. 
 
  This Note is an obligation issued pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act 
(Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. of Chapter 65 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, the “TIF Act”), as supplemented and 
amended (the “Act”), and under the Redevelopment Agreement and the principal of and interest on this Note are 
payable, if at all, and not otherwise, solely and only from Available Revenues in connection with a specified part 
(the “Development Property”) of the Redevelopment Project Area, established under the Act, and as provided in 
and subject to the limitations provided in the Redevelopment Agreement pursuant to which the Municipality is 
issuing this Note.  In connection with this Note, the term “Available Revenues” means incremental property taxes 
under Section 11-74.4-8 of the TIF Act in the percentage specified in the Redevelopment Agreement, derived solely 
and only from the Development Property, and not otherwise.  This Note is being issued for the purpose of financing 
certain qualifying  redevelopment project costs as set forth as “Qualified Project Costs” in the Redevelopment 
Agreement and the Act.  The Registered Owner by the acceptance of this Note assents to all the provisions of this 
Note and the Redevelopment Agreement.  This Note, together with the interest hereon, is the special, limited 
obligation of the Issuer, payable solely from Available Revenues available therefor, and not otherwise.  For the 
payment of this Note, both principal and interest, as aforesaid, if at all, on the due dates thereof, such Available 
Revenues specified in the Redevelopment Agreement are hereby pledged. 



 

 

 
THIS NOTE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE MUNICIPALITY WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY PROVISION OR LIMITATION.  NO 
HOLDER OF THIS NOTE SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF THE 
GENERAL TAXING POWER OF THE MUNICIPALITY, THE STATE OF ILLINOIS OR ANY OTHER 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL HEREOF OR INTEREST 
HEREON. 
 
  Under the Act and the Redevelopment Agreement, the Available Revenues shall be deposited in the 
debt service subaccount of the Development Account of the Municipality's Special Tax Increment Allocation Fund 
(the “TIF Fund”) for the Redevelopment Project Area.  Moneys on deposit in such debt service subaccount of the 
TIF Fund shall be applied to the payment of debt service on this Note as provided by the terms of the Redevelopment 
Agreement. 
 
  The holder of this Note, including as a pledgee, as the case may be, as authorized pursuant to the 
Redevelopment Agreement, hereby represents, warrants and certifies, as follows: 
 
   (1) No sale or transfer by the holder of this Note will result in a violation of the Securities Act of 
1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, any rules or regulations promulgated under either act, or the applicable 
securities laws of any other authority having jurisdiction in connection therewith.  This Note has not been registered 
under any federal or state securities act, law or regulation. 
 
   (2) The holder is aware that this Note is a special and limited obligation and does not represent a 
general obligation of the City of Mattoon, the State of Illinois or of any political subdivision thereof but is payable 
solely from Available Revenues derived under and in respect of the Redevelopment Agreement pursuant to which 
this Note is issued.  Undefined terms herein shall have the meanings given them in the Redevelopment Agreement.  
Neither the Municipality nor any other person has made any representations concerning the realization of Available 
Revenues.  The initial holder of this Note made or arranged all computations, forecasts and projections as to the 
receipt of Available Revenues. 
 
   (3) The holder has, through its attorneys, agents and employees, investigated the public and private 
facilities and real property constituting the Development Project and the parts thereof to be financed with the 
proceeds of this Note and the allowable Qualified Project Costs.  The holder acknowledges that it has through its 
counsel, advisors and consultants participated in the drafting of the underlying documents in connection with this 
transaction, and has investigated the Act, the Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Agreement, the 
Redevelopment Project and the Municipality, and all requested information relating thereto as well as such other 
information as it deems necessary or appropriate as prudent and knowledgeable investor in evaluating this 
investment.  The holder acknowledges that the Municipality has made available to such holder and the holder's 
representatives the opportunity to obtain additional information and the opportunity to ask questions of and receive 
satisfactory answers concerning it and the Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Project, the Redevelopment 
Agreement and the nature and source of Available Revenues.  Reaching the conclusion that the holder desires to 
acquire this Note (or to accept it as collateral) it has carefully evaluated all risks associated with this investment and 
acknowledges that it is able to bear the economic risks of this investment.  The holder is, by reason of its knowledge 
and experience in financial and business matters in general and real estate transactions in particular, capable of 
evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in this Note (or accepting it as collateral). 
 



 

 

   (4) The holder has reviewed and approved all documents in connection with this transaction, 
including the Redevelopment Plan, the Redevelopment Agreement, the eligibility of Qualified Project Costs to be 
financed with proceeds of this Note and all other related documents, certificates and opinions. 
 
   (5) The Municipality has made no representation or warranty concerning the forecasts and  
projections of Available Revenues, nor has it represented or warranted as to the correctness of any statements or 
representations made or materials furnished by or on behalf of any planning consultant related to the Redevelopment 
Plan, the Redevelopment Project, or the Development Project or any other person in connection with this investment.   
 
   (6) The holder has received all information which it has requested with respect to the Redevelopment 
Plan and the Redevelopment Project, the Available Revenues and the Redevelopment Agreement necessary in order 
to purchase this Note or accept it as collateral, and all other information relating thereto which it has requested has 
been furnished to it. 
 
   (7) The holder hereby covenants and agrees to make available to any prospective purchaser or 
purchasers of this Note from it such information as is necessary or appropriate in the opinion of counsel to enable 
such prospective purchaser or purchasers to make an informed investment decision with respect hereto, and in 
general to conduct any resale of this Note by the holder to others as if the requirements of Regulation D under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, were applicable thereto. 
 
   (8) The initial holder has accepted this Note and all other documents in connection with the purchase 
of this Note as an inducement to the Municipality to issue this Note. 
 
   (9) Each and every provision of this Note shall be binding upon the holder and its successors and 
assigns, including any pledgee. 
 
  (10) This Note is transferable by the registered owner hereof, but only with the consent of the 
Municipality, and not otherwise in person or by such owner's attorney duly authorized in writing at the principal 
office of the Registrar in Mattoon, Illinois, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of 
any charges imposed by law, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Note.  Upon such transfer a new Note with 
the same terms will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor.  The Note is to be issued in Maximum 
Aggregate Principal Amount not to exceed the dollar amount specified on the first page hereof in fully registered 
form in the denomination of $0.01 or authorized integral multiples thereof.   
 
  (11) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Note or the Redevelopment Agreement to the 
contrary, expressly or by inference or implication, certain limiting and restricting provisions of this Note are as 
follows:  
 

 (a) The Municipality and the Registrar may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute 
owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof and interest due 
hereon and for all other purposes and neither the Municipality nor the Registrar shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. 

 
 (b) This Note is subject to mandatory prepayment on December 15 of each year, commencing the first 
December 15 following at least (12) months from the date of the first draw hereon, in any integral multiple of 
$0.01, without premium, to the extent of Available Revenues on deposit in the debt service subaccount of the 



 

 

Development Account of the TIF Fund, if at all, and not otherwise. 
 
ANY FAILURE TO PAY PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST WHEN DUE SOLELY BY REASON OF 
INSUFFICIENCY OF AVAILABLE REVENUES IN THE TIF FUND SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN 
EVENT OF DEFAULT IN CONNECTION WITH THIS NOTE. 
 

 (c) This Note is also subject to prepayment at the option of the Municipality in whole or in part, from 
any available funds therefor, at any time, in any integral multiple of $0.01, with not less than 10 days notice 
by the Municipality to the registered owner hereof plus accrued interest on such principal amount being so 
redeemed to the date fixed for prepayment.  Written notice of prepayment in whole or in part of this Note 
shall be given by the Municipality to the registered owner or owners hereof by first class mail to the address 
shown on the registration books of the Municipality maintained by the Registrar or at such other address as is 
furnished in writing by the registered owner to the Registrar.  The date of the mailing of such notice shall be 
not less than ten (10) days prior to such prepayment date, and when this Note or any portion thereof shall 
have been called for prepayment and payment made or provided for by setting aside funds in a segregated 
account therefor, interest hereon shall cease from and after the date so specified. 

 
  (12) The rights and obligations of the Municipality and of the Registered Owner of this Note may be 
modified or amended only with the consent of the Municipality and of the Registered Owner of this Note. 
 
  It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by law to exist or to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Note did exist, have happened, been done and performed in regular and 
due form and time as required by law, and the Municipality hereby covenants and agrees that it has made provision 
for the segregation of the Available Revenues under the Redevelopment Agreement and that it will properly account 
for such Available Revenues and will comply with all the covenants of and maintain the funds, accounts and 
subaccounts as provided by the Indenture. 
 
  This Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of 
authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Registrar and the acceptance shall have been signed by the 
Registered Owner and/or pledgee or assigns, as the case may be. 
 
   IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, by its City Council, 
has caused this Note to be signed by the manual signatures of the its Mayor and City Clerk, and its corporate seal or 
a facsimile thereof to be impressed or reproduced hereon, all as appearing hereon and as of the Dated Date identified 
above. 
 
 
    __________________________________________ 
(SEAL)      Mayor 
 
 

   __________________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 
Registrar:  City Treasurer 



 

 

   City of Mattoon 
   208 N. 19th Street 
   Mattoon, Illinois 61938 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF AUTHENTICATION 

 
Date of Authentication:  _________________ 
 
This Note is the “Tax Increment Redevelopment Revenue Note [South Route 45 Redevelopment Project Area] 
Series 20____ described in the within mentioned Redevelopment Agreement by and between the City of Mattoon, 
Coles County, Illinois and Sontejroh Corp., an Illinois corporation, as the Developer. 

     _______________________________________ 
         City Treasurer 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 
  The Registered Owner of this Note hereby accepts each term and provision of this Note and the 
Redevelopment Agreement and assents to each such term and provision hereof and thereof.   
 
Dated:  ______________________ 
                  
    By:__________________________________ 
        Registered Owner (or and  
         Pledgee) Authorized Signature 
 
      Tax I.D.: _____________________________ 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and with the Municipality's consent the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers 
unto ______________________________________________________________________________ (Name, 

Address and F.E.I.N. or Social Security Number of Assignee) 
the within Note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint_________________________ 
_____________________________________________________ attorney to transfer the within Note on the books 
kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises.  The transferee is hereby advised that this 
Assignment shall not be complete unless and until an Acceptance in the form above is signed by the Transferee. 
 
Dated: ______________________   ____________________________________ 
          Signature 
 
Signature guaranteed: ______________________________ 
 
 

CONSENT 
 



 

 

The Municipality's consent to the above Assignment is made this _____ day of ____________, _____, by authority 
of the City Council. 
 
       ______________________________________ 
 Mayor 



 

 
 
   
  
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT REVENUE NOTE 
[SOUTH ROUTE 45 REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA] 

SERIES 200__ 
 

SCHEDULE OF ADVANCES AND PAYMENTS 
 

  This Note is valid to the amount set forth below, the aggregate of such amounts 
outstanding and unpaid from time to time not to exceed the Maximum Principal Aggregate Amount 
(subject to reduction for any installment payments as provided in the Note). 
 
                         Amount          Amount  Aggregate Principal 
     Date  Advanced/Drawn ($) Paid/Prepaid($)     Note Balance ($)         Signature of  
Registrar  
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 
__________ __________________ ______________   ________________   ________________________ 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2705 
 

Project Title:   Grant Funding for Equipment for  
Mattoon Police Dept.’s Dispatch/Telecommunications Division 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR A GRANT UNDER THE INFRASTRUCTURE 

MAINTENANCE FEE LITIGATION CY PRES COMMITTEE’S GENERAL AUTHORITY TO MAKE SUCH 
GRANTS. 

 
 WHEREAS, in 1997, the State of Illinois enacted the Telecommunications Infrastructure Maintenance Fee 
(IMF) Act, which authorized the imposition of a fee of 1% of the gross charges on wireless retailers.  Municipalities 
throughout the state imposed the IMF on telecommunications bills from January 1, 1998, through February 7, 2002; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1998, a lawsuit was filed challenging the fee, which the Court ruled unconstitutional and, 
upon appeal, the Illinois Supreme Court affirmed the unconstitutionality of the Municipal IMF only as it applied to 
wireless retailers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2000, municipalities that imposed the IMF were joined as defendants in a class action lawsuit 
that asserted the unconstitutionality of the Infrastructure Maintenance Fee and sought refunds of the IMF; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as of October 18, 2005, a settlement was approved that required defendant class members to pay 
into the settlement fund 70% of the amounts collected through the Municipal IMF for wireless telecommunications 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Court will distribute the settlement fund in accordance with Cy Pres principles, or for its 
“next best” use.  The settlement fund will be distributed as follows: 
 

60% (sixty percent) for municipal emergency 9-1-1 telecommunications programs located anywhere 
within the State of Illinois; and 

 
40% (forty percent) for medical facilities providing emergency care to indigent patients located in 
areas outside the six-county northeastern Illinois region; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Court has established a three person committee (Cy Pres Committee) to make 
recommendations as to how the Cy Pres grants will be distributed. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS,  
 
Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, hereby requests use of the telecommunications 

infrastructure maintenance fee Cy Pres funds for the purposes described in this application. 
 
Section 2. That the Mayor is authorized to file an application on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, with the 

Cy Pres Committee for a grant for Equipment for Mattoon Police Dept.’s 
Dispatch/Telecommunications Division. 

 
Section 3. That the funds applied for will be expended consistent with the recitals in the application. 
 
Section 4. That the Mayor is authorized to furnish such additional information, assurances, certifications and 



 

 
 
   
  
 

amendments as the Cy Pres Committee may require in connection with this grant application. 
  
Section 5. That the Mayor is authorized and directed on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, to execute and 

deliver a grant application and all subsequent amendments thereto between the City of Mattoon, 
Illinois, and the Cy Pres Committee and the City Clerk of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, is authorized 
and directed on behalf of the City of Mattoon, Illinois, to attest said applications and all subsequent 
amendments thereto. 

 
Section 6. That the Mayor is authorized and directed to take such action as is necessary or appropriate to 

implement, administer and enforce said applications and all subsequent amendments thereto on behalf 
of the City of Mattoon, Illinois. 

 
Section 7. That the City of Mattoon, Illinois, will provide the Cy Pres Committee with a certification of a 

certified public accountant certifying that the grant funds were expended in conformity with the 
formal application of the use of the funds to ensure compliance with the grant program.  Certification 
will be provided within 90 days of a request by the Cy Pres Committee. 

 
 
PRESENTED this _______ day of August, 2007. 
PASSED this         _______ day of August, 2007. 
APPROVED this   _______ day of August, 2007. 
 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS, Applicant 
 
 
Signed:___________________________________ 
                                 Mayor 
 
 
Attest:____________________________________ 
                              City Clerk 



 

 
 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  8/7/07 CDR NO:  2007-776       
 
SUBJECT:  Accepting bid from Howell Paving Inc. for paving bituminous material in 
                    commercial alleys (07-00155-00-AS) 

 
SUBMITTAL DATE: 7/26/07  
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director  
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Howell Paving Bid 
        

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $21,900   BUDGETED: $75,000    REQUIRED: N/A      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS 
REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I move to authorize the mayor to sign a contract with Howell Paving of Mattoon in the amount of $21,900 for the 

placement of asphalt millings in commercial alleys” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Approving this CDR authorizes proceeding with the project to place millings in the commercial alleys. We will be 
placing millings from the I-57 interchange project then overlaying the millings with a layer of oil and chip. The 
process has worked well in our residential areas and has greatly reduced the maintenance in those areas. 
 
Howell Paving, Inc. was the only bidder on the project. 
 
There is also a contract for the oil and chip portion of this project with NeCo Asphalt of Charleston. That contract is 
in the amount of $26,853.00. 
  
There is $75,000 total budgeted for this project in the Capital Improvements Fund in line item 130-5321-730.



 

 
 
   
  
  



 

 
 
   
  
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 



 

 
 
   
  
 



 

 
 
   
  
  



 

 
 
   
  
 



 

 
 
   
  
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 



 

 
 
   
  
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 



 

 
 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 8/7/07  CDR NO: 2007-777   
 
SUBJECT:    Wheel Loader Purchase, Public Works 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  7/27/07 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Chris Hartbank, Public Works Superintendent 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore    _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bidding Specifications 
             

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $118,000 BUDGETED: $110,000 REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS 
REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to authorize the Public Works Director to advertise for bids for a three cubic yard wheel loader according 
to the attached bid specifications.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
  
This purchase is contained in the 2007/2008 budget.  The difference in the expenditure estimate and the amount 
budgeted will be offset by an estimated trade-in value of $10,000 for an older 1989 Case loader currently being used 
by the Parks Department. 



 

   

Bid Specifications 
Three Cubic Yard Wheel Loader (Endloader) 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING BID 

 
The City of Mattoon requests proposals for a Three Cubic Yard Wheel Loader (Endloader). 
 
The following specifications describe the minimum requirements for a rubber tire wheel loader.  It shall be the 
manufacturer’s latest model and design.  The equipment bid shall be new, manufactured the same year of the bid and 
be of current design and production that is available to the commercial market.  Any additions, deletions or 
variations from the following specifications must be noted or the bid will be rejected.  One copy of the 
manufacturers published specifications shall be included with the bid.  The standard items appearing in the 
manufacturers published specifications furnished by the bidder shall be included in the bid unless otherwise noted.  
Bidders must furnish all descriptive literature, manufacturer’s compliance certificates and all other data on the 
equipment proposed as required in this specification.  Bidder must answer YES or NO to each specification line item 
except where asked to state specific data.  Failure to answer correctly, or failure to respond, will deem your bid as 
non-responsive.  
All line items with a “NO” response, shall be explained in detail on the “Exceptions to Bid Specifications” pages 
provided at the end of this document. (This specification consists of six pages and twelve clauses) 
 
All proposals must be received at the City Clerk’s Office at 208 North 19th Street Mattoon, Illinois 61938 by 2:00 
PM on August 22, 2007 at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud.  All proposals w ill be evaluated 
for price, warranty, delivery, performance, and support available.  The City of Mattoon reserves the right to accept or 
reject any proposal based on the needs of the City. For additional information concerning this request please direct 
questions to Chris Hartbank at 217-235-5522 or David Wortman at 217-235-5460. 
 
                                                                                  Yes/No 
1.  General                                                                                                                                                                                   

1.1       The wheel loader shall be a regular production model for which published specifications                            
            are available.                                                                                                                           _________                            
1.2       Machine modifications to meet the operational requirements of this specification shall  
            be limited to the manufacturer’s published standard and optional equipment.                      _________                                                 
1.3       All operating specifications  are based on current SAE standards and shall be the basis 
            for determining compliance  with specified requirements.                                                     _________ 
1.4       The wheel loader shall have a 135 net horsepower, diesel engine and 2.5 cubic yard 
            4-in-1capacity bucket.                                                                                                  _________ 
1.5       The wheel loader shall have a minimum operating weight of 25,880 pounds.             _________                                    
1.6       The wheel loader shall meet all OSHA and EPA requirements in effect on the date of 
            bid opening and shall have lead-free paint.                                                                            _________ 
                                                                         
2.  Engine 

2.1       The wheel loader shall have a 6-cylinger, turbocharged diesel engine with a minimum  
            135 net horsepower at 2,000 RPM.  The engine shall provide a minimum SAE net  
            torque rating of 496 ft-lbs at 1,400 RPM.  Engine to be Tier II certified per  
            Federal Emissions Standards.                                                                                                 _________ 



 

   

2.2       Parent metal bore design                                                                                                 _________ 
2.3       Integral water pump                                                                                                                _________ 
2.4       Dual stage air cleaner                                                                                                              _________ 
2.5       24-volt electrical system with master disconnect                                                                _________ 
2.6       Minimum 70 amp alternator                                                                                                   _________  
2.7 Single serpentine belt with automatic self-adjusting tensioner for alternator                         _________ 
2.8       Hydraulic driven fan that can be reversed for cleaning                                                          _________ 
2.9 Mid-mount cooling system with no stacked coolers      _________ 
2.10 Vertical spin-on engine oil filter        _________ 
2.11 500 hour engine oil change interval        _________ 
2.12 Tier II emission approved engine                                                                                           _________ 
   
3.  Axles 

3.1      The wheel loader axles shall feature a heavy-duty design.                           _________ 
3.2       Limited slip differentials (front and rear)                                                          __________ 
3.3       Outboard planetaries                                                                           __________ 
3.4       Self lubricated trunnion bearings                                      __________ 
3.5       Total rear axle oscillation of 24 degrees                             __________ 
     
4.  Fully Synchronized Transmission 

4.1       The wheel loader power train shall consist of a torque converter drive with a full power  
             shift transmission.                                                                                                                  __________ 
4.2       Four forward speeds                                                                                                  __________ 
4.3       Three reverse speeds          __________ 
4.4       Minimum travel speed of 23 MPH                   __________ 
4.5       Electronic forward / reverse shuttle shift       __________ 
4.6       Countershaft design           __________ 
4.7  Clutch disconnect feature through both brake pedals      __________ 
4.8 Down shift capabilities from 2nd to 1st gear       __________ 
4.9 Down shift control button located on top of the loader control lever                                     __________ 
4.10 Auto shift transmission         __________ 
4.11 Down shift from 4th to 1st in auto-shift mode       __________ 
4.12 Programmable to shift no higher than 2nd or 3rd gear                                                             __________ 
4.13     Programmable to start out in 1st or 2nd gear in auto-shift mode                                              __________              
4.14 F-N-R switch located near the loader control                      __________ 
           
5.  Brakes 

5.1       The wheel loader brakes shall be fully hydraulic, wet disk brakes located within the 
            outboard planetaries.            __________ 
5.2       A separate system for front and rear                                                                                       __________             
5.3       Oil cooled brakes                                __________             
5.4       Brakes operate by one of two brake pedals       __________ 
5.5       Disk parking brake located on the transmission output shaft                                                 __________ 
5.6       Parking brake that is spring applied, hydraulically released (SAHR)   __________ 
5.7 Parking brake that is switch operated        __________ 



 

   

5.8 Parking brake that, for safety, applies when electrical power is lost    __________ 
                            
6.  Loader and Linkage Features 

6.1       The wheel loader arms shall be heavy duty and in-line.  A JRB quick coupler shall also be 
             included.                                  __________ 
6.2 Z-bar design with single bucket cylinder       __________ 
6.3 Single piece loader arm design              __________        
6.4 Flame-cut design for loader arms, bucket link, and Z-bar for strength and durability __________  
6.5 Dual parallel lift cylinders         __________ 
6.6 Factory installed Ride Control        __________ 
6.7 Return-to-dig, Return-to-travel, Automatic height control as Standard Equipment       __________  
 
7.  Loader Bucket 

7.1       The wheel loader bucket shall be a JRB 4-in-1 Bucket with a minimum of 103 inches wide 
            with a 2.5 cubic yard heaped capacity.          __________  
7.2       Bolt-on cutting edge          __________ 
7.3 Heavy duty lifting eyes                    __________ 
7.4 Bucket level indicator          __________             
 

8.  Performance 

8.1      The specified wheel loader shall be a fully serviced unit that includes all standard 
           equipment, ROPS cab with heater and air conditioning, 20.5 x R25 L2 tires,  
           JRB 2.5 Cu. Yd 4-in-1 Bucket w/bolt-on edge, factory installed counterweight, 175 
           pound Operator and full fuel tank.  The unit shall weigh a minimum of 27,500 pounds.       __________ 
8.2      Minimum SAE breakout force of 24,830 pounds force                __________            
8.3      Minimum SAE straight tipping load of 21,620 pounds     __________          
  
8.4      Minimum SAE full turn 40 degree tipping load of 18,180 pounds    __________ 
8.5      Minimum SAE operating load of 9,090 pounds      __________ 
8.6      Minimum SAE dump clearance at full height and 45 degree dump angle of 112 inches __________ 
8.7      Minimum SAE dump reach at full height and 45 degree dump angle of 38 inches  __________ 
8.8      Minimum hinge pin height of 150 inches       __________ 
8.9      Minimum dig depth below ground of 3.2 inches      __________ 
8.10    Maximum loader lowering time (empty, power down) of 5.0 seconds   __________ 
8.11    Maximum loader lowering time (float down) of 4.4 seconds     __________ 
8.12    Maximum bucket dumping time (with rated bucket load) of 1.5 seconds   __________ 
8.13    Maximum bucket raising time to full height (with rated bucket load) of 5.4 seconds __________ 
      Tractor Dimensions: 
8.14    Minimum wheel base of 114 inches                                                                                        __________                                                    
8.15    Maximum overall transport length of 275 inches      __________ 
8.16    Maximum height to top of cab of 129 inches       __________ 
8.17    Minimum 40 degree articulation        __________ 
  



 

   

9.  Operating Environment 

9.1     The wheel loader shall have a cab with Air Conditioning and Heat.    __________ 
9.2 Sun Visor           __________ 
9.3 Floor-mounted accelerator              __________  
9.4 Transmission shift lever within easy reach of the operator     __________ 
9.5 All glass surfaces free of rubber moldings       __________ 
9.6 Side windows that fully open and secure to the rear of the cab    __________ 
9.7 Side windows that can be secured when partially opened     __________  
9.8 Door that opens to the rear of the cab        __________  
9.9 Front and rear windshield wipers and front and rear washers                                                  __________ 
9.10 Intermittent front wiper          __________ 
9.11 Interior dome light          __________  
9.12 Two interior rear view mirrors         __________ 
9.13 Retractable seat belt          __________ 
9.14 Audible operator warning system that sounds when the transmission is engaged  

and the parking brake is applied        __________ 
9.15 Maximum operator station sound level of 70 dBA per SAE J919    __________  
9.16 Instrumentation located in front of the operator      __________  
9.17 On/off device to control activation of return-to-dig      __________ 
9.18 On/off device to control activation of height control      __________ 
9.19 On/off device to control activation of float control      __________  
9.20 On/off device to control activation of return-to-travel      __________ 
9.21 On/off device to control activation of de-clutch      __________ 
9.22 On-off device to control activation of Ride Control      __________  
9.23 Automatic Ride Control that de-activates when traveling below 3.2 MPH (2.0 KPH) and 

re-activates when traveling above 3.2 MPH (2.0 KPH)                                                           __________ 
 

10.  Hydraulics 

10.1   The wheel loader shall have a hydraulic system with a variable displacement pump that  
           provides a minimum flow of 45.0 gpm.  The system relief pressure will be a minimum 
           of 3,600 psi.                                                                                                                             __________ 
10.2    Variable displacement piston pump optimizing available machine Hp.                                  __________            
10.3    Hydraulic system filtered by a minimum 10-micron full flow cartridge filter                        __________           
10.4    Pilot-operated controls for the lift, tilt, and auxiliary hydraulics w/ electromagnetic detents __________ 
10.5    Load sensing steering only uses power as required, providing smooth steering movements                           
 and higher operating safety         __________ 
10.6    Optional external hydraulic oil cooler                   __________ 
   
11.  Serviceability 

11.1     The wheel loader shall be serviceable from ground level.                __________ 
11.2     All vertically-mounted filters               __________  
11.3     Lubed-for-life u-joints and drive shaft splines      __________ 
11.4     Double tapered bearings in the articulation joint      __________ 
11.5     Articulation joint grease interval of 1,000 hours                                               __________ 
11.6     Ganged lube points, all accessible from ground level                                                            __________ 



 

   

11.7     Grouped remote drain points for engine oil, engine coolant, and hydraulic oil             __________  
11.8     Sight gauge for hydraulic oil level                                                                                          __________ 
11.9     Sight gauge for transmission level                   __________ 
11.10   One-piece, forward tilt hood for complete engine access     __________  
11.11   Hydraulic filter with a minimum 10 micron rating      __________ 
11.12   All hydraulic lines shall have o-ring face seals connections     __________ 
11.13   1,000 hour hydraulic oil change interval       __________ 
11.14   500 hour engine oil change interval              __________ 
11.15    On-board diagnostics that require no special tools for transmission and other critical 
            machine functions                                       __________ 
11.16    Minimum 50 gallon fuel tank        __________ 
11.17    Minimum 15 gallon hydraulic reservoir       __________ 
                                             
12.  Warranty   

12.1     Engine warranty of two years or 2,000 hours        __________  
12.2     Power train warranty of 12 months, unlimited hours      __________          
12.3     Optional extended warranty for Full Machine                 __________ 
12.4     Optional extended warranty for Powertrain Only      __________ 
                
EXCEPTIONS TO BID SPECIFICATIONS 

 
Clause #   Explanation 
 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 



 

   

_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
 
 
All warranty work is to be done at the City of Mattoon, Street Department location. If the machine has to be 

returned to the dealer’s shop for warranty repairs it must be done at the dealer’s expense and the dealer must 
immediately furnish the City of Mattoon with a suitable machine at no extra cost while repairs are being made. 

A two hour safety and maintenance training will be provided by the dealer at the City of Mattoon Street 
Department location. 

The City of Mattoon reserves the right to reject any and all bid proposals received, and accept any proposals 
for the type and make of equipment it may deem most favorable for the use intended. 

 
 
Make and Model of Wheel Loader:      _____________________________ 
 
 
Delivery Date:      _____________________________ 
 
 
Selling price for unit bid:     _____________________________ 
 
 
Final price for Wheel Loader                     _____________________________ 
 
 
Warranty Statement:      _____________________________ 
 
Selling Dealer Name & Address:                          _____________________________ 
 
                              _____________________________ 
 
                              _____________________________ 
    

                        _____________________________ 
 
Signature:                       _______________________________________ 



 

   

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 8/7/07  CDR NO: 2007-778   
 
SUBJECT:    Sewer Camera Truck Purchase, Public Works 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  7/27/07 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Chris Hartbank, Public Works Superintendent 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore    _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Bidding Specifications 
             

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $130,000 BUDGETED: $412,560 REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to authorize the Public Works Director to advertise for bids for a sewer 
camera truck according to the attached bid specifications.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
  
This purchase is contained in the 2007/2008 budget in line item 212-5342-740 in the 
Sewer Fund.   



 

 
 
   
  
 

Bid Specifications 
Sewer Camera Truck 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING BID 

 
Each camera, camera transporter, and external lighthead to be supplied on this specification must be 
labeled and listed as a minimum by a Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory (NRTL) to the 
applicable Standard for Safety for Closed Circuit Television Equipment, UL 2044, 2nd edition, 11/9/01.  
A listing report must be supplied that certifies the aforementioned equipment is acceptable as defined by 
29 CFR 1910.339 and required by 29 CFR 1910.303(a).  Self-certification or certification by a 
laboratory that is not an NRTL will be deemed unacceptable.  NRTL labeled and listed equipment shall 
be supplied as required by the FEDOSHA memorandum, dated September 25, 2002, page 3, Section on 
Compliance, prepared by John L. Henshaw, Assistant Secretary of Occupational Safety and Health. It 
shall be the manufacturer’s latest model and design.  These specifications shall be regarded as minimum 
requirements.  The equipment bid shall be new, manufactured the same year of the bid and be of 
current design and production that is available to the commercial market.  Any additions, deletions or 
variations from the following specifications must be noted or the bid will be rejected.  One copy of the 
manufacturers published specifications shall be included with the bid.  The standard items appearing in 
the manufacturer’s published specifications furnished by the bidder shall be included in the bid unless 
otherwise noted.  Bidders must furnish all descriptive literature, manufacturer’s compliance certificates 
and all other data on the equipment proposed as required in this specification.  Bidder must answer YES 
or NO to each specification line item except where asked to state specific data.  Failure to answer 
correctly, or failure to respond, will deem your bid as non-responsive.  
All line items with a “NO” response, shall be explained in detail on the “Exceptions to Bid 
Specifications” pages provided at the end of this document. (This specification consists of six pages and 
eighteen clauses) 
 
All proposals must be received at the City Clerk’s Office at 208 North 19th Street Mattoon, Illinois 61938 by 
2:00 PM on September 19, 2007 at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud.  All proposals w ill 
be evaluated for price, warranty, delivery, performance, and support available.  The City of Mattoon reserves 
the right to accept or reject any proposal based on the needs of the City. For additional information concerning 
this request please direct questions to Chris Hartbank at 217-235-5522 or David Wortman at 217-235-5460. 
 

                                         
Yes/No 

1.  E350 TV Hi-Cube Van, Gas w/Automatic Transmission, 11,500 GVW & 14’ Loadspace                 

        ________                                                                                            

1.1    AeroCap                                                                                                 ________                                                         
                                                                                                                                                                           
2.  E350 TV Hi-Cube Van Equipment 

2.1    2 (Two) Amber Electronic Strobe Warning Beacons – Roof Mount with on/off  switch in Cab            
       ________ 
2.2    2 (Two) Adjustable Floodlights Rear of Vehicle Area Illumination, mounted inside of rear doors       
        ________                                 



 

 
 
   
  
 

2.3    Standard Drivers Seat with Seatbelt and Sunvisor                                 ________ 
2.4    Standard Passenger seat with Seatbelt and Sunvisor                             ________ 
2.5    12 Volt Light, Cab Area                                                                        ________ 
2.6    Back-Up Alarm                                                                                     ________ 
2.7.   Cab Air Conditioner                                                                               _______ 
2.8    AM/FM Radio                                                                                       ________ 
     
3.  Generator Power Package 

3.1    120 Volt 60 HZ 6000 Watt (minimum) Commercial Grade Generator, Gasoline                                  
________ 

3.2    Powered with Electric Start; Liquid Cooled                                          ________  
3.3    Generator Remote Start/Stop Cable Assembly                                     ________ 
3.4    Generator Storage Compartment with a Lockable External Access Door________   
3.5    Commercial Power Supply Receptacle, 25’ Cord and Plug                      ______ 
3.6    Electric Supply Center with Circuit Breaker Box, Commercial Power      
         and Generator Power Connectors                                                               ______ 
3.7    Automatic Power Transfer Switch                                                             _______ 
    
 
 

 

 

4.  E 350 TV Hi-Cube Van Control Room Interior 

4.1     13,500 Air Conditioner Roof Mount with 5600 BTU Heat Strip             ______ 
4.2      Lonseal Lonplate flooring                                                                        ________ 
4.3      Kemlite Surface Wall and Ceiling Covering                                            ________ 
4.4      Bulkhead Wall with Passage Door from Control Room to Equipment Rm_______ 
4.5      “Safety Plus Visual” viewing window located in bulkhead wall             ________ 
4.6      EVO II above Desk Control Console for Electronic Equipment            ________ 
4.7      Contoured desk top area                                                                          ________ 
4.8      Controller housing in desk top (in angled, recessed housing)                _______ 
4.9      110 Volt Indirect Fluorescent Light Fixtures                                         ________ 
4.10 Electrical Outlet with Dual Receptacles                                                ________ 
4.11 Fire Extinguisher with Bracket, 10 BC Rat                                        _________ 
4.12     Operators Chair, swivel with casters                                                     _______ 
        
5.  E 350 TV Hi-Cube Van Equipment Room Interior 

5.1 Lonseal Lonplate Flooring                                                                    _________ 
5.2 Kemlite Surface Wall and Ceiling Covering                                        _________ 
5.3 Insulated Tapered Roof                                                                        _________ 
5.4 Electrical Outlet with Dual Receptacles                                              _________ 
5.5 Downhole Pole Mounting Bracket Assembly                                     _________ 
5.6 110 Volt Indirect Fluorescent Light Fixtures                                      _________  



 

 
 
   
  
 

5.7       2 (Two) 12V Batteries                                                                         _________  
5.8       Workbench with Lonseal Lonplate covered worktop, Sink, and 20 Gal_______   
            Wash Down and upper Cabinet  
5.9       Retractable Hose Reel with 25’ Water Hose and Nozzle                       ______ 
            
6.  System Engineering Panel, Power Distribution System Rack Mount 

6.1       Voltage Readout, Power Supply                                                             _________ 
6.2 Hertz Readout, Power Supply for 60Hz                                         __________ 
6.3       Generator Hour Readout                                                                 __________ 
6.4       Remote Generator Start/Stop Control Switch                                        __________ 
     
7.  Color TV Power Control Unit-Multi Conductor Rack Mount, NTSC Standard                                
7.1 TV Camera Remote Optical Focus Control                                           __________ 
7.2 TV Camera Automatic Iris Remote Control                                          __________ 
7.3 TV Camera Lighthead Intensity Control with Meter                             __________ 
7.4 Camera Test Cable Assembly                                                                __________ 
 
8.  17” LCD Flat Screen Color Industrial TV Monitor, NTS/PAL Color Standards, 

     Built in Speakers                                                                                         __________     
.                            
9.  Combination VCR/DVD Player/Recorder System 

9.1       Rack mount for VCR/DVD                                                                   __________ 
9.2 Sony RDR VX500 VCR/DVD player/recorder                                     __________ 
9.3 Cable Assembly – DVD to Power Control Unit                                    __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.  Pipeline Data Collection & real Time Video Capture System, Rack mount 

10.1 Motherboard with 775 Socket and 935X Chipset                                  __________ 
10.2     Genuine Intel Pentium IV 3GHz Prescott CPU with EM64T instruction set                                       
             extensions support                                                                                 __________ 
10.3 1 GB of DDR2 (Double Data Rate) RAM, 675 MHz                            __________ 
10.4     PCI Video Capture Board for MPED 1/2/4 Video Capture                                                                  
            with Hardware Compression                                                                 __________ 
10.5 Video Graphics Card, Supporting up to 256MB, 16x PCI-Express     __________ 
10.6 LAN, On Board Network Connection, Intel 82547E1 10/100/1000     __________ 
10.7 6 (Six) USB 2.0 Ports (4 on Rear, 2 on Front)                                       __________ 
10.8 Soundblaster Compatible, On Board Sound                                          __________ 
10.9 DVD +/- RW DVD Burner 16x / CD-RW 40x Internal                       __________ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

10.10 2 (Two) 250 GB (7,200 RPM) SATA Hard Drives                              __________ 
10.11 450 Watt ATX Power Supply                                                               __________ 
10.12 19” Rack Mountable Video Character Generator & Titler                                                                 
__________ 
10.13 3 ½ inch 1.44 MB High Density FDD (Floppy Disk Drive)                                                               
__________ 
10.14 Industrial Hardened Case with Air Filtering, Vibration Dampening                                                      
            Hard Drive Mounts, Peripheral, Cards, Support Bar, 19” Rack                                                          
__________ 
10.15 101 Key Enhanced Heavy Duty Keyboard                                                                                         
__________ 
10.16 Optical PS2/USB Mouse                                                                                                                     
__________  
10.17   SVGA Multimedia Monitor with Speakers 17”                                                                                  
__________                  
10.18 Desk top Color Ink Jet Printer, 600x300 dpi, 512K                                                                          
__________ 
10.19   Windows XP Professional Operating System                                                                                     
__________ 
10.20 GRANITE XP Inspection Edition Version 2.x Software                                                                    
__________ 
10.21 User Guide, Hard-Copy                                                                                                                       
__________ 
10.22 User Guide, CD                                                                                                                                   
__________ 
                           
11.  GRANITE XP Engineering Edition Version 1.0 Software                                                                 
__________ 
11.1 User Guide, Hard-Copy                                                                                                                       
__________ 
11.2 User Guide, CD                                                                                                                                   
__________ 
              
12.  Rear Video Monitor 17” Flatscreen 
12.1     Video Monitor 17” LCD Flatscreen, NTSC/PAL Color Standards                                                    
__________                                                                                            
12.2 Cable Assembly; Video Monitor to Monitor in control room                                                              
_________                                                                                                                12.3 Monitor mount 
bracket                                                                                                                         _________   
            
13. Combination TV Transmission & Tow Cable Assembly 
13.1    1200’ Multi Conductor Kevlar Fiber Armored Cable, .350” Diameter                                                
_________ 
13.2    Kevlar Armored Cable Terminal Connector                                                                                         
_________ 
13.3    Stainless Steel bullet connection; field repairable; no scotchcase                                                        



 

 
 
   
  
 

__________ 
13.4    Cable Strain Relief                                                                                                                          
__________ 

 
14. Electric Motor Drive Television Cable Reel 
14.1    Power Level Wind & Multi-Ratio Manual Transmission                                                                    
__________ 
14.2    Footage Meter with Local Counter and Remote Electronic Counter                                                   
__________ 
14.3    Transmission Control at Viewing Station                                                                                            
__________ 
14.4    Local Reel Mount Electrical & Mechanical Control                                                                            
__________ 
14.5    Sealed Continuous Contact Slipring Assembly                                                                                    
__________ 
14.6    Controller Cable Reel/Power Winch Motor at the Viewing Station                                                    
__________ 
 
 
 
 
 
15. Pan, Tilt, and Boom Camera System 
15.1     Solid State Color Sewer TV Camera with a Pan & Rotate Camera Head,                          
            40:1 Zoom Ratio, 10X Optical Zoom, 4X Digital Zoom, NTSC Color Standard, 
            4x Light Integration.                                                                                                                            
__________ 
15.2 Camera Controller                                  
__________  
15.3 Camera Lighting System, built in for 6” Relined through 30” Pipe                            
__________  
15.4 Camera Transportation and Storage Cage                               
__________ 
  
16. Self-propelled Compact Steerable Camera Transporter, Wheel Driven   
16.1     Steerable Unit Designed to Turn 360 Degrees within its own radius                                                  
__________       16.2 Set of Rubber Wheels to inspect 6” Pipe                                                                                             
__________ 
16.3 Set of Rubber Wheels to inspect 8” Pipe                                                                                             
__________ 
16.4 Set of Rubber Wheels to inspect 10”-15” Pipe                                                                                   
__________ 
16.5 Two Speed Transmission to Maximize Torque in Larger Diameter Pipe with                
            Manual Shifter on Camera Carrier                                                                                                      
__________ 
16.6     The Unit Shall Have Forward, Free Wheel, and Powered Reverse Capabilities                                



 

 
 
   
  
 

_________             
16.7 All Six (6) Wheel Drive Transporter Assembly to Include Motor and Enclosed               
            Drive Train                                                                                                                                          
__________ 
16.8     Transporter Controller with Automatic Safety Off                                                                             
_________ 
16.9 Joystick Control for Full Proportional Steering of Transporter                                                           
_________ 
16.10 Tip-Up Rear 12-Pin Connector                                                                                                            
_________ 
16.11 Transporter Control Unit                                                                                                                     
_________ 
 
17. Cable Manhole Guide System 
17.1     TV Invert Pulley Assembly                                                                                                                
__________ 
17.2 6 (Six) Quick Coupling Extension Poles                                                                                            
__________ 
17.3 Manhole Adapter Hook                                                                                                                      
__________ 
17.4 Manhole Top Roller Assembly                                                                                                          
__________ 
17.5 Equipment Retrieval Tool                                                                                                                  
__________ 
 
18. TV Inspection Accessories Package 
18.1     TV Maintenance Tool Kit in Metal Tool Box                                                                                   
__________ 
18.2 3 (Three) Manual Operations, Instruction and Maintenance TV                                                       
__________ 
18.3 Manual Spare Parts, TV                                
__________ 
18.4 Video Training Tape, TV Systems Operating Procedures                                                                 
__________ 
18.5 Video Training Tape, System Trouble Shooting Procedures                                                             
__________ 
18.6 Video Training Tape, TV Cable Repair Procedures                                                                          
__________ 
 
 3 (Three) Days of Training On-Site in Mattoon, Illinois                                                                   

__________ 

 Delivery – F.O.B. Mattoon, Illinois                                                                                                   

__________ 

 



 

 
 
   
  
 

EXCEPTIONS TO BID SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Clause #   Explanation 
 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
_______   ______________________________________ 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
 
 
All warranty work is to be done at the City of Mattoon, Street Department location. If the machine has 

to be returned to the dealer’s shop for warranty repairs it must be done at the dealer’s expense and the dealer 
must immediately furnish the City of Mattoon with a suitable machine at no extra cost while repairs are being 
made. 

A two hour safety and maintenance training will be provided by the dealer at the City of Mattoon Street  
Department location. 
The City of Mattoon reserves the right to reject any and all bid proposals received, and accept any 

proposals for the type and make of equipment it may deem most favorable for the use intended.  
 
Make and Model of Sewer Camera:      _____________________________ 

 
 
Delivery Date:      _____________________________ 
 
 
Selling price for unit bid:     _____________________________ 
 
 
Final price for Sewer Camera                        _____________________________ 
 
 
Warranty Statement:      _____________________________ 
 
 
 
Selling Dealer Name & Address:                          _____________________________ 
 
                              ____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
 
 
Signature:                       ______________________________________ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 08/07/2007    CDR NO: 2007-779    SUBJECT: 
Ambulance Specifications 

SUBMITTAL DATE:  07/31/2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Michael L. Chism; Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED FOR  Alan Gilmore        
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator   Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Submitting Ambulance Specifications 
            

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:      NA    BUDGETED:  $120,000.00 REQUIRED:     N/A 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS 
REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the specifications as presented, with the attached cost estimate, not to exceed 
$120,000.00 and authorize the Fire Chief to solicit sealed bid proposals for the acquisition of a new 

Ambulance for the Fire Department.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
It is the desire of the Mattoon Fire Department to acquire and operate a new “B” service Ambulance in order to 
provide adequate emergency ambulance service to the citizens of Mattoon.  Providing this service was 
previously authorized in accordance with City of Mattoon Municipal Code of ordnances 34.55 MUNICIPAL 
AMBULANCE SERVICE.   The funding for this project is contained in the 2007-2008 budget as approved by 
the City Council. The Specifications attached to this Council Decision Request have been reviewed by the 
Ambulance Committee and the committee further recommends seeking only sealed bid proposals for delivery of 
a new ambulance. The Department will accept bids on alternative ambulances only if all items not meeting 
Department specifications are identified, listed, and fully explained on a separate page entitled “EXCEPTIONS 
TO SPECIFICATIONS” furthermore the City of Mattoon retains the right to waive any technicalities and the 
right to refuse or reject any and all bids. Once the new ambulance has been constructed, delivered, and accepted 
it will be placed into service.  



 

 
 
   
  
 

 Bidder Complies  
   
   
  Y___N___ 

 
FD-146 DRW CONVERSION 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
TYPE III 

CLASS I, DUAL REAR WHEEL CONFIGURATION 

 
STAR-OF-LIFE CERTIFIED AMBULANCE  

146" X 90" 

 
 
 

 
 

The Emergency Medical Vehicle described in this specification is designed to meet or exceed the 
requirements of Ford Motor Company QVM Program, Federal Ambulance Specification KKK-A-
1822 Revision F, and AMD Standards 001-009. 
 
NOTE:  Throughout the written Federal Ambulance Specification KKK-A-1822, there are 
frequent references to items to be included WHEN SPECIFIED. The manufacturer will build into a 
given ambulance any WHEN SPECIFIED item, but such items may not be included in the attached 
specifications. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

  Y___N___ 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
  
This specification covers a new, commercially built surface emergency medical care vehicle herein 
after referred to as ambulance or vehicle.  A vehicle in compliance with this specification shall be 
defined as a standard ambulance.  This vehicle shall be in accord with the Ambulance Design 
Criteria of the National Highway Traffic Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Washington, D.C.  This bid specification is based on the Federal Ambulance Specification KKK-A-
1822F effective July 2007. 
 
The purpose of this document is to provide minimum specifications and test parameters for the 
manufacture of an emergency medical care vehicle that meets the needs and desires of this 
agency.  It establishes essential criteria for the design, performance, equipment, and appearance of 
the vehicle.  All dimensions listed are given as the approximate sizes required to meet the needs of 
this department.  The object is to provide a vehicle that is in accordance with nationally recognized 
guidelines.  All vendors and manufacturers must meet all state and local regulations regarding the 
manufacturing, licensing, and sale of emergency rescue vehicles and ambulances within the state. 
 
This specification calls for the following type of vehicle.  It is in accordance with paragraph 1.2.1 of 
KKK-A-1822F. 
 
Type III: Specialty van (cutaway chassis) with integral or containerized 

modular body. 
  
Class I: Two-rear wheel driven (4x2). 
  
Configuration B: Elevating cot and squad bench for ALS (see 3.1.5.1/3.15.3 of KKK-A-

1822F). 
 
This is an engineer, design, construct, and deliver type specification and it is not the intention of this 
agency to write out vendors or manufacturers of similar or equal equipment of the types specified.  
It should be noted, however, that this specification is written around the specific needs of this 
department.  With the intent to standardize certain components, specific brands have been 
specified in certain places.  This has been done to establish a certain standard of quality.  Other 
brands will be accepted providing the vendor or manufacturer details how another brand will meet 
or exceed the quality of the actual brand specified.  Because of this, the Review Board reserves the 
right to accept or reject any and/or all bids. 
 
The emergency medical care vehicle, chassis, ambulance body, equipment, devices, medical 
accessories, and electronic equipment to be delivered under this contract shall be standard 
commercial products that meet or exceed the requirements of this specification.  The ambulance 
shall comply with all Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) and Federal regulations 
applicable or specified for the year of manufacture.  The chassis, components, and optional items 
shall be represented in the manufacturer's current technical data.  Materials used in the 
construction shall be new and not less than the quality conforming to current engineering and 
manufacturing practices.  Materials shall be free of defects and shall be suitable for the intended 
use. 
 
Any exceptions to these specifications must be clearly pointed out.  Otherwise, it will be considered 
that the items offered are in strict compliance with the written specifications and that the successful 



 

 
 
   
  
 

bidder will be responsible for delivering a vehicle meeting these specifications.  Any exceptions 
must be marked as such within the body of the bid and explained on a separate page marked 
"EXCEPTIONS". 
 
 
INFORMATION AND DESCRIPTIVE MATERIAL 
 
The bidder must furnish all information requested in the space provided on the bid form. The 
manufacturer must supply website address for the Ford QVM program certification list as proof that 
they are a current member of the Qualified Vehicle Modifier Program. This requirement must be met 
even if the chassis specified is not a Ford to ensure that chassis modification standards meet a 
desired minimum level.  The manufacturer must also supply certification to the current revision of 
KKK-A-1822 Specification for this particular type, at least one (1) complete set of sketches, 
descriptive literature, and complete specifications covering the products offered.  Bids not meeting 
this requirement will be considered non-responsive and shall be rejected. 
 
PRICES AND PAYMENTS 
 
All bid prices shall be on a F.O.B. destination and acceptance basis at the Purchaser's specified 
location.  These Prices shall be complete and include warranty.  Payment shall be made in 
accordance with these specifications and the Bid Proposal submitted by the Bidder.  Payment shall 
be made upon acceptance of the vehicle(s) and equipment specified under these specifications.  All 
bid prices and conditions must be specified on the bid proposal form.  Bid prices shall be valid for at 
least thirty [30] days from the date of the bid opening or as otherwise specified on the bid proposal 
form.  Full payment shall be made as each unit is received, inspected, and found to comply with the 
procurement specifications. 
 
GENERAL LIABILITY  
 
Bidders are required to submit with their bids a Certificate of Liability Insurance in the amount of five 
million dollars (5,000,000) in general liability as issued by the bidders insurance company. 

 
 
WARRANTY 
 
The successful manufacturer shall provide a twelve (12) month/12,000 mile warranty on the vehicle 
which covers defective parts and/or components, the improper choice of materials, parts, and/or 
components, improper design or engineering, and poor or improper workmanship or quality control 
techniques.  The warranty shall cover the complete vehicle and shall include all costs for labor and 
parts or materials that are required to correct all deficiencies. 
 
There shall be provided a lifetime electrical warranty that covers all conversion circuit boards, 
harnesses, switches, circuit breakers, and relays. 
 
There shall be provided a lifetime transferable modular body structural warranty.  The term 
transferable is to cover the transfer of the warranty to a second purchaser should the department 
sell this unit later.  The lifetime structural warranty period shall also remain in effect should the 
modular body be remounted onto a new chassis.  This remount must be performed at a service 
center authorized by the original manufacturer. 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

There shall be a ten (10) year/50,000 mile paint warranty. 
 
WARRANTY SURETY 
 
To ensure quality, service, and full compliance to the above warranties, the ambulance 
manufacturer must construct the complete vehicle, with the exception of the chassis.  Additional 
elements constructed and installed "in house" are required to ensure service and parts availability.  
Subcontractors or lease/rental agreements to outside agencies will fail to meet this requirement.  
NO EXCEPTIONS WILL BE ALLOWED. 

• Does the ambulance manufacturer as the prime contractor construct the modular body? 
 

• Does the ambulance manufacturer as the prime contractor apply paint? 
  

• Are interior cabinets constructed and installed by the ambulance manufacturer as the prime 
contractor? 

 

• Are the wiring harnesses, circuit boards, and O2 systems assembled, installed and tested by 

the ambulance manufacturer as the prime contractor? 
 

• Is the upholstery for seat cushions, head pads, and backrests assembled and installed by the 
ambulance manufacturer as the prime contractor? 

 
DELIVERY 
 
Since delivery proposals by the bidder will weigh heavily in the determination of the bid award, the 
delivery schedules that are submitted by the bidders shall automatically become binding upon the 
successful bidder. Delivery delays due to component supply problems or chassis delivery problems 
to the manufacturer shall not penalize either the dealer or the manufacturer.  Delivery must be 
within a maximum of six [6] months from the date of the award of the bid. 
 
ANTI-COLLUSION STATEMENT 
 
By signing this bid, the bidder agrees that his bid is made without any understanding, agreement, or 
connection with any other person, firm, or corporation making a bid for the same purpose and that 
his bid is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. 
 
Company Name: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Bidder Signature: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Data Signed: _____________________________________________________

_ 
 
SERVICE FACILITY 
 
The successful bidder must have access to a service facility.  Bidders must list below the nearest 
service facility and parts department to the purchaser. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
Facility Name: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Address: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Phone Number: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Contact Name: _____________________________________________________

_ 
  
Approximate Miles 
From Purchaser: 

 
_____________________________________________________
_ 

 
 
REFERENCES 
 
All bidders must submit a list containing a minimum of fifteen [15] customers who are operating a 
similar model ambulance as described in this specification.  The customer reference list shall 
contain the Department name, address, phone number and contact person. 
 
QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 
To ensure the purchaser that proper engineering and production control guidelines have been 
implemented the ambulance manufacturer shall employ an integrated quality and process control 
program including specific process controls for facets of the manufacturing process deemed to be 
“critical.” These critical elements of the process shall be documented and that documentation shall 
be available not only to manufacturing personnel but also customers who visit the manufacturing 
facilities. The critical elements shall be denoted on the vehicle control document, which 
accompanies the vehicle through the manufacturing process. A sample of this document shall be 
available to the purchaser upon request. A continuous series of inspections shall be performed and 
signed off on the vehicle control document and shall include but not be limited to the following: 
 
Visual inspection of the body, welds, and exterior attachments. 
 
Visual and mechanical inspection of the heater/air conditioning lines, cables, grommets, valve 
connections, clamps, mounting brackets, belts, etc. 
 
Visual inspection of cabinets, sliding/hinged cabinet doors, moldings, flooring, walls, headliner, and 
cushions. 
 
Visual inspection of exterior paint, decals, and lettering. 
 
Operational inspection of all electrical systems.  This must consist of tests of battery voltage, 
electrical load tests, alternator output, beacons, flashers, siren, interior lighting, compartment 
lighting, power exhaust vent, scene lights, load lights, chassis lights, silent signal lights/buzzer, 
heat/cool unit, and any optional electrical devices as furnished by the manufacturer.  The current 



 

 
 
   
  
 

requirements of each device tested must be noted on an inspection sheet together with the total 
current requirements. 
 
The oxygen and vacuum systems shall be tested both prior to and after installation to meet the 
requirements as listed in those individual sections of this specification. Test data indicating 
temperature, pressure, timing, flow, etc., shall be recorded. 
 
All chassis fluid levels shall be checked and filled to capacity. All doors, locks, windows, tires, etc. 
shall be inspected for proper operation and/or condition. 
 
The completed vehicle must be test driven a minimum of five (5) miles on paved highways and on 
rough terrain to check handling, brakes, acceleration, and noises.  A water spray test and visual 
inspection shall be performed after the road test. 

  Y___N___ 

No Additional Specification BoilerPlate Information Required 

  Y___N___ 
GENERAL VEHICLE DESIGN, TYPE, AND FLOORPLAN 
 
The ambulance and the allied equipment furnished under this specification shall be the 
manufacturer current commercial vehicle of the type and class specified. The ambulance shall be 
complete with the operating accessories as specified herein and furnished with such modifications 
and attachments as may be necessary or specified to enable the vehicle to function reliably and 
efficiently in sustained operation.  The design of the vehicle and the specified equipment shall 
permit accessibility for servicing, replacement, and adjustment of component parts and accessories 
with minimum disturbance to other components and systems.  The term "HEAVY DUTY" as used to 
describe an item shall mean in excess of the usual quantity, quality, or capacity that is normally 
supplied with the standard production vehicle or component. 

  Y___N___ 
COMPLETED VEHICLE DIMENSIONAL PARAMETERS 
 
The vehicle furnished shall comply with the following dimensions at curb weight: 
 

Length, Overall (including rear step) 251" 
Width, Exterior (excluding mirrors) 90" 
Wheelbase 139" 
Height, Rear Loading 31.25" 
Height, Ground to Step 17.75" 
Ground Clearance 7" 
Length, Patient Compartment Interior 138.13" 
Aisle Space with Cot Installed 12" 

 
 
CURB WEIGHT 
 
The curb weight is the total weight of the complete ambulance and is defined as the chassis, cab, 
body, and minimum required equipment as required by KKK-A-1822E, and includes a full 
compliment of fuel, lubricants, and coolant shall meet Federal Requirements. 
 
 
PAYLOAD ALLOWANCE 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
A minimum of 1,750 pounds will be allowed over and above the curb weight for personnel, patient, 
and miscellaneous support equipment. 

  Y___N___ 
INTERIOR HEADROOM 
 
66" of interior headroom shall be provided inside the patient area of the body.  It shall be free of 
obstructions for the occupants safety and shall meet or exceed all transportation and regulatory 
requirements. 

  Y___N___ 
TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS CAB/CHASSIS 
 
The ambulance shall be a Type III, Class I, and shall have a chassis furnished with a two-door 
cutaway van.  The cab/chassis shall be suitable for subsequent mounting of a modular 
(containerized) transferable equipped ambulance body conforming to the requirements specified 
herein. 

  Y___N___ 
CHASSIS MODEL AND TYPE 
 
The cab/chassis requirement of this specification is a 2008 GM CG3500 cutaway, 139" wheelbase, 
12,300 lb. GVWR, with YF2 Ambulance Package and equipped as follows: 
 
EXTERIOR 
 

• Bumper, front, chrome with step pad 

• Chrome appearance package 

• Windows, Solar-Ray tinted - all windows   
• Provisions for mounting front license plate  
• Rear wheels, 16.0" x 6.75" (40.6 cm x 15.2 cm), gray painted steel  

• Rear tire size, LT245/75R16E 

• Rear Spare Tire LT245/75R/16D located under the body. 

• Front wheels, 16.0" x 6.75" (40.6 cm x 15.2 cm), gray painted steel  

• Front tire size, LT245/75R16E 

• Paint , solid color white 
  
INTERIOR 

• Seat, driver, high back bucket seats, cloth with armrests 

• Seat, passenger, high back bucket seats, cloth with armrests 

• Mirror, Inside Rear View Day/ Night 

• Air bags, Driver's side only 

• Radio, AM-FM/ stereo radio  

• Power convenience package (power locks, windows).  Remote Keyless entry. 

• Tilt Wheel/ Cruise Control 

• Interior trim, Medium Pewter   

• Seat trim, cloth, Medium Pewter  

• Horn, Dual-Note 
 
MECHANICAL 

• DURAMAX DIESEL 6.6L TURBO DIESEL V8, 250 HP (186.4 KW) @ 3200 RPM, 460 LB-



 

 
 
   
  
 

FT(621 N-M) TORQUE @ 1600 RPM 

• Transmission, 4 Speed Automatic, heavy duty, electronically controlled with Overdrive, 
Tow/Haul Mode. 

• Batteries, Dual 770 CCA 

• External Transmission Air Cooler. 

• Differential, Heavy Duty Locking Rear 

• Dual 145 Amp alternators. 

• Air Conditioning, Single-Zone, Manual  
• HVAC System, Auxiliary Positions  

• High Idle Switch 

• Rear axle ratio, 3.73 

• 1WT Preferred Equipment Group 

• Fuel tank, Drivers Side Fill,  33 Gallon (US)  
 
Warranty: 
Basic:  3 years./ 36,000 Miles 
Drivetrain:  Gas and Diesel:  5 years./ 100,000 Miles 
Corrosion:  6 years./ 100,000 Miles 
Roadside Assistance:  5 years/ 100,000 Miles 

  Y___N___ 
SELF-ADJUSTING BRAKES 
 
The chassis brake system shall be Ford OEM standard hydraulic disc with front and rear anti-lock 
system. 

  Y___N___ 
TIRES 
 
The vehicle shall be equipped with five (5) wheels and tires.  Tires shall be OEM supplied 
245/75R16E steel belted radials with all-season tread design.  

  Y___N___ 
SPARE TIRE 
 
A spare tire shall be provided and shipped loose with the vehicle.  It shall match the tires specified 
for the vehicle.  No shelves or equipment trays shall be provided in this compartment, to allow for 
easy access to the spare tire. 

  Y___N___ 
SHOCK ABSORBERS 
 
Front and rear shock absorbers shall be OEM supplied and installed. 

  Y___N___ 
ELECTRIC THROTTLE 
 
The OEM High Idle Switch shall be preset to the proper RPM per the manufacturer's specifications.   

  Y___N___ 

* * * CHASSIS INTERIOR COMPONENTS * * *                      
  Y___N___ 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
The manufacturer's heaviest duty heating and air conditioning package must be used.  The 



 

 
 
   
  
 

rearview mirror shall be day/night visibility type.  The vehicle shall be equipped with dual electric 
multi-speed, delay windshield wipers and washer mechanism. The seatbelt/shoulder harness 
mechanisms shall be encased with a high impact plastic trim housing color keyed to match the 
driver's compartment.  The balance of the driver's compartment trim shall be accomplished by the 
use of Formica, carpet, and cloth backed vinyl trim panels with 3/8" high-density foam padding 
(having a R factor of 0.25). 

  Y___N___ 
CAB SEATING 
 
The driver's compartment shall be provided with OEM dual high-back captains chairs with armrests 
and chassis manufacturer standard features for the trim level selected. 

  Y___N___ 
The driver seat shall recline 4" and the passenger seat 2" from the upright position when both seat 
tracks are adjusted to the rear position. 

  Y___N___ 
HEADLINER 
 
The cab headliner shall be OEM standard automotive cloth. 

  Y___N___ 
BULKHEAD CAB 
 
The bulkhead cab shall be carpeted to match the dash color scheme. 

  Y___N___ 
SIGN 
 
One (1) "NO SMOKING OXYGEN EQUIPPED" and "FASTEN SEATBELT" sign shall be installed in 
the driver's compartment on the passenger side of the dash.  These signs shall be engraved or 
molded plastic for durability.  

  Y___N___ 
CAB FLOORING 
 
The cab flooring shall standard OEM supplied flooring. 

  Y___N___ 
BATTERY SWITCH 

 
A TST Commander 350 battery switch is to be installed.  This system will have an integral timer 
pre-set to open the power circuit from the batteries to the main circuit board and interrupt power to 
all conversion functions after 5 minutes with chassis ignition OFF.   

  Y___N___ 
ENGINE BLOCK HEATER 
 
The OEM chassis 1500-watt engine block heater shall be wired to the external 115 volt power 
source. 

  Y___N___ 
WHEEL SIMULATORS 
 
Dicor brand stainless steel wheel simulators with lug nut caps shall be provided on all outboard, in 
service wheels of the vehicle. 

  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

TIRE FILL EXTENSIONS 
Dicor stainless steel braided fill extensions shall be provided on both inside and outside rear tires of 
the dual rear wheel vehicle. 

  Y___N___ 
MIRRORS 
 
The existing mirrors shall be removed and replaced with Velvac bus style mirrors with black finish. 

  Y___N___ 
VEHICLE WIRING 
 
All insulated cable shall conform to SAE J1292 requirements and shall have GXL high temperature 
thermoplastic insulation conforming to SAE J1127 and J1128.  All wire shall be of a gauge size to 
carry 125% of the current required by the specific circuit without overheating.  All wires are to be 
color coded and stamped with the function of the circuit every four [4] inches for the continuous 
length of the line.  Where practical or required, all wires shall be routed in high temperature looms 
with a rating of 300 degrees Fahrenheit.  All conductors shall be annealed copper with machine 
crimps.  Wiring harnesses shall be assembled and warranted by the vehicle manufacturer.  NO 
EXCEPTIONS WILL BE ALLOWED. This system must meet or exceed AMD Standard 005, 
Ambulance 12-Volt DC Electrical System. 

  Y___N___ 
ALTERNATORS 
 
Two (2) internally regulated and internally rectified OEM 145 amp alternators, as included with the 
GM Ambulance Prep Package, shall be supplied.  The alternators must be covered by the chassis 
manufacturer's warranty. 

  Y___N___ 
WIRING MODULE 
 
A cabinet behind the rear facing technician seat will house the electrical components. Solenoids, 
relays, circuit breakers, etc. shall be on a module disconnect panel behind a door measuring 
approximately 49" high x 7.5" wide.  This door shall hinge on the right side for ease of maintenance 
and repair, and shall have a SouthCo flip-latch to secure the door.  Additionally, there shall be a 
removable panel with a SouthCo flip latch behind the Technicians seat for additional access to the 
electrical components. Ample venting shall be supplied. 

  Y___N___ 
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT CHARGING CIRCUIT 

 
Two (2) additional 12 VDC circuits for charging portable battery powered devices, i.e. Suction units, 
hand lights, defibrillators, portable radios, etc. shall be provided. These circuits shall prevent 
discharge of chassis batteries by only permitting the charging of portable devices when the vehicle 
is either running or the battery conditioner is connected to shore power (operational). This implies 
that a battery conditioner is required, and may be specified in a different location within these 
detailed specifications,but is not necessarily being specified within this paragraph. A minimum of 
10-amp circuit breaker protection shall be provided for each circuit. These tagged, identified leads 
shall be located, one (1) in the patient compartment and one (1) in the vehicle cab. These leads 
shall not be connected to power nor shall they have any connectors attached at either end. These 
circuits are intended for unspecified future use. 

  Y___N___ 
 CIRCUIT PROTECTION 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
Circuit breakers and relays are to be mounted securely to the inside of the electrical control center 
located in the patient compartment forward of the technician seat backrest. This cabinet shall have 
a door large enough for complete and unobstructed inspection and maintenance, and shall hinge 
out of the way for free movement.  The control center shall be large enough to house all circuit 
breakers, relays, flashers, and the medical isolator.  Space for one (1) additional 15-amp single pole 
breaker shall be provided on the main electrical board.   
 
All auxiliary circuitry shall incorporate overload protection devices of automatic or manual reset 
thermal breaker types with spade style plug-in connectors and shall continuously carry 100% of the 
rated capacity for a minimum of one (1) hour.  Bosch, Potter & Brumfield, Hella, and Omron brand 
relays may be used.  All circuit breakers and relays are to be spade mounted snap-in type for easy 
removal.  The circuit board shall be screen printed with all circuits legibly numbered and labeled.   
 
The electrical distribution panel must be a double-sided copper trace printed circuit board with a 
double-sided laminated isolator.  Board finish shall be semi-gloss non-photoimageable soldermask 
over bare copper with hot air-leveled solder over non-masked copper.  The board tracks must be 
sized for a three ounce copper panel with a minimum thickness of 0.0042 inches of copper on each 
side.  Fuse capacity shall determine the width and thickness requirements of each circuit track 
(minimum circuit track width is 100 mils).  All holes in the board must be plated through.  Terminal 
strips must be mounted on the board for connection of wiring harnesses.  The printed circuit board 
must meet or exceed a polyclad layered glass epoxy NEMA GRADE FR-4 material, and meet or 
exceed UL-94-V-O flammability rating and MIL-P-13949F-4B Specifications. The printed circuit 
board surface protection must be Dupont Vacrel "8000" Polymer and withstand the MIL-STD-810C 
Corrosion Test and the MIL-STD-055110D Thermal Shock Test.   
 
Design must be interchangeable with model styles from vehicle to vehicle without modification to 
wiring or compartment construction.  In addition to the main circuit board, there shall be additional 
boards of the same design to provide control, lighting, and indication for the compartment and entry 
doors.  All wires and connectors shall be of like resistance materials.  One (1) complete set of each 
size relay and circuit breaker shall be included and mounted next to the main circuit board. 
 
CIRCUIT GROUNDING 
 
Grounding must be accomplished by use of a full ground wire harness.  All ground wires shall be 
white in color and stamped every four inches (4") with the word "GROUND" or lettering "GRND".  
Ground return connections shall be made to the chassis structure, protected from corrosion, and 
available for service.  In no case shall the aluminum body be used as a ground return. 
 
Additionally, there shall be a minimum of five (5) ground points between the chassis and body 
components of the ambulance. One (1) 34”, 4 AWG braided ground strap between the engine block 
and the chassis frame; one (1) 2 ga. Stranded copper ground strap between the body and chassis 
frame; one (1) 2 AWG stranded copper ground strap between the battery box and the chassis 
frame; one (1) 2 AWG stranded copper ground strap between the drivers seat base electrical panel 
and the chassis frame; and one (1) 2 ga. Stranded copper ground strap between the cab floor and 
the chassis frame. These critical ground points shall be established with crimped copper ring 
connectors and dual star washers at each end of the ground strap. Due to the application of 
undercoating these grounds require no specific labeling. NO EXCEPTIONS ALLOWED. 
 
INSTALLATION AND PROTECTION 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
Wires shall be grouped or harnessed where practical.  Metal edges through which cables pass shall 
be protected with nonmetallic bushings or grommets.  All auxiliary circuits shall be wired separate 
and distinct from the vehicle chassis circuits, color coded, and clearly numbered.  All wire passing 
from the console head shall be encased in a heavy-duty loom.  All wiring shall be clipped or 
otherwise attached at suitable intervals to prevent rubbing or chafing due to wire movement, 
vibration, etc.  All wiring must be stamped, color coded, labeled to indicate wire function, and 
conform to SAE 1292.  NO EXCEPTIONS WILL BE ALLOWED.  
 
  Y___N___ 
SEQUENCER / LOAD MANAGER 
 
To prevent excessive loading or load spikes on the electrical generating system at system start up, 
a sequencer/load manager shall be integrated into the main circuit board for stepped control of the 
main master emergency functions.  The sequencer shall sequence ON or OFF all master 
emergency functions at 0.5 second intervals.  The sequencer/load manager shall sequence 
specified loads ON, in the following manner: 

 
1.  Body Warning Lights 

   2.  Patient Compartment Dome Lights 
   3.  Patient Compartment HVAC  
   4.  Front Light Bar 
   5.  Intersection and Grille Lights 
   6.  Rear Light Bar- if installed 
   7.  Wig-Wag Headlights- if installed 
 
When a “low voltage” situation is detected, an audible alarm shall sound and an indicator light shall 
illuminate signaling the situation. When the vehicle transmission is in PARK, the load manager shall 
shed emergency functions  until the system output voltage and the amperage draw of the systems 
still in operation equalize. When in PARK and the vehicle PARK BRAKE is applied the Stationary 
Elevated Idle Control (SEIC) will activate to provide additional voltage for the system.  If the “low 
voltage”, 12.0 volts or lower persists, the sequencer/load manager shall initiate the load shedding 
sequence at each 0.2 volt increment in the reverse order of these emergency functions. 
 
NOTE: Vital medical equipment such as suction aspirator system and/or electric oxygen valve shall 
not be included in the load shedding sequence. These systems shall remain powered until total 
failure of the electrical generating system occurs. 
 
LOW VOLTAGE MONITORING SYSTEM 
 
There shall be installed, as an integral function of the ambulance conversion main power board, 
circuitry that continually monitors electrical system voltage. This system shall activate an audible 
alarm and a steady burn red LED warning light to indicate that system voltage has reached or fallen 
below 11.7 volts. There shall be included a switch to deactivate the audible alarm. The audible 
alarm, LED indicator light and the switch shall be located on an auxiliary control panel located in the 
drivers control console below the main switch panel. 

  Y___N___ 
DRIVER SWITCHING CONSOLE 
 
A console shall be built onto the engine cover.  At the far right of the console will be housed the 



 

 
 
   
  
 

patient code lights and door open indicator lights.  The ammeter, voltmeter, and battery indicator 
lights shall be located on a separate panel.  The ammeter, depending on equipment/chassis 
manufacturer specified, shall indicate the current flow to the batteries or from the alternator.  The 12 
volt voltmeter shall indicate the voltage of the batteries.  An audible low voltage-warning device 
shall be installed with a reset cancel switch.  This device shall sound whenever the voltage of the 
vehicle drops below 11.8 volts.  This device shall automatically reset once the batteries are above 
11.8 volts.  A Datacon engine hourmeter will be locatednear the bottom of the console on the 
driver's side and will be wired to ensure an accurate reading of running hours. Both the volt and 
ammeters shall be digital with LED display. 
 
The complete console, manufactured of automotive plastics, shall be free of sharp edges and 
molded to match the contours of the engine cover.  It shall contain all emergency switches, module 
switching, and legends according to their function and have backlighting controlled by the headlight 
rheostat.  The switches shall be Euro-style, moisture resistant, rocker type, and shall be UL listed 
and CSA approved.  Switch terminals shall be 1/4" spade types.  The switch legends shall be 
engraved plastic inserts.  The backlighting shall light the words themselves rather than the 
background. Backlighting shall be accomplished with electro-luminescent light strips for their 
benefits of consistent light output, low amp draw, and extended service life. The console shall 
contain the following features: 
 
Master  Patient Status Indicator Lights 
Primary/Secondary Patient Door Open Red Light 
Front Lightbar Compartment Door Open Amber Light 
Backup Alarm Disable Hourmeter 
Horn/Siren [1] Ammeters 
Leftside Scene Lights Voltmeter 
Rear Load Lights Battery Indicator Lights 
Rightside Scene Lights Spare Switch 
Module Disconnect  
 
Additional switches shall be added to the console when specified in this document. 

  Y___N___ 
BATTERIES 
 
There shall be two (2) "No Maintenance" 12 volt batteries.  They shall total not less than 1,540 CCA 
with 180 minutes of reserve capacity.  One battery shall be mounted under the hood and one 
battery shall be installed in the P2 compartment.  Any battery disconnect devices should interrupt 
power to the ambulance module only. A Model MAC200/300 switch with a five-minute timer that 
secures power to the conversion module once the ignition has been turned off shall be installed. 

  Y___N___ 
SEAT BASE INTERNAL 12 VOLT DC POWER 
 
For certain standard internal 12-volt DC power circuits, there shall be circuit protection provided by 
the use of manual reset breakers mounted in the outboard panel of the driver's seat base. Potter & 
Brumfield 12 VDC breakers shall separately protect the Radio Power circuit with a 40-amp breaker; 
the Constant Power circuit with a 20-amp breaker; the Ford auto-throttle system with a 10-amp 
breaker; and the Isolator circuit for the two (2) additional 12 VDC charging circuits required in 21-
02-00, a 20-amp breaker. Due to the potential danger associated with a separate "battery hot" 
circuit, no exceptions to the above will be allowed.  This Isolator circuit includes a "low voltage" 
Schottky Diode to isolate medical equipment batteries from any electrical loads.  The diode shall be 



 

 
 
   
  
 

located and electrically connected between the circuit breaker and the receptacles. Additional 
breakers may be added for optional equipment such as power door locks, multiple radio 
installations or compressor pumps.  Additional radio leads including hot wire, ignition switched hot 
wire and ground shall be provided.  One set shall be in the front console and one set in the rear 
action area.  Each power lead shall have a 30 amp circuit breaker and include one 12 volt hotwire 
and fuse holder with 30 amp.  
  Y___N___ 
POWER OUTLET 
 
One (1) 12 volt "cigarette" style outlet shall be installed in the upper section of the ALS cabinet. 

  Y___N___ 
115 VOLT AC POWER 
 
There shall be 115 volt AC wiring furnished.  A three-wire system is used for powering medical 
equipment, battery charger, etc. This electrical system, including wiring and associated equipment, 
shall comply with AMD STD 009, 120V AC Electrical Systems.  The system shall incorporate a 
hospital grade GFI (Ground Fault Interrupt) device with a 20 amp circuit breaker that can also be 
used as a disconnect switch for the interior 115 volt outlets.  The GFI device shall be located on the 
streetside in the action area.  When an inverter is specified, an automatic transfer switch shall be 
furnished which will automatically turn off the inverter 115 volt supply when the 115 volt utility 
shoreline power is applied. 

  Y___N___ 
INVERTER 
 
A Heart Interface "Fleetpower 1000" inverter shall be provided and installed per the customer's 
requirements.  It shall be provided with a remote control. 

  Y___N___ 
EXTERIOR SHORE POWER 
 
There shall be a Kussmaul 115-volt "Auto-Eject" plug rated at 20 amps or more with a spring-loaded 
cover assembly, UL listed for exterior use, located on the left side of the ambulance body close to 
the driver's door.  The plug shall be equipped with a Dynamic Disconnect Switch.  This shall 
energize the vehicle's 115 volt AC circuit from an exterior power source.  This connector must be 
labeled: "115 volt AC, 60 Hz, 20 amp power supply". 

  Y___N___ 
INTERIOR 115 VOLT AC OUTLETS 
 
There shall be two (2) three-wire duplex 115-volt AC hospital grade receptacles.  One [1] shall be 
located in the primary action area one [1] in the ALS cabinet.  There shall be red indicator lights 
located within each 115-volt outlet to indicate a live "hot" circuit.  Add-on style indicators are not 
acceptable.  The receptacles shall be clearly labeled: "115 VAC". 

  Y___N___ 
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
 
All electrical equipment shall be electromagnetic radiation suppressed, filtered, or shielded to 
prevent interference with radio and telemetry equipment.  The RFI shall not exceed SAE J551 
limits. 

  Y___N___ 
SPOTLIGHT 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
There shall be one (1) Optronics "BlueEye 4000" hand-held spotlight rated at  400,000-candle 
power hardwired and located behind the driver seat.  The spotlight must be weatherproof, corrosion 
and chip resistant, have a non-glare "BlueEye" bulb, and have a momentary "ON" switch.  The curly 
cord shall be capable of extension to a length of approximately 5-feet to allow for use by either the 
driver or passenger. A hanger for the spotlight shall be shipped loose for installation by this 
department. 

 
  Y___N___ 
SIREN 
 
A Federal, model EQ2B siren with control head shall be provided. 

  Y___N___ 
SIREN SPEAKER 

 
  Y___N___ 
BACKUP ALARM 
 
A Preco, Model #230 backup alarm shall be installed on a 2” x 2” floor tube at the rear of the 
ambulance.  This alarm shall activate whenever the ambulance is put into reverse gear.  There shall 
be a momentary switch in the driver's switch console that will cancel the alarm.  The system shall 
have an automatic reset to activate the alarm the next time the vehicle is placed into reverse. When 
activated, this alarm shall generate an intermittent warning tone at a minimum of 97 dB as 
prescribed by KKK-A-1822E. 

  Y___N___ 
EXTERIOR LIGHTING 
 
Exterior lighting shall conform to FMVSS 108 and consist of halogen headlights, ICC clearance 
lights with chrome brush guards, parking lights, hazard warning lights, license plate lights, tail, stop, 
and backup lights.  Tail and stoplights shall have red, clear, and amber lenses.  Electrical wires for 
the taillights shall be sealed to protect them from the elements of weather.  There shall also be two 
(2) side body rear lights with red lenses that flash with turn signals and steady burn with the DOT 
lights.  There shall be, included with the bid, evidence from the lighting manufacturer that all 
specified warning lights meet the photometric and chromaticity requirements of the current version 
of KKK-A-1822 as certified by a third party testing entity. 

  Y___N___ 
Fourteen (14) ICC/DOT lights shall be provided and installed on the upper ambulance module body.  
Each light shall be incandescent type with a protective chrome bezel.  Two (2) each shall be 
installed on the side upper body corner extrusion areas.  Five (5) shall be installed on the rear and 
front upper body corner extrusion area. 

  Y___N___ 
Tail and stoplights shall be Whelen 600 Series incandescent, red and clear and the backup lights 
shall be Whelen 600 Series incandescent clear lights with integral Whelen flanges. Electrical wires 
for the taillights shall be sealed to protect them from the elements of weather.  Turn lights shall be 
Whelen 600 Series incandescent amber arrow turns with integral Whelen flanges. The tail and 
stoplights shall be mounted on the rear kick plate; the turn arrows shall be mounted on the rear 
module body.  

  Y___N___ 
FRONT WARNING LIGHTS 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
Two (2) Whelen 700 Series Super LED grille lights, each with Cast Products, Inc. bezel and a red 
lens shall be provided. 

  Y___N___ 
Two (2) Whelen 700 Series Super LED intersection lights, each with an integral 700 series flange 
and a red lens shall be provided. 

  Y___N___ 
A Whelen "AdvantEdge" #4500-KKKFL front lightbar.  Lighthead configuration to be specified.  The 
lightbar shall be mounted on the front upper position on the module. This lightbar shall replace the 
front upper warning lights.  Department to specify lens colors.  
  Y___N___ 
There shall also be two (2) Whelen 600 Series LED side turn body lights, one (1) mounted each 
upper corner of the front of the body, with amber lenses and arrows that flash with turn signals. 

  Y___N___ 
SIDE BODY LIGHTS 
 
Four (4) Whelen 900 Series Super LED side body lights shall be provided and mounted one (1) in 
each upper corner on both sides of the body.  The lens colors shall be red on both the streetside 
and curbside light sets. 

  Y___N___ 
There shall also be two (2) Whelen 700 Series Red LED side body rear lights with red lenses and 
integral flanges that flash with turn signals and steady burn with the DOT lights. 

  Y___N___ 
SCENE LIGHTS 
 
There shall be two (2) Whelen 900 Series Opti-Scene 8-32 degree dual halogen internal optic light 
head assemblies with double parabolic shaped rectangular reflectors on each side of the body. 
Each scene light shall have an integral prismatic inner lens giving a downward cast to the light 
beam. Each side shall be independently lighted and switched separately in the driver's switch 
console.  The lights shall be a minimum of 75" above the ground and not obstructed by open doors. 

  Y___N___ 
The two (2) curbside scene lights shall activate when the side entry door is opened and the (2) 
rearmost scene lights shall activate when the vehicle is placed in reverse.  

  Y___N___ 
REAR BODY LIGHTS 
 
Three (3) Whelen 900 Series Super LED rear body lights shall be provided and mounted in the 
upper corners and center of the rear body.  The lens colors shall be from left to right red, amber, 
red. 

  Y___N___ 
LOAD LIGHTS 
 
Two (2) Whelen 900 Series Opti-Scene 8-32 degree dual halogen internal optic light head 
assemblies with double parabolic shaped rectangular reflectors shall be located above the rear 
doors. Each light shall have an integral prismatic inner lens giving a downward cast to the light 
beam, and activate when the rear doors are opened or the vehicle placed in reverse gear. There 
shall also be a switch on the driver's console to activate the rear load lights when the doors are 
closed.  The lights shall be a minimum of 75" above the ground and not obstructed by open doors. 

  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

Two (2) Whelen 900 Series Super LED rear body lights shall be provided and mounted in the mid-
height position, one (1) each side of the rear body.  The lens colors shall be red. 

  Y___N___ 
WARNING LIGHT FLASH REQUIREMENTS 
 
Within the flash pattern established for each light or light group by KKK-A-1822E, each emergency 
light shall flash on/off 75 to 125 80 times per minute.  Each light shall have a  minimum of 20 square 
inches of illuminated viewing area.  The flash pattern for the warning lights on this vehicle shall be 
as described in KKK-A-1822E, Section 3.8.2.1, Table 1. Compliance with this specification shall not 
be compromised in order to maintain a high level of conspicuity for 360-degrees around the vehicle.  

  Y___N___ 
OPTI-COM SYSTEM 
 
A customer supplied Opti-Com system shall be installed.  Opticom only works when vehicle is 
placed in gear.   The parking brake shall turn off the Opticom emitter when applied 

  Y___N___ 
Two [2] Lights to be wired to brakes.  The brakes shall override the flashers.  Department to specify 
lights upon award of bid.  

  Y___N___ 
CONSTRUCTION CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The body shall be 144" (may change to 146”) long and 79.5" high.  All body panels, structures, and 
extrusions shall be fabricated of aluminum using alloys consistent with the load requirements of the 
vehicle.  Unitized body construction will be accomplished by MIG welding all sheets, radius 
extrusions, corners, structural members, etc. together.  All body surface aluminum side panels and 
roof panels shall be intermittently heliarc welded to body frame support members in such a manner 
as to provide maximum strength and durability without causing heat warp.  All exterior metal-to-
metal body seams or the area of attachment of one aluminum panel to another shall be heliarc 
welded.  All such welds shall be ground smooth for proper paint adhesion and appearance.  The 
body structure shall be built and warranted by the vehicle manufacturer.  NO EXCEPTIONS WILL 
BE ALLOWED.  The vehicle must additionally meet or exceed AMD Standard 001, Static Load Test 
for Ambulance Body Structure. 
 
CERTIFIED WELDING PERSONNEL 
 
To assure that the specified vehicle meets the letter, as well as the intent of the Specification, the 
welding of body structure, chassis attachment points, doors, any aluminum or stainless steel 
components or attachments shall be performed by or directly supervised by personnel Certified by 
the American Standard Welding Association (ASWA). Those individuals shall have proof of current 
certification and shall make such proof available to the department upon reasonable demand. 
 
CORNER EXTRUSIONS 
 
To ensure weight support and structure durability in the event of an accident or impact the utmost 
strength in corner posts must be used.  A radius arched aluminum extrusion is required.  The 
extrusion shall include a full-length reinforcing member that extends from the crest of the curvature 
to the focal point of the outer arch.  The continuous gusset must be extruded into the corner radius.  
Corner posts that are a part of the exterior body skin are not recommended as they may pull away 
at the point of impact. The extrusions must have a minimum strength of 29,000 psi. 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

ROOF 
 
The roof shall be constructed of one-piece .090" aluminum.  This aluminum shall be a highly 
corrosion resistant 5052H32 alloy with 2.5% magnesium and a tensile strength range of 28,000 to 
33,000 psi.  The roof substructure shall be constructed of four (4) full-length "Z" sections MIG 
welded to the roof for support.  The "Z" sections shall be a series of six (6) separate pieces running 
full length, front to back, bridging to the roof bow frame work.  They shall be of equally spaced 
distance, inboard to outboard, stair stepped sizes of 3/4" x 1-1/2" x 3/4" inboard, 3/4" x 1-1/4" x 3/4" 
center, and 3/4" x 1" x 3/4" outboard to form a crowned roof facilitating water runoff and ice build up.  
The roof shall then be reinforced the entire length of the unit.  For this reason, flat roofs shall be 
considered unacceptable.  There shall be in addition to the above supports, eleven (11) .125" x 1" x 
2" cross members welded to the "Z" sections 12" on center and be made of a highly corrosion 
resistant 6061T6 alloy with 1% magnesium and .6% silicone with a tensile strength range of 31,000 
to 35,000 psi.  Aluminum plates shall be welded between the roof support channels to mount 
lighting fixtures, assist rails, hanging stretcher mounts, and IV holders.  Corner gussets shall be 
heliarc welded to the roof radius extrusions to enhance roof load bearing characteristics.  Horizontal 
corner extrusions shall be .125" thickness and 2-1/2" radius.  There shall be an integral drip rail 
formed into the extrusion. The horizontal extrusions shall use an interlocking method to secure the 
roof sheet into the envelope of the extrusion.  The horizontal extrusions shall be of an open-face 
design for insertion of 2" x 2" x .125" tube structurals.  Corner caps shall be .125" cast aluminum 
and welded in place. 
 
SIDES 
 
The sides shall be constructed of .125" aluminum sheets with a highly corrosion resistant 5052H32 
alloy with 2.5% magnesium and a tensile strength range of 28,000 to 33,000 psi.  The body shall 
have straight sides free of waves and welding warpage.  Doorjambs shall be formed integral into 
the sidewall .090" aluminum sheets (extruded doorframes are not acceptable).  Each sidewall shall 
have eleven (11) vertical .125" x 1" x 2" wall studs 12" on center and joined to the roof supports.  
The box 1" x 2" channels shall be a highly corrosion resistant 6061T6 alloy with 1.0-% magnesium 
and .6% silicone and a tensile strength range of 31,000 to 35,000 psi.  All box 1" x 2" roof and side 
support bows are .125" aluminum.  Vertical corner extrusions shall be .125" thickness and have a 2-
1/2" radius.  The radius ends shall be tapered.  The vertical extrusions shall be slotted for insertion 
of the sidewall sheets.  The vertical extrusions shall be of a web construction design for internal 
structural support.  
 
A continuous 8" x 2" side impact beam shall be welded to side body and sidewall extrusions to each 
side of the unit where the squad bench and CPR seats are located.  This side impact beam shall 
allow for secure and customizable mounting points for the squad bench and CPR seat seatbelts.  
The side impact beam shall also provide additional structure and rigidity in these seating locations 
in the event of an accident.  This side impact beam shall be constructed of minimum 8” x 2” x .250" 
thick 5052H32 aluminum.   Seat belt backer plates welded or adhered in between the extrusions is 
unacceptable to this agency as this does not displace the energy of a side impact as effectively as a 
continuous side impact rail.  NO EXCEPTIONS.  

 
 
FLOOR 
 
The body floor shall have a tubular frame structure with main members constructed of .125" x 2" x 
2" and .125" x 1" x 2" 6061T6 aluminum tubes, all being fully welded and gusseted.  This framework 



 

 
 
   
  
 

is mounted using rubber gaskets to prevent contact of dissimilar metals.  The tubular framing shall 
be on average of 12" on center.  3/4" thick x 6" wide aluminum shall be welded on top of the 
cushion rubber mounts installed full length of the body.  This is necessary to add additional 
strength, ease in mounting, and ease in remounting the body later.  There shall be plates welded 
into the floor structure to provide additional mounting support for the cot mounts and technician 
seat.  The floor frame is then plated the entire length with a .090" 5053H32 aluminum moisture 
barrier mounted under the sub floor to act as a heat shield and vapor barrier.  The sub floor is then 
sealed and fastened to the floor structure. 
 
DRIVE SHAFT GUARD 
 
A square tube steel drive shaft loop or guard shall be installed just behind front U joint. This is 
designed to prevent the driveshaft from creating a dangerous situation such as hitting the ground or 
whipping in the event of a universal joint failure. 

  Y___N___ 
COMPARTMENT & ENTRY DOOR CONSTRUCTION 
 
All exterior compartment and entry doors shall be constructed of a single piece of .125” 5052H32 
sheet aluminum. The use of extrusions for doorjambs or doorjambs is not allowed. The door profile 
shall be a double pan form of 2.75” total thickness. Each door shall have the seal installed on the 
outer door pan flange to assure maximum sealing surface and to protect the rotary latching 
mechanism from environmental influences. Access for maintenance to the latching mechanism 
shall be through 2.0” mounting holes located in the upper and lower outboard edges of the inner 
door pan panel. These access holes shall be covered by a reflective device mounted to a rubber 
grommet cap. The inner door pan flange shall be formed to provide a recess in which the inner door 
liner panel is seated. Inner door liner panels shall be affixed to the flange with stainless steel, 
serrated spring washers and TX -25 Type F Torx-head machine screws. Each door shall be 
insulated with not less than 2.0” of spray foam. The insulation must be configured to prevent contact 
with or the fouling of the coated steel latch connecting rods. The interior door pan of each exterior 
door shall be stamped with a unique alphanumeric code denoting the specific size of that door. This 
code shall assure the quick and exact replacement of a damaged door. 

  Y___N___ 
EXTERIOR COMPARTMENT DEPTH 
 
All streetside exterior compartments shall have a clear depth of approximately 16.25" and all 
curbside exterior compartments shall have a clear depth of approximately 13.75".   
NO EXCEPTIONS. 

  Y___N___ 
INSULATION - DOLPHIN/KRAFT 
 
Prior to installation of the insulation the entire interior body interior surface will be sprayed with a 
heavy protective coating of sprayed in Dolphin HydroArmor latex rubber to provide sound 
deadening, vapor barrier and corrosion protection.  The body shall have 3/8" Reflectix dual air 
bubble core insulation in the walls and ceiling providing an insulation factor of R-11.  The insulation 
shall be fire retardant, non-settling, non-hydroscopic, and mildew and vermin proof.   

  Y___N___ 
HEAT SHIELDS 
 
To further insulate and protect the patient compartment the ambulance manufacturer shall install 18 
gage galvanized steel below the subfloor material to act as a heat shield and vapor barrier.  A .18 



 

 
 
   
  
 

gage galvanized steel sheet, with waterproof insulation laminated to it, shall be installed directly to 
the bottom of the floor tubes.  This will create a sandwich style construction to further insulate the 
patient floor in the area of the muffler and exhaust system. 

  Y___N___ 
FENDER INSULATOR 
 
An additional insulator shall be provided and installed on top of  the wheel well liner.  This layered 
rubber and aluminum foil material shall diminish the effects of noise created by  road debris and 
provide additional thermal insulation for the patient compartment . 
  Y___N___ 
CAB CONNECTION - WALK THROUGH 
 
Bolting shall be accomplished by a minimum of twenty-five (25) 1/4" Grade 8 bolts with lock 
washers.  Special care shall be taken in the installation of the neoprene gasket between the cab 
flange and the body to prevent the contact of dissimilar metals or deforming or tearing of the 
gasket..  
 
 

  Y___N___ 
MOUNTING 
 
The iso-mount  technique shall be used to mount the ambulance body to the chassis frame. 
Mounting hardware shall consist of .750” x 6” 6061T6 aluminum bar stock body sill plates, ten (10) 
7/16”-14 UNC threaded Grade 8 bolts, paired rubber isolators with steel cap and collared mounting 
nut for each mounting point. The bolts and rubber isolators are identical to the type used to mount 
the vehicle cab and are provided by the chassis manufacturer. Mounting holes in the top flange of 
chassis frame shall be those provided by the chassis manufacturer. The .750” x 6” aluminum bar 
stock mounting plates shall be bolted through the upper mounting isolator above the upper frame 
flange with the OEM Grade 8 bolt. The bolt passes through and secures the second isolator below 
the flange with the collared nut. The body shall be lowered onto the sill plates and the body sub 
floor cross members shall be welded to the aluminum bar stock mounting plates. This combination 
of components provides the body a cushioned ride on top of the frame and allows the body and 
frame to flex independently diminishing frame stress. This body-mounting configuration shall not 
prevent the vehicle from complying with the floor loading height requirement of KKK-A-1822E for 
the specified type of emergency medical vehicle. 

  Y___N___ 
LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION 
 
FORWARD OF REAR WHEEL WELL - D1 
 
A full height compartment shall be provided in the forward position ahead of the wheel well.  It shall 
have approximate exterior dimensions of: 
 
14" wide x 73" high 

  Y___N___ 
The D1 compartment shall have a solid, flush mounted, vertically hinged door, constructed of 
aluminum. 

  Y___N___ 
REAR OF WHEEL WELL - D4 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

A full height compartment shall be provided in the area rearward of the rear wheel well.  It shall 
have the approximate dimensions as follows: 
 
24" wide x 72" high 

  Y___N___ 
The D4 compartment shall have a single solid, flush mounted, vertically hinged doors. The door 
shall be constructed of aluminum. 

  Y___N___ 
RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION 
 
FORWARD OF REAR WHEEL WELL - P1 AND P2 
 
An intermediate compartment shall be provided in the upper, forward position ahead of the 
entry/egress door that allows easy access to the interior ALS cabinet.  It shall have approximate 
exterior dimensions of: 
 
18" wide x 47" high,  

  Y___N___ 
The P1 compartment shall have a solid, flush mounted, vertically hinged door, constructed of 
aluminum. 

  Y___N___ 
A low compartment (P2) shall be provided in the lower, forward position ahead of the entry/egress 
door.  It shall have approximate exterior dimensions of: 
 
18" wide x 14" high 
 
It shall have a slide-out tray with battery mounts.  The door shall be permanently affixed to create a 
"drawer" for easy access of the batteries. 

  Y___N___ 
It shall have a single, locking Tri-Mark paddle latch. 

  Y___N___ 
SIDE ENTRY DOOR 
 
All patient entry doors shall be constructed of a single piece of .125” 5052H32 sheet aluminum. The 
use of extrusions for doorjambs or doorjambs is not allowed. The door profile shall be a double pan 
form of 2.75” total thickness. Each door shall have the seal installed on the outer door pan flange to 
assure maximum sealing surface and to protect the rotary latching mechanism from environmental 
influences. Access for maintenance to the latching mechanism shall be through 2.0” mounting holes 
located in the upper and lower outboard edges of the inner door pan panel. A rubber grommeted 
cap shall cover these access holes. The inner door pan flange shall be formed to provide a recess 
in which the inner door liner panel is seated. Inner door liner panels shall be affixed to the flange 
with stainless steel, serrated spring washers and TX -25 Type F Torx-head machine screws. Each 
door shall be insulated with not less than 2.0” of spray foam. The insulation must be configured to 
prevent contact with or the fouling of the coated steel latch connecting rods.  NO EXCEPTIONS 
WILL BE ALLOWED. 

 
 
The door shall have a FMVSS approved Tri-Mark rotary latch with a Tri-Mark locking handle and 
shall have a two-point rotary latch with adjustable Nader pins located on the side of the door. It shall 



 

 
 
   
  
 

also be equipped with a spring assisted two-directional cam-over door check.  The door shall 
provide a clear opening of at least 32" wide and 68" high.  When opened, the door shall activate the 
interior dome lights. Each access door is to be stamped with an alphanumeric code, this will enable  
the exact replacement of a damaged door. 
 
The patient compartment access door shall have a full aluminum diamond plate stepwell. The 
stepwell must have a full 18"deep stepwhich allows for easy entry and egrees, a 9" high riser and 
be 32" wide to match the width of the side entry patient compartment door.  

  Y___N___ 
DOOR TRIM 
 
The door shall have a .090" smooth aluminum panels covering the upper and lower door sections. 
These panels shall be laminated with .028" Formica® plastic laminate, with color to match interior. 
They shall be impervious to moisture, easily cleaned, durable, and attractive.  The middle section 
shall be 18 ga. brushed stainless steel. It shall be formed to accommodate the edges of the upper 
and lower door panels and shall provide a solid mounting surface for the interior paddle handle. It 
shall be removable for ease of maintenance of interior door components. The inner door panels 
shall be affixed to the flange with stainless steel serrated spring washers and TX-25 Type F  Torx-
head machine screws. 

  Y___N___ 
STEPWELL LIGHT 
 
(1) Whelen 4'' LED light shall be provided for the curb side step well.  The light shall have a chrome 
flange and shall activate with the opening of the side entry door. 

  Y___N___ 
The side entry/egress entrance door shall have a 1" diameter polished stainless steel 45 degree 
ergonomic style assist handle. 

  Y___N___ 
REAR OF WHEEL WELL - P4 
 
A low compartment shall be provided in the forward area behind the rear wheel well.  It shall have 
the approximate dimensions as follows: 
 
35" wide x 28" high 

 
  Y___N___ 
The P4 compartment shall have a solid, flush mounted, vertically hinged door, constructed of 
aluminum. 

  Y___N___ 
REAR PATIENT ENTRY DOORS 
 
All patient entry doors shall be constructed of a single piece of .125” 5052H32 sheet aluminum. The 
use of extrusions for doorjambs or doorjambs is not allowed. The door profile shall be a double pan 
form of 2.75” total thickness. Each door shall have the seal installed on the outer door pan flange to 
assure maximum sealing surface and to protect the rotary latching mechanism from environmental 
influences. Access for maintenance to the latching mechanism shall be through 2.0” mounting holes 
located in the upper and lower outboard edges of the inner door pan panel. A rubber grommeted 
cap shall cover these access holes. The inner door pan flange shall be formed to provide a recess 
in which the inner door liner panel is seated. Inner door liner panels shall be affixed to the flange 



 

 
 
   
  
 

with stainless steel, serrated spring washers and TX -25 Type F Torx-head machine screws. Each 
door shall be insulated with not less than 2.0” of spray foam. The insulation must be configured to 
prevent contact with or the fouling of the coated steel latch connecting rods. The interior door pan of 
each exterior door shall be stamped with a unique alphanumeric code denoting the specific size of 
that door. This code shall assure the quick and exact replacement of a damaged door.  In addition, 
"C" channel bracing shall be added internally for additional door structural integrity.   

 
Both rear patient entrance doors shall have an FMVSS 206 tested Tri-Mark locking handles keyed 
alike to the side entrance door and a Tri-Mark non-locking handle.  Each rear door shall have a two-
point rotary latch with adjustable .50” Nader pins with head flanges at the top and bottom with 
release handles on the interior faces of the doors.  When opened, the rear doors shall provide an 
opening of at least 56" high and 56" wide.  Each rear door shall be equipped with a Cast Products 
"grabber" style door check, which shall be located at the bottom of the door.  When opened, the 
rear doors shall activate the interior dome lights and the rear exterior load lights. NO EXCEPTIONS 
ALLOWED. 

  Y___N___ 
DOOR TRIM 
 
The door shall have a .090" smooth aluminum panels covering the upper and lower door sections. 
These panels shall be laminated with .028" Formica® plastic laminate, with color to match interior. 
They shall be impervious to moisture, easily cleaned, durable, and attractive.  The middle section 
shall be 18 ga. brushed stainless steel. It shall be formed to accommodate the edges of the upper 
and lower door panels and shall provide a solid mounting surface for the interior paddle handle. It 
shall be removable for ease of maintenance  of interior door components. The inner door panels 
shall be affixed to the flange with stainless steel serrated spring washers and TX -25 Type F Torx-
head machine screws. 

  Y___N___ 
Each rear patient entrance door shall have a 1" diameter polished stainless steel 45 degree 
ergonomic style assist handle. 

  Y___N___ 
PATIENT COMPARTMENT EXHAUST VENT 
 
A three-speed power exhaust vent having a 240 cfm air flow rating shall be installed in the upper 
right rear wall above the patient entry door in the head knocker pad, with approximate dimensions 
of 6" wide x 8" high.  The resister coil shall be mounted in the fan air flow.  A switch shall be 
mounted at the right hand of the technician in the action area switch console.  A positive closure to 
prevent destabilization of the patient compartment shall be provided. 

  Y___N___ 
SLIDING WINDOW 
 
The entry/egress door shall be provided with a Cleer Vision Brand 20" wide x 19" high horizontally 
sliding window.  It shall have tempered, automotive, privacy safety glass and shall have a locking 
mechanism to keep the window panels in the desired position.  A screen shall be provided, to 
prevent airborn particles from entering the vehicle, when the window panels are in the open 
position. 

  Y___N___ 
FIXED WINDOWS 
 
The rear patient entry doors shall each be provided with an 20" wide x 19" high fixed window panel.  
Each window shall have tempered, automotive privacy safety glass. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

  Y___N___ 
EXTERIOR COMPARTMENT FABRICATION 
 
All exterior compartment walls and ceilings shall be constructed of .090" smooth aluminum with 
.090" smooth aluminum floors, formed and heliarc welded.  Exterior compartments are welded to 
both the inside wall vertical structure and floor structure components for strength and durability.  All 
exterior compartment floors, walls and ceilings (except for the backboard compartment if specified) 
shall be painted with gray/white spatter paint.  Each floor shall be "sweep out" design.  Each floor 
shall have weep-hole baffles to prevent road water entry. 

  Y___N___ 
All exterior compartment doors shall be equipped with a gas charged hold open door check.  

  Y___N___ 
EXTERIOR COMPARTMENT DOORS 
 
Each exterior compartment door shall be constructed of .125" 5052H32 aluminum sheet double pan 
formed with a 1.5''' return bend with recessed offset supporting the .063" 3003 alloy aluminum 
diamond plate interior liner.  Extruded doors and/or doorframes are not acceptable.  In addition, for 
maximum rigidity, 2.375" "C" channel bracing shall be added internally for additional door structural 
integrity.  The exterior face of the door and the door edges shall be formed from one [1] sheet of 
aluminum.  All doors shall be flush with the body side and shall be fully insulated with polyurethane 
spray foam.  When opened, the doors will activate their respective compartment lights.  All 
compartment doors shall be keyed alike.  Each access door is to be stamped with an alphanumeric 
code; this will enable the quick and  exact replacement of a damaged door. The inner door panels 
shall be affixed to the flange with stainless steel serrated spring washers and TX-25 Type F Torx-
head machine screws. 
 
EXTERIOR COMPARTMENT DOOR HANDLES AND LATCHING 

 
Door hinges shall be full length stainless steel #304-2B buffed and polished with a 1/4" stainless pin 
and shall be fastened to the door and door frame with self-locking stainless steel screws.  Hinges 
are to be of a slotted style with a round hole on each leaf of the hinge for permanent lifetime 
adjustment of the doors.  Hinges shall be staked, not welded, every 4” to prevent pin from moving.  
NO EXCEPTIONS ALLOWED.  The locking mechanism shall be a Tri-Mark #13136 outside handle, 
a #13028 inside handle with a #12765-01 gasket for the external handle with #14229-01 and 
#14230-01 rotary latch and #10355U adjustable Nader pin.  Latches shall be near flush with the 
door skin.  Each latch must be capable of being locked independently with an integral exterior key 
lock  and a key matching the locks on the curbside and rear entry doors.  The latch system is to be 
activated by the use of a .156” zinc plated steel rod with a single point threaded adjustment 
mechanism.  Systems operated by cables are unacceptable due to the tendency of cable to stretch 
or fatigue prematurely.  NO EXCEPTIONS WILL BE ALLOWED.  The latch and the Nader pin shall 
be mounted so as not to interrupt the continuous door seal.  A .437” hole shall be drilled into the 
edge of each door adjacent to the paddle handle. This lubrication access shall be sealed with a 
removable plastic cap for protection of the internal mechanism. 

  Y___N___ 
 EXTERIOR OXYGEN COMPARTMENT VENT 
 
One (1) #1031 Cast Products, polished aluminum exterior oxygen compartment vent shall be 
provided and installed on the door of the exterior compartment that houses the oxygen tank 
retention system.  The vent hole shall be 3” in diameter and provide adequate ventilation for 
gaseous oxygen should a leak occur.  A black plastic vent shall be provided and installed on the 



 

 
 
   
  
 

interior door liner covering the vent hole to protect it from intrusion by the elements when the door is 
open. 

  Y___N___ 
The floor and shelf of each exterior compartment shall be covered with Dri-Deck material that shall 
be black in color. 

  Y___N___ 
DOOR GRABBERS 
 
A set of door Cast Products "Grabbers" shall be provided at the bottom of the rear doors. They shall 
be fastened to the door and door frame with self-locking stainless steel screws.  NO EXCEPTIONS 
WILL BE ALLOWED.   

  Y___N___ 
STAINLESS STEEL DOOR SILL PROTECTION 
 
There shall be a 20 ga. formed stainless steel compartment doorsill protection for all exterior 
compartments. The stainless protector shall be affixed with heavy duty double sided tape to the top 
surface of the doorsill and extend over the radius edge.  

  Y___N___ 
 COMPARTMENT ILLUMINATION 
 
Each exterior compartment shall be illuminated with 4.25” round, Liteco incandescent lights Model 
#69000200.  These lights shall have clear Lexan lenses and be recessed into the compartment 
sides and/or ceiling above and below any specified shelf.  Each door shall have an individual 
automatic switch to signal a “door or compartment open” condition and to turn on interior lighting 
when the door is opened.  The switches shall be Sentrol heavy duty, magnetic reed switches 
mounted in the doorframe header interior to the protective door seal. 

  Y___N___ 
OXYGEN TANK MOUNT 
 
One (1) set of fully adjustable stainless steel rings shall be provided to secure an "M" type oxygen 
tank in exterior compartment D1. The retention system required shall consist of four (4) distinct 
sections including: (1) headpiece consisting of an angled, “U”-shaped plate with a retainer collar 
wing-nutted in place across the open “U” and one overlapping, hinged ring with wing-nut closure; 
(2) additional sets of hinged, overlapping rings; (1) fixed base plate with cylinder centering ring. The 
headpiece and ring sets shall be adjustable for height to accommodate cylinders of various 
dimensions. Vertical adjustment shall be accomplished by mounting these components with spring-
nuts into a 1.625” x .750” aluminum C-channel securely bolted to the wall of the compartment with 
Grade 8 bolts drilled and  tapped into a .250” aluminum plate welded to the inboard side of the 
compartment wall. This oxygen tank retention system must meet or exceed AMD Standard 003, 
Oxygen Retention System. NO EXCEPTIONS ALLOWED. 

  Y___N___ 
 SIDE BODY SEAMS 
 
All side center body seams are to be MIG welded, fully filled and body finished to create a smooth, 
blemish free surface for final finishing and painting. There shall be no side body molding applied or 
required.   

  Y___N___ 
REAR BUMPER 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

The rear step bumper shall be approximately 81" wide and a step tread of 10".  The bumper shall 
be supported with a 3" steel angle sub frame and have 1/4" steel angle outer frame construction.  
The bumper shall be bolted to the chassis frame rails to reduce body damage and direct impact 
under the body, away from the patient area should a crash occur. There shall be supports built into 
the bumper framing to reinforce the end pods.  The height of the outer ends shall be 4" in height 
and have 3" radius corners. The center section of the bumper shall be 7" x 48" x 2" of an open grate 
diamond back material and shall flip-up for ease in loading a cot. There shall be an aluminum 
diamond plate cover on the rear face of the flip-up step. The aluminum step shall be bolted to the 
sub frame with 1/4" x 20 stainless steel bolts for ease of replacement.  A .125" 3003 alloy aluminum 
diamond plate kick plate shall be secured to the full width of the body between the step and the 
threshold. 

  Y___N___ 
The outer ends of the bumper shall be constructed of aluminum diamond plate slip resistant 
stepping surface. 

  Y___N___ 
An aluminum diamond plate cot protection plate on the rear face of the rear step shall be provided. 

  Y___N___ 
BODY HARDWARE 
 
All body hardware, all compartment and entry doors shall be mounted on the body with stainless 
steel screws. All stainless mounting screws shall be dipped in or sprayed with electrolysis 
preventive solution before installation on the body.  This is required to minimize the process of 
electrolysis. NO EXCEPTIONS ALLOWED.  

  Y___N___ 
BODY PROTECTION 
 
A full-length body rub rail shall be attached to both sides and extend from the body below the 
compartment doors.  This rub rail shall be constructed of 1.5” x 2” x .250”” "C" channel aluminum.  
The rub rails shall be attached to the lower margin of the body skirt using 1” x .25”-20 stainless steel 
flat head  mounting bolts with stainless acorn nuts to the outside and plastic or nylon washers 
between the rub rail and body.  For additional protection and for compliance with state highway 
requirements, two [2] heavy-duty composite mud flaps shall be installed behind the rear dual 
wheels. The mud flaps shall extend the full width of each set of dual wheels. d the vehicle be struck.  
Two [2] heavy duty mudflaps shall be installed behind the rear dual wheels. 

  Y___N___ 
FUEL ENTRY 
 
There shall be a 7.75” x 7.75” cast aluminum fuel fill protector recessed into the body above and in 
front of the streetside wheelwell.  Steel fuel fill protectors are not acceptable.  This protective bezel 
shall be sealed to the body to prevent spilled fuel from seeping behind the bezel and shall have a 
rubber grommet hole to protect the fuel cap retention strap. 

  Y___N___ 
RUNNING BOARDS AND GUARDS 
 
To provide for increased road splash protection and ease of driver/technician entry and exit, 
aluminum diamond plate running boards shall be installed on the vehicle.  The running boards shall 
incorporate front splash and stone guards and be tapered out to the edge of the chassis fenders 
and fastened.  The material used must be a minimum of .090" 3003 alloy aluminum diamond plate. 

  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

STONE GUARDS 
 
The lower forward corners of the body shall have approximately 17" high .063" 3003 alloy aluminum 
diamond plate rolled around the corner radius and terminate at the junction of the cab and the body. 
 
The lower rear corners of the body shall have approximately 12.5" high .063" 3003 alloy aluminum 
diamond plate rolled around the corner radius and terminate at the rear kick plate area. 

  Y___N___ 
FENDERETTES 
 
Formed, 16 ga. stainless steel fenderettes shall be provided around each rear wheel well opening.  
They shall help diminish  damage to the wheel well area of the body caused by stones and road 
debris 

  Y___N___ 
LICENSE PLATE 
 
The rear license plate holder shall be surface mounted on the rear kick panel below the rear doors.  
It shall consist of two (2) nutserts and shall have a light to illuminate the plate. 

  Y___N___ 
UNDERCOATING 
 
Ziebart brand undercoating shall be liberally applied to the entire undercarriage of the chassis and 
vehicle body.  Undercoating shall be applied according to Ford QVM guidelines to a thickness 
between .062” to .125” as prescribed in KKK-A-1822E. 

  Y___N___ 
INTERIOR PATIENT COMPARTMENT COMPONENTS 
 
Patient Compartment Sound Levels: This vehicle shall provide an interior working environment in 
which the ambient noise level is less than 80 dB as measured according to AMD Standard 006, 
Sound Level Test Code for Ambulance Compartment Interiors. 
Patient Compartment Carbon Monoxide Levels: This vehicle shall provide an interior working 
environment in which the carbon monoxide level is less than 10 ppm as measured in accordance 
with AMD Standard 007, Carbon Monoxide Levels for Ambulance Compartment Interiors. 

  Y___N___ 
CABINET GLASS 
 
All cabinet doors incorporating acrylic glass, as sliding or hinged windows shall have .250” thick 
smoked acrylic Plexiglas® as the standard material 

  Y___N___ 
CABINETRY 
 
The cabinetry in the patient compartment shall have picture framed window face fronts fabricated 
from 3/4" lightweight Luan plywood material and laminated with a minimum .028" Formica.  The 
shelves and the supporting structure shall be 3/4" lightweight Luan plywood material and laminated 
with a minimum of .028" Formica on both sides. 
 
Nonsupportive partitions shall be 1/2" lightweight Luan plywood material and laminated with a 
minimum of .028" Formica on both sides.  All vertical outside corners and protruding edges of 
overhead storage shall be capped with .5" radius satin finish anodized aluminum moldings or 
padded vinyl. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
All cabinetry shall be sealed and molded to the floor with bright-anodized aluminum molding.  All 
interior materials, cabinetry, vinyl, foam, and installation used shall meet or exceed FMVSS 302 
requirements on flammability of interior materials (where applicable). 

  Y___N___ 
PATIENT COMPARTMENT LIGHTS 
 
Patient compartment lighting shall consist of six (6) dual intensity dome lights switched in the action 
area control panel. These lights shall have dual bulbs (halogen/incandescent) with Lexan lenses, 
and shall be activated in separate banks of three (3).  There shall be one (1) bank over the squad 
bench and one (1) bank over the primary cot.  Two (2) switches shall be provided in the action area 
console (one [1] switch for each bank of lights) with high/off/low positions.  All six (6) dome lights 
shall also be activated on "LOW" when either the side patient entry door of rear patient entry doors 
are opened.  There shall be a three-minute time delay system activated by the patient entry doors.  
This system shall be battery hot.  No ceiling light or attachment shall protrude into the patient 
compartment by more than 1-1/4". 
 
The entire light base shall be fastened securely to .090 aluminum backer plates located in the 
ceiling of the patient compartment.  The light base shall have a powder coated white finish.  A white 
finish is known to soften the overall illumination of the module, thus, creating less illumination “hot 
spots” and more of a natural lighting effect in the patient compartment.  This white base also 
reduces heat, thus leading to longer bulb life.  
 
Two (2) Thinlite brand 39" fluorescent lights shall also be provided and installed.  One (1) on/off 
position switch shall be provided in the action area console. 

  Y___N___ 
CEILING HEADLINER 
 
The patient compartment headliner shall be constructed of a durable, high-gloss white, plasticized 
Marlite, backed with a nonrigid  plywood substrate material.  The headliner shall be securely affixed 
to the roof bows and to the .090” aluminum accessory plate welded to the roof structure.  There 
shall be a full-length inspection access/wire race in the center of the ceiling, which provides access 
to the wiring harness and antennae bases/leads. The access shall have removable  padded vinyl 
covers.  

  Y___N___ 
CONDUIT 
 
A 2" fixed conduit shall be supplied and mounted to the underside of the vehicle.  It shall be run 
from the cab backward to the left side interior.  Exact location of the conduit end plates shall be 
determined at the pre-construction meeting, depending upon final cabinet configurations.  This 
conduit shall house future electrical wiring, not included. 

  Y___N___ 
THINLITE LIGHT 
 
An 18" surface mounted Thinlite light shall be provided and installed in the primary action area.  
This light shall have a manual "on/off" switch. 

  Y___N___ 
FLOORING 
 
A one-piece 3/4" plywood sub floor shall be installed on top of the .090" thick aluminum sheet.  The 



 

 
 
   
  
 

3/4" plywood sheet shall be securely fastened with sheet metal screws long enough to penetrate 
the 2" x 2" body tubes below the .090" aluminum sheet. This process shall create a sandwich effect 
for long lasting durability and a solid surface. All screws shall be filled and sanded to provide a 
smooth surface for the linoleum covering.  Floor lengths longer than 144" shall include a two-piece 
plywood underlayment. Vinyl, antiskid, commercial grade, heavy-duty, nonporous floor covering 
shall be applied to the entire floor in a one-piece seamless application.  This commercial inlaid 
sheet vinyl shall have minimums of nominal overall thickness of 2.03 mm. The flooring shall comply 
with ASTM F 970 (modified) in regard to static load bearing and D-2047 James Test for slip 
resistance.  A waterproof sealant shall be applied between the cabinetry and the floor at the cabinet 
and floor covering juncture. 

  Y___N___ 
REAR THRESHOLD 
 
There shall be a 6" wide, 16 ga. formed, stainless steel threshold protector installed on the rear 
interior of the body.  The protector It shall run the entire width of the floor at the door opening.  A 2" 
wide, adhesive-backed non-skid material shall be installed on the threshold piece to assist with safe 
entry and exit from the vehicle.   

  Y___N___ 
The formica color for all cabinets within the patient compartment shall be White #949. 

  Y___N___ 

The formica shall have a matte finish. 
 
  Y___N___ 
The LonPlate II brand flooring color shall be Gunpowder (dark gray) #424TX. 

  Y___N___ 
The upholstery color shall be Gunmetal #MV102 (Brown). 

  Y___N___ 
LEFT SIDE CABINETRY 
 
ACTION AREA 
 
An efficient and accessible action area shall be located to the right of the attendant seat. Oxygen 
and suction/aspiration equipment outlets shall be readily accessible.  It shall provide a counter for 
the attendant's use.  The counter shall have a 3/4" lip to prevent items from falling.  For the 
attendant's safety, the foremost vertical leading edge and top horizontal edge of the action area 
cabinet shall be trimmed with fabric backed padded vinyl.  The foam padding shall be 3/8" high-
density foam and shall have an R-factor of 0.25.  All seams are to be machine stitched for proper fit 
and durability. 

  Y___N___ 
ACTION AREA CONTROL PANEL 
 
All module lighting shall be controlled in a switching console located to the right side of the 
attendant seat.  The switching console shall be located below the cabinet above the action area in a 
gang-mounted switch panel. Switches shall be backlit, have lighted legends and be grouped 
accordingly to their function.  The switch panel shall contain the following switches and features: 
 
Heat/Cool Fan Speed Control 
Heat/Off/Cool Mode Selector 
Left Dome Lights 



 

 
 
   
  
 

Right Dome Lights 
Suction Pump 
Spare Switch 
Patients Status Buzzer 
Patient Status Indicator Lights 
Exhaust Fan Control 

  Y___N___ 
ACTION AREA OVERHEAD CABINET 
 
A cabinet shall be installed above the action area. 

  Y___N___ 
It shall have sliding Plexiglass doors. 

  Y___N___ 
A full length, aluminum handle on each door. 

  Y___N___ 
CABINETS BELOW ACTION AREA 
 
A storage cabinet shall be provided below the action area, in the upper position.  This cabinet shall 
be made of the same materials as the rest of the cabinets. This cabinet shall be made of the same 
materials as the rest of the cabinets and include a pocket sliding Plexiglas door with an aluminum 
handle. 
 
A second cabinet shall be provided below the action area, in the lower position.  This cabinet shall 
have a removable formica access door with a vent.  It shall also have two (2) flip latches for easy 
access.  This cabinet is designed for inverter, miscellaneous or radio module storage. 

  Y___N___ 
SHARPS AND MEDICAL WASTE BELOW ACTION AREA 
 
A lift-up sharps and medical waste container shall be provided below the action area, in the forward 
position.  It shall have approximate dimensions of 12.5" high x 19.5" wide. The contents shall be 
removed via access through a hinged, red Plexiglas door mounted on the countertop. 

  Y___N___ 
SUPPLY CABINETS 
 
Two (2) cabinets shall be installed rearward of the primary action area.  Each cabinet shall be 
separated into two sections with a center divider.  Each cabinet section shall be provided with 
adjustable shelves, two (2) mounted on the left side and one two (2) mounted on the right side.  All 
shelves shall have a minimum ½” perimeter lip.  Shelf height shall be adjustable using C-channel 
shelf tracking.  

  Y___N___ 
The upper cabinet shall have sliding Plexiglass doors. 

  Y___N___ 
A full length, aluminum extruded handle shall be provided on each upper cabinet door. 

  Y___N___ 
The lower cabinet shall have sliding Plexiglass doors. 

  Y___N___ 
A full length, aluminum extruded handle shall be provided on each forward lower cabinet door. 

  Y___N___ 
OXYGEN COMPARTMENT 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
The oxygen cylinder storage compartment shall be located in the streetside front compartment D1. 
Access to the regulator, contents gauge, and cylinder shut-off valve from the interior of the vehicle 
shall be by means of a hinged .250” thick Plexiglas® door in the forward wall of the action area. 
This opening shall be trimmed with a black, ABS formed bezel to protect the technicians hands and 
provide a finished opening.  The compartment shall be vented through the exterior door with a 
minimum 28 square inch opening.  The vent opening shall be covered with a polished aluminum 
vent cover.  It shall be attached with stainless screws. The oxygen cylinder retention bracket shall 
be mounted to the wall of the compartment by Grade 8 bolts tapped into a .250” aluminum plate 
welded onto the inboard side of the compartment wall. This retention bracket must meet or exceed 
AMD Standard 003, Oxygen Retention System. The finished oxygen system including regulator, 
contents gauge, hoses, outlets and flowmeter must meet or exceed the requirements of AMD 
Standard 015, Ambulance Main Oxygen System Test.   

  Y___N___ 
WIRING MODULE 
 
A rectangular style cabinet behind the rear facing technician seat shall house the electrical 
components.  Solenoids, relays, circuit breakers, etc. shall be on a module disconnect panel behind 
a door measuring approximately 49" high x 10" wide.  Ample venting shall be supplied. 

  Y___N___ 
The cabinet shall have a vertically hinged door and shall be provided with a locking flip latch.  This 
door shall hinge on the left side for ease of maintenance and repair. 

  Y___N___ 
The patient compartment heat and air conditioning shall be controlled and maintained through a 
standard, automatically controlled household thermostat. 

  Y___N___ 
SLIDING DOOR WALK-THROUGH 
 
There shall be a sliding access door 47" high x 18" wide x .750” thick and shall have a fixed, tinted 
.250” thick Plexiglas® window trimmed with a formed ABS bezel.  The door shall slide freely on a 
suspended track with a bottom guide and shall have positive latches to hold it in both the open and 
closed positions.  A rotary sash latch shall be installed on cab side to allow the driver to “lock” the 
door closed to prevent unauthorized access to the drivers compartment while the vehicle is in 
operation . The door shall slide and store behind the driver seat. 
 
An aluminum partition wall framed with .125" x .750” x 1.5” x .750”  aluminum "C" channel placed on 
16" centers and plated with .060" smooth aluminum, formed and welded to the roof, both sides, and 
floor shall be installed.  The patient compartment side of the partition shall be covered with .250” 

plywood laminated with a minimum of .028"  Formica®   The driver's side of the partition shall be 
covered with a mildew resistant marine style carpet of a color that coordinates with the cab interior 
colors.   

  Y___N___ 
A combination heater/air conditioner having an air output of 650 cfm at 0 static pressure, a cooling 
capacity of 32,000 BTU and a heating capacity of 35,000 BTU shall be installed over the walk 
through.   
 
The fan shall be a dual squirrel cage permanent magnet type with a three (3) year warranty.  Two 
(2) automatically controlled liquid shut off valves shall be installed permitting use of the system. The 
fan speed shall be controlled manually by a three-speed fan switch located on the action wall.  All 



 

 
 
   
  
 

heater hoses shall be EPDM Nomex material. 

  Y___N___ 
ALS CABINET 
 
An Advanced Life Support cabinet shall be provided in the right side of the forward wall. It shall be 
divided into sections to accomodate the storage of sensitive equipment and supplies, such as ALS 
equipment, Laerdal charger, medical boxes, etc.  The ALS cabinet shall be finished with the same 
material as the other cabinets.  Unless otherwise specified, all divided sections shall be accessible 
from the outside exterior corresponding compartment.  A rubber floor mat shall be installed on each 
divided section (including any shelves if specified).  
 
The upper compartment shall have one [1] adjustable shelf mounted on "C" channel style tracking 
and double, wood doors with Plexiglas insert picture frame windows.  Each door shall be provided 
with a stainless steel DP-4116-SS handle and rollerball catch. 

 
The middle compartment door face shall be covered with a brushed aluminum.  The entire door 
face and compartment shall slide-out on two (2) stainless steel sliders.  A single, stainless steel, 
locking paddle latch shall be provided to lock the compartment.  

 
The bottom portion shall have double solid wood doors and non-locking paddle latches. 

  Y___N___ 
VACUUM FORMED UPHOLSTRY  
 
All seating and backrests (including the technicians seat) in the patient compartment shall be 
constructed of 60 ounce vacuumed formed, seamless vinyl. 
 
 

  Y___N___ 
ATTENDANT SEAT 
 
A rear facing, high-back attendant seat shall be located to the rear of the partition wall.  The 
material shall be 60 ounce vacuumed formed, seamless vinyl.  The seat base shall be cabinet type 
with hinged door and satch latch.  A flip down child seat with harness type seatblet shall be 
provided inside backrest.  The technician seat shall be securely bolted through the module floor 
structure.  A retractable two [2] point seatbelt in a totally enclosed housing shall be provided.  The 
mounting hardware, seatbelt materials and configuration shall be in compliance with applicable 
FMVSS. 

  Y___N___ 
SQUAD BENCH 
 
The squad bench shall be 22" deep x 82" wide x 16" high and have split lids with storage under the 
forward section.  The front face of the squad bench shall be fabricated from 3/4" plywood.  The 
forward lid shall have a gas prop style hold-open device and a latch that automatically holds the lid 
closed (preventing opening in case of accident).  The lid shall automatically open when the latch is 
released.   The lid will be fitted with a removable cushion covered with a heavy grade fabric backed 
vinyl that meets FMVSS 302.  Three [3] sets of retractable seat belts are required for seated 
passengers and for securing a stretcher. The retractors shall be automotive style with plastic 
housings. 

  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

The squad bench backrests shall be comprised of two (2) full width x 3” thick x 8" high protective 
pads.  One (1) shall be mounted approximately 10" above the bench seat and be attached to the 
curbside wall by a minimum of five (5) sets of zinc-plated steel M/W clips. These clips shall be 
configured to allow for countersinking the heads of the #6 mounting screws to maintain a near flush 
position on the wall. The second pad shall be affixed with Velcro tabs to the upper curbside wall just 
below the overhead cabinetry. Both backrest pads shall be easily removed for cleaning and 
reinstalled without special tools. 

  Y___N___ 
SQUAD BENCH CABINET 
 
A cabinet shall be located over the squad bench at the ceiling level, rearward of the entry/egress 
door opening. This cabinet shall be divided into two (2) separate sections.  The cabinet shall be 
finished in the same material as the rest of the interior cabinets. 

  Y___N___ 
There shall be a window with a set of double sliding, plexiglass doors, over entire cabinet opening. 

  Y___N___ 
A full length, aluminum handle on each door. 

  Y___N___ 
IV HOLDERS 
 
Two [2] ceiling mounted Cast Products 2008-1 recessed IV holders shall be supplied. These shall 
be located at the foot areas, one [1] over the squad bench and one [1] over the primary cot.  They 
shall have a rubber, foldaway storage when not in use.  Each holder must have the capacity to hold 
two [2] bottles and have Velcro securing straps. 

  Y___N___ 
COT MOUNT 
 
A Ferno-Washington 175-3 single position, removable cot mount shall be supplied (department 
shall specify model number for positioning during pre-construction conference).  Additionally, this 
vehicle must meet or exceed AMD Standard 004, Litter Retention System. 

  Y___N___ 
The cot mounts shall be located in the center of the patient compartment floor area, as viewed from 
the rear of the vehicle. 

  Y___N___ 
ASSIST RAIL 
 
One [1] 70" long, 1" diameter, polished stainless steel overhead assist rail shall be provided and 
securely fastened to the ceiling over the primary cot.  Assist rails fastened with self-tapping machine 
screws are not acceptable.  Additionally, this vehicle must meet or exceed AMD Standard 008, 
Load Test for Ambulance Patient Compartment Grab Rail. 

  Y___N___ 
SIGN 
 
Two self adhesive "NO SMOKING OXYGEN EQUIPPED" and "FASTEN SEATBELT" sign (1) shall 
be installed in the 1st action area. 

  Y___N___ 
OXYGEN 
 
The medical oxygen system shall be capable of storing and supplying a minimum of 3000 liters of 



 

 
 
   
  
 

oxygen.   A suitable high-pressure hose shall be provided. The concealed oxygen supply hose shall 
be .250” ID, .50” OD nylon base with polyester fiber reinforcing.  This electrically conductive hose 
shall be certified to 1,875 psi and have a 7,500 pound burst rating.  The fittings shall be DISS and 
flare, and be securely crimped to the barbed fittings by means of compressed copper sleeves.  
Oxygen supply hose shall be routed through the ceiling of the ambulance body and be secured with 
non-abrasive plastic "C" clamps.  The entire oxygen system shall be subjected to a 155-psi leak test 
for 24-hours before installation of panels or covers that may obscure or hide the system 
components. After the vehicle is completed,  a test as prescribed by AMD Standard 015 shall be 
conducted for a period of four (4) hours to insure system integrity.  This test shall be performed 
using nitrogen gas to purge the lines of all moisture and foreign debris.  Upon completion of the 
test, the lines shall be bled free of nitrogen and capped. This medical oxygen system shall meet or 
exceed AMD Standard 015, Ambulance Main Oxygen System Test. 

  Y___N___ 
OXYGEN 
 
The oxygen system shall have two (2) outlets, (1) on action area wall and (1) over squad bench at 
the head end of the overhead cabinet.  The department shall specify the brand of quick-connectors 
to be used.  A compartment shall have fully adjustable stainless steel rings for the O2 tank.  The 

rings shall be located in the front of the compartment (tank will be provided by the department).   

  Y___N___ 
Oxygen outlets to be Amvex brand with Ohio style fittings. These outlets shall be certified by the 
equipment manufacturer to meet the appropriate FDA standards for medical oxygen outlets.  

  Y___N___ 
One (1) additional oxygen outlet shall be provided and installed in the ceiling. 

  Y___N___ 

No Oxygen Flowmeter Required At This Time                    
  Y___N___ 

No Oxygen Regulator Required At This Time                    
  Y___N___ 
SUCTION AND ASPIRATION SYSTEMS 
 
An SSCOR 20001/02 aspirator system with disposable canister, stainless steel bracket and wall-
mounted vacuum control shall be located in the action area.  A Thomas brand electric suction pump 
shall be supplied and installed on the floor of the cabinet behind the technician seat.  This cabinet 
shall have a removable panel. To prevent premature fatigue of the suction plumbing the line from 
the vacuum pump to the wall outlet shall be 3/8" I.D. double braided neoprene hose.  The vehicle 
suction system shall have the capability of attaining a vacuum of 300 millimeters of mercury within 
four (4) seconds. There shall be a vacuum control and shut-off valve to adjust the vacuum levels or 
to discontinue aspiration immediately.  It shall include one (1) 10-foot length of transparent non-
kinking tubing and an operator's manual. 

  Y___N___ 
SHARPS/BIO-HAZARD 
 
A sharps container with a crash stable mounting bracket shall be supplied and shipped loose.  A 
biohazard container with lid and twelve [12] red biohazard bags shall be shipped loose for 
installation by the department. 

  Y___N___ 
PATIENT CODE SIGNAL SYSTEM 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

In the action area switch console there shall be three [3] colored switches (red, yellow and green) 
that activate corresponding indicator lights in the driver's switch console.  In addition, there shall be 
a switch in the action area switch console that activates a buzzer in the driver's compartment.  
These lights and buzzer shall be used to notify the driver of any change in the patient's status. 

  Y___N___ 
RADIO EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS 
 
Two (2) 10-gauge power and two (2) ground wires, two (2) RG58U coax cables, and two (2) PL 259 
connectors shall be installed as “prewires” for the installation of radio communications equipment.  
Power, ground, and coax shall be terminated and bundled behind the passenger seat.  There shall 
be an 18" service loop at the antenna base locations and a 36" service loop at the terminations in 
the cab. The PL259 connectors shall be shipped loose in the New Vehicle Owners Manual pocket. 

  Y___N___ 
FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 
 
Two (2) 5 pound rated ABC fire extinguishers with mounting brackets shall be furnished with the 
ambulance.  These shall be shipped loose to allow the department to install in the desired locations. 

  Y___N___ 
CHASSIS PAINT 
 
The chassis shall be repainted a single color, Red, Sikkens number _______, using the same paint 
process standards as the body. 

  Y___N___ 
MODULE SURFACE PREPARATION 
 
A corrosion inhibitor shall be used on specified exterior surfaces and on specified fasteners, hinges 
and accessories that are subject to the effects of corrosion due to the electrolytic process that 
occurs between dissimilar metals.  The product, designated as ECK, is a petroleum-based 
substance with a very slow rate of desiccation.  The substance functions as a barrier to water thus 
minimizes the electrolytic process.  It shall be applied in the following conditions and to the following 
accessories and fasteners: 
   1. Behind stone guards or any other surface area where there  
   is direct contact between dissimilar metals. 
   2. On light assemblies utilizing self-tapping mounting screws   
  that penetrate the body. 
   3. On screws and screw holes for any accessory whose holes  
   are drilled and tapped. 
   4. On the body surface when any accessory without a rubber   
  or composite gasket is to be mounted; i.e. entry or     
 compartment door hinges or light assemblies without     gaskets. 
 
ECK shall not be applied in the following conditions: 

1. When mounting any accessory that has a rubber or composite gasket. 
   2. On light assemblies, which have, plastic inserts for mount   
       screws. 

  Y___N___ 
PAINT 
 
To produce a high quality paint finish and to comply with the paint manufacturers certification 
requirements for support of the ten (10) year/50,000 mile warranty the preparation and painting 



 

 
 
   
  
 

process described below, must be used. 
 
Prior to initiating the surface preparation process, all hardware, handles, light fixtures, door hinges, 
corner trim, etc. shall be removed from the body. Additionally, any portion of the chassis, which 
does not require refinishing, shall be protected from the ensuing process. 
 
To rid the aluminum body of any extraneous materials or material impurities the entire surface shall 
be washed and wiped dry with a certified wax and grease remover. Excess weld material shall be 
removed by grinding all welds, seams, and any other body imperfections. The entire surface shall 
then be sanded with 80 - 150 grit dry sandpaper to provide good adhesion for any fillers and 
primers. The required areas will be filled with approved premium lightweight filler and sanded 
smooth. A premium polysurfacer will be applied directly over these areas to ensure adequate base 
for application of primers.  
 
The entire surface shall be cleaned again with certified wax and grease remover before application 
of any primers. A self etching primer shall be applied to provide a base for adequate adherence of 
materials to be applied in subsequent steps of this process. A high quality urethane primer surfacer 
shall then be applied. The entire surface to receive topcoat will be sanded smooth to ensure a level 
and defect free surface. 
 
Door edges and doorjambs shall be prepared similarly to other body surfaces and finish painted 
with a certified topcoat paint. The entire surface of vehicle body shall be DA finish sanded with no 
coarser than 320 grit dry sandpaper. The surface shall be washed and wiped once again with 
certified wax and grease remover and tacked for application of urethane sealer. 
 
A full wet coat of urethane primer sealer shall be applied and allowed to flash per specifications. 
Basecoat color will be applied to ensure color correctness then clearcoated with a minimum of 2 full 
wet coats of qualified urethane clearcoat and baked at 140 degrees for 30 minutes. 
 
 Surfaces to receive striping and graphics shall then be sanded with 800 grit dry sandpaper and 
masked off for application of additional color(s). Basecoat color shall be applied to stripe and 
graphic areas until color is correct. Entire sanded surface shall then be unmasked, inspected and 
receive a minimum of 2 full wet coats of certified urethane clearcoat. Topcoat will be baked again at 
140 degrees for 30 minutes. 
 
Body is then color sanded, compounded, buffed and polished to a smooth defect free finish. 
 
Upon final assembly, door hinges, hinge side of doorjambs and all stainless steel mounting 
hardware shall be coated with ECK, a corrosion inhibitor and permanently mounted to vehicle. 

  Y___N___ 
BODY PAINT COLOR 
 
The body shall be painted a single color of Red, #_______ with Sikkens base coat, clear coat paint 
processes. 

  Y___N___ 
SAFETY STRIPE 
 
The body shall have a 4" wide reflective safety stripe around it's entire perimeter, positioned 33" 
from the ground. 

  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

MAIN SCOTOCHLITE STRIPE 
 
The main scotchlite stripe shall be a single color, "Straight" design on the chassis and body sides 
(including the rear body).  It shall start at the side of the cab and run along each side of the cab and 
body, just under the cab window and approximately 45" below the drip rail on the body.  The main 
stripe shall wrap around the rearward section of the body, completing the perimeter.  The main 
stripe shall not exceed 11 inches in width.  Scotchlite color, stripe dimension and layout shall be 
provided by the department after award of bid. 

  Y___N___ 
PINSTRIPING 
 
There shall be two (2) 1/4"-2" wide pinstripes in vinyl or scotchlite striping to match main color band 
on the ambulance.  One (1) pinstripe shall be positioned above and One (1) below the main color 
stripe, separation to be determined.   The pinstripes shall match the main stripe color. 

  Y___N___ 

There shall be a 3/4" wide reflective stripe predetermined by the customer ran through the 
center of the "C" style rubrail. 
  Y___N___ 
MARKINGS 
 
The decal materials shall be light blue reflective Scotchlite with white reflective Scotchlite outline.  A 
Star of Life and Ambulance decal package shall be installed.  The AMBULANCE package consists 
of three (3) 6" "AMBULANCE" and one (1) 4" reverse "AMBULANCE".  The Star Of Life package 
consists of two (2) 18" SOL, two (2) 14" SOL, and two (2) 6" SOL.  Additionally, one (1) 32" vinyl 
SOL (blue) shall be installed on the roof.  The package, unless otherwise specified, shall comply 
with the Federal Ambulance Specification KKK-E. 

  Y___N___ 
OPERATOR'S MANUAL 
 
A vehicle owner's manual (reference handbook) for the ambulance shall be provided in an 8 1/2" x 
11" three-ring, hard cover, loose-leaf binder.  It shall contain copies of the chassis manufacturer's 
warranties and chassis owner's manual, copies of the ambulance manufacturer's warranties and 
New Vehicle Owners Manual, component manufacturer's equipment information, installation, 
operating, service instructions, warranties, etc., and a complete set of wiring diagrams or 
schematics with circuits and components clearly and accurately labeled. Verification of the chassis 
pre-delivery inspection, and a copy of the ambulance manufacturer's quality assurance form with 
results of the final vehicle release inspection shall be supplied upon the request of the department.  

  Y___N___ 
OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS 
 
To provide a safe working environment for emergency medical technicians to provide care of 
patients, this emergency vehicle  must be operated in the safest manner possible. To provide 
proper training for all operators of this emergency vehicle, a professionally produced operations 
videotape shall be included with the vehicle at the time of delivery. The videotape shall present all 
aspects of the operation of the vehicle including front and rear switch panel operation; daily 
checkout and maintenance procedures; location of and precautions about the main electrical panel 
and components. The authorized representative of the manufacturer shall present the videotape 
and review its contents with the potential operators of the vehicle and shall answer any questions 
regarding its optional features and safe and correct operation. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

  Y___N___ 
ELECTRICAL SCHEMATICS CD 
 
To provide for continued quality operations of the new ambulance and timely information regarding 
the vehicles electrical system, the manufacturer shall provide a compact disc with the basic 
electrical schematics for this emergency vehicle. This CD shall be delivered to this department as 
an item included in the New Vehicle Owners Manual. 

  Y___N___ 
LIFETIME TRANSFERABLE 

MODULAR BODY 
STRUCTURAL WARRANTY 

 

The AMBULANCE CORPORATION warrants each new modular ambulance body (exclusive of 
paint finish, hardware, moldings, windows and other appointments and accessories) is structurally 
sound and free of all structural defects of both material and workmanship and further warrants that it 
will maintain such structural integrity for a period of equal to the term or service of the vehicle to the 
original purchaser from date of manufacturers certification plate attached thereto. 
This AMBULANCE CORPORATION further warrants that this structural integrity warranty may be 
transferred to a second purchaser providing the AMBULANCE CORPORATION or their authorized 
representative inspects the vehicle within thirty (30) days of ownership transfer.  The new owner or 
the authorized AMBULANCE CORPORATION representative shall supply to the AMBULANCE 
CORPORATION, documentation of transfer of ownership.  Transfer to a new owner other than a 
licensed ambulance service or fire department shall terminate the terms of this warranty. 
 
In the event of a chassis remount this structural integrity warranty shall remain in effect providing 
the rechassis work is completed by the AMBULANCE CORPORATION or a facility approved by 
the AMBULANCE CORPORATION. 
 

Should repairs become necessary under the terms of this warranty, the extent of that repair shall be 
determined solely by the AMBULANCE CORPORATION and shall be performed solely by the 
AMBULANCE CORPORATION or a repair facility designated by the AMBULANCE 
CORPORATION. The expense of any transportation to or from such repair facility shall be that of 
the purchaser and is not an item covered by this warranty. 
 

This warranty is conditioned upon normal use and proper maintenance of such modular body; 
prompt written notice of all defects submitted to the AMBULANCE CORPORATION or one of its 
authorized dealers in the area; no repair or additions thereto except by the AMBULANCE 
CORPORATION or authorized by it; said defect not resulting from misuse, negligence, accident, 
remounting, overloading beyond applicable weight rating by customer or third parties. If any of such 
conditions are not complied with, this warranty becomes void and unenforceable. 
 

The AMBULANCE CORPORATION reserves the unrestricted right at any time and from time to 
time to make changes in design of and/or improvements on its products without thereby imposing 
any obligation on itself to make corresponding changes or improvements in or on its products 
theretofore manufactured. 
 
EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS: THIS MANUFACTURERS WARRANTY IS PROVIDED 
IN PLACE OF ANY AND ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 



 

 
 
   
  
 

WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
NO PERSON IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY ON 
BEHALF OF MEDTEC AMBULANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS 
OTHER THAN SET FORTH IN THIS MANUFACUTRERS WARRANTY. YOUR RIGHT TO 
SERVICE AND REPLACEMENT OF PARTS ON THE TERMS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH 
HEREIN ARE YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND NEITHER THE MANUFACTURER NOR 
ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES WHETHER ORDINARY, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL. 
 
Note:  Surety Bond, if part if part of the sale of the vehicle to which this limited warranty is provides, applies only to the 12-
month/12,000 mile Limited Warranty for such vehicle, and not to any other warranties made by the  supplier. 
 
Rev 4/04 
 

LIFETIME 
ELECTRICAL WARRANTY 

The AMBULANCE CORPORATION warrants the integrity of the electrical system on each new 
ambulance manufactured by the Manufacturer for a period equal to the term of service of the vehicle 
to the original purchaser from the date of delivery to the retail purchaser by an authorized distributor 
or dealer to be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and service. The 
obligation of Manufacturer under this warranty is limited to repairing or replacing, at its option, any 
part or parts thereof which shall, after delivery of such ambulance to the original retail purchaser, be 
returned with transportation charges prepaid to an authorized distributor, and which examination 
shall disclose to have been defective. 
 

Items specifically covered are: 

• Electrical harnesses and harness installation 

• Printed circuit board 

• Circuit breakers and relays 

 
Items excluded are: 

• Chassis electrical systems and components installed by chassis manufacturer 

• Separately manufactured items installed by MANUFACTURER, but not limited to: batteries, 
 sirens, battery chargers, inverters, lightbars and similar equipment. These are covered by 
 warranties supplied by the manufacturer of the components. 

• Periodic tightening and cleaning of connection terminals as this is considered routine 
maintenance. 

• Normal wear, abuse, accident, negligence or unapproved alteration of original parts. 
 

Should repairs become necessary under the terms of this warranty, the extent of that repair shall be 
determined solely by the AMBULANCE CORPORATION and shall be performed solely by the 
AMBULANCE CORPORATION or a repair facility designated by the AMBULANCE 
CORPORATION. The expense of any transportation to or from such repair facility shall be that of 
the purchaser and is not an item covered by this warranty. 
 

The AMBULANCE CORPORATION reserves the unrestricted right at any time and from time to 
time to make changes in design of and/or improvements on its products without thereby imposing 
any obligation on itself to make corresponding changes or improvements in or on its products 



 

 
 
   
  
 

theretofore manufactured. 
 

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS: THIS MANUFACTURERS WARRANTY IS PROVIDED 
IN PLACE OF ANY AND ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
NO PERSON IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY ON 
BEHALF OF MEDTEC AMBULANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS 
OTHER THAN SET FORTH IN THIS MANUFACTURERS WARRANTY. YOUR RIGHT TO 
SERVICE AND REPLACEMENT OF PARTS ON THE TERMS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH 
HEREIN ARE YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND NEITHER THE MANUFACTURER NOR 
ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES WHETHER ORDINARY, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL. 
 
Note:  Surety Bond, if part of the sale of the vehicle to which this limited warranty is provides, 
applies only to the 12-month/12,000 mile  Limited Warranty for such vehicle, and not to any other 
warranties made by the Supplier. 
 
Rev. 4/03. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 

LIMITED WARRANTY 

 
The AMBULANCE CORPORATION warrants each new ambulance manufactured for a period of twelve 
(12) months or 12,000 miles from the date of delivery to the original retail purchaser by an authorized 
distributor or dealer to be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and service. The 
obligation under this warranty is limited to repairing or replacing, at its option, any part or parts thereof which 
shall, within twelve (12) months or 12,000 miles after delivery of such ambulance to the original retail 
purchaser, be returned with transportation charges pre-paid to an authorized distributor, and which 
examination shall disclose to have been defective, except as hereinafter provided. The following items are 
excluded by the warranty. 
 

• Chassis or items supplied by chassis manufacturer 

• Tires, tire balancing, or wheel alignments 

• General tightening, light bulbs or headlamp adjustments 

• Separately manufactured items installed by Manufacturer including, but not limited to:  batteries 
sirens, battery chargers, inverters, lightbars and similar equipment. These are  covered by warranties 
supplied by the manufacturer of the components. 

• Normal wear, abuse, accident, negligence or unapproved alteration of original parts. 
 
Should repairs become necessary under the terms of this warranty, the extent of that repair shall be 
determined solely by the AMBULANCE CORPORATION and shall be performed solely by the 
AMBULANCE CORPORATION or a repair facility designated by the AMBULANCE CORPORATION. 
The expense of any transportation to or from such repair facility shall be that of the purchaser and is not an 
item covered by this warranty. 
 
The AMBULANCE CORPORATION reserves the unrestricted right at any time and from time to time make 
changes in design of and/or improvements on its products without thereby imposing any obligation on itself to 
make corresponding changes or improvements in or on its products theretofore manufactured. 
 
EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS: THIS MANUFACTURERS WARRANTY IS PROVIDED IN 
PLACE OF ANY AND ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OF EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO PERSON IS 
AUTHORIZED TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY ON BEHALF OF THE 
AMBULANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS OTHER THAN SET FORTH IN 
THIS MANUFACUTRERS WARRANTY. YOUR RIGHT TO SERVICE AND REPLACEMENT OF 
PARTS ON THE TERMS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN ARE YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES 
AND NEITHER THE MANUFACTURER NOR ANY OF ITS DISTRIBUTORS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR 
DAMAGES WHETHER ORDINARY, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL. 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
PAINT WARRANTY 

 
 
The Manufacturer warrants each new ambulance finished with Akzo Noble Coatings, Inc. Products 
for a period of ten (10) years or fifty thousand miles, whichever occurs first, from the date of 
manufacturers certification. The finished areas shall be covered for the following failures: 
 
A.  Durability and Appearance of the Topcoat 
The warranty period for the Akzo Noble Coatings, Inc. “Sikkens Paint System” shall be ten (10) 
years. Items directly related to the durability and appearance of the topcoat (gloss, color retention 
and cracking) will be covered one hundred percent (100%) for the entire ten (10) years. 

 Loss of gloss 
Clear coat for the entire one hundred and twenty months the gloss will not fall below 
sixty gloss units. Gloss measurements will be taken at a twenty-degree geometry. 

 Poor color retention 
Clear coat for the entire one hundred and twenty months the color shift will be no 
greater than a Delta E of 3.0. 

 Cracking 
Cracking of the paint system (as set out in ASTM D661-86). 

 
B.  Integrity of the Entire Coating System 
Items related to the integrity of the entire coating system (adhesion) will be covered one hundred 
percent (100%) for the first thirty-six (36) months; from the thirty-seventh (37) month to the eight-
fourth (84) month coverage will be fifty percent (50%); from the eighty-fifth (85) month to the one 
hundred and twentieth (120) month coverage will be twenty-five percent (25%). 

 Loss of Adhesion 
Bad adhesion of any element of the Paint System resulting in appearance below the 
standards set out in ASTM 1654-79a, Table 2, rating 6 or lower. 

 
Exclusions: 
The vehicle undercarriage, or the cab or body interior, or compartment interiors.  Hazing, chalking, 
or loss of gloss caused by improper care, abrasive polishes, cleaning agents, heavy-duty pressure 
washing, or aggressive mechanical wash systems. 
Paint deterioration caused by abuse, accidents, acid rain, chemical fallout or acts of nature. 
Accidents, scratches, chips, bruises, and gloss reduction due to normal vehicle use and 
maintenance.  Custom finishes, exotic finishes or any other finish than standard refinish procedure.  
Failures resulting from product misuse or abuse.  Repairs done to previously refinished areas 
unless stripped to bare metal or appropriate substrate.  Claims presented without proper 
documentation.  Application and removal of stickers from a painted surface. 
 
Should repairs become necessary under the terms of this warranty, the extent of that repair shall be 
determined solely by the manufacturer and shall be performed solely by the manufacturer or an 
Akzo Noble Certified Commercial Repair Facility designated by the manufacturer. The expense of 
any transportation to or from such repair facility shall be that of the purchaser and is not an item 
covered by this warranty. 
 
The manufacturer reserves the unrestricted right at any time and from time to time to make changes 
in design of and/or improvements on its products without thereby imposing any obligation on itself 
to make corresponding changes or improvements in or on its products theretofore manufactured. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
C. Corrosion 
The manufacturer warrants each new ambulance finished with Akzo Noble Coatings, Inc. Products 
against corrosion damage and damage caused by electrolysis for a period of five (5) years, from the 
date of manufacturers certification. 
 
Coverage for damage due to corrosion and electrolysis damage shall be administered according to 
the following prorated schedule: 

 Year 1- 100% of repair cost 
 Year 2- 80% of repair cost 
 Year 3- 60% of repair cost 
 Year 4- 40% of repair cost 
 Year 5- 20% of repair cost 
 
Electrolysis: Two or more dissimilar metals reacting against each other cause electrolysis. The 
resulting corrosion may cause paint to lift and blister. The emergency vehicle industry has battled 
this problem for many years. To assist in the management of electrolysis, your new Ambulance 
comes standard with a protective coating of ECK applied between all handles, hinges, lights and 
hardware attachment points. This protective coating is designed to reduce and control the natural 
occurring process of galvanic corrosion (electrolysis). Should you remove any of the components 
where ECK has been applied they must be recoated prior to re-installation. 
 
This warranty is void if Akzo Noble Coatings, Inc. Determines that the vehicle or item has been 
neglected, misused, altered, exposed to severe environmental or chemical conditions, or damaged. 
This warranty is also void if the manufacturer determines that the warranty claim is false or 
misrepresented, that the vehicle or item has been damaged in an accident or by an act of God, or 
that the defect or perforation is attributable to use or operation of the vehicle or item in a manner or 
for a purpose other than that for which the manufacturer intended or designed the vehicle or item. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 
This warranty constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, pertaining to the subject matter 
hereof and supersedes all prior formal and informal agreements. No amendment to this warranty 
shall bind Seller, unless it is made in writing and signed by Seller. 
 
UNDER THIS WARRANTY, SELLER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST 
PROFITS, LOST REVENUES, INCONVENIENCE, LOSS OF TIME, FAILURE TO REALIZE 
EXPECTED SAVINGS, OR OTHER COMMERCIAL OR ECONOMIC LOSSES OF ANY KIND. 
 
THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN IS IN LIEU OF ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OR MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR USE. BUYER ACKNOWLDGES THAT NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS WERE 
MADE TO HIM OR RELIED UPON BY HIM WITH RESPECT TO THE QUALITY AND FUNCTION 
OF THE PAINT SYSTEM SOLD. 

 
  Y___N___ 

DEALER ======= DEALER ======= DEALER                         
  Y___N___ 

 12 VOLT  PRE-WIRE TO EXTERIORCOMPARTMENT   
  Y___N___ 



 

 
 
   
  
 

COMPARTMENT LIGHTS TO ACTIVATE RESPECTIVE SIDE FLOOD LIGHT 

CURBSIDE DOOR TO ACTIVATE CURBSIDE FLOOD LIGHTS 

ACTIVATE REAR BACKUP LIGHTS TO GO ON WITH REAR DOORS 

REARWARD SIDE SCENE LIGHTS TO ACTIVATE WITH REVERSE OR OPENING 
REAR DOORS  
  Y___N___ 

BUZZER IN CONSOLE TO ACTIVATE WHEN VEHICLE IS PLACED IN GEAR WITH THE 
BODY OR PATIENT DOORS OPEN  
  Y___N___ 

BRAKE ALARM PACKAGE                                          
  Y___N___ 

DEALER TOMAR PRE-EMPTION SYSTEM                              
  Y___N___ 

INCLUDES DUAL WHEEL LOCKS  
  Y___N___ 

 INCLUDES LOCKING REAR LIFT HANDLES , REMOVABLE HEAD SUPPORT,  AND 
POLYPRO RESTRAINTS W/PLASTIC BUCKLES 

  Y___N___ 

DELIVERY       
 
 
 
 
LETTERING PER SPECIFICATION   



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2007-2706 
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND FIRE CHIEF TO EXECUTE 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO BEGIN AN AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID 

AGREEMENT WITH THE CHARLESTON FIRE DEPARTMENT  
 

WHEREAS, the Mattoon Fire Department is the duly recognized Fire Department agency for 
the City of Mattoon, Illinois, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Charleston is the duly recognized Fire Department agency for the City 
of Charleston, Illinois, and  
 
WHEREAS, both agencies’ corporate boundaries and service area boundaries are contiguous, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Chiefs of the Mattoon Fire Department and Charleston Fire Department 
believe it is in the best interests for the safety of fire personal as well as for the safety of the 
citizens of both communities to enter into an Automatic Mutual Aid Agreement for Structure 
fires or reported Structural fires in the area known as Charleston Fire Department response 
service area. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
That the Mattoon, Illinois City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and the Fire Chief to 
execute and documents necessary to effectuate a Mutual Aid/Assistance Agreement between the 
Mattoon Fire Department and the Charleston Fire Department.  
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this 7th day of August 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
ABSTAIN (Names):         
      
 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

____________________________________ 
Charles E. White, Mayor 
City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 



 

 
 
   
  
 

CHARLESTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
And 

MATTOON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

AUTOMATIC AID AGREEMENT 
 

 
 
Pursuant to Resolution 2007-2706, this agreement between the Mattoon Fire Department of 
Coles County, Illinois, and the Charleston Fire Department of Coles County, Illinois is for the 
purpose of providing an automatic mutual aid response from the Mattoon Fire Station #2 to all 
Structure fires or reported Structural fires in the area known as Charleston Fire Department 
response service area. The actual area in which automatic mutual aid is to be provided is on 
Attachment 2 (map). 
 
The Coles County 911 Center (CECOM) upon notification of a structure fire or possible 
structure fire in the aforementioned area shall automatically notify the Mattoon Fire 
Department to dispatch an Engine from Station #2 to respond with personnel and fire protection 
equipment including sufficient fire apparatus capable of carrying a compliment of personnel to 
assist the Charleston Fire Department. The first arriving Fire Department shall notify CECOM 
of the situation found. If the Mattoon Fire Department is the first to arrive on scene, they will 
be in command until arrival of Charleston Fire Department, and at the same time the 
Charleston Fire Department will coordinate firefighting activities with the Mattoon Fire 
Department. Either the Charleston or Mattoon Fire Departments shall have the authority to 
cancel any responding units if the first arriving units make the assessment that the situation does 
not warrant any further response from either department. 
 
During any actual fire situation, the Mattoon Fire Department unit shall coordinate activities 
with the Charleston Fire Department units to allow the Mattoon Fire Department units to 
return to their respective response area at the earliest convenience. 
 
In return, The Charleston Fire department shall provide automatic aid response of similar 
nature upon request of such agreement from Mattoon Fire Department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
   
  
 

 
This agreement Shall be in effect for a period five (5) years from the date hereof and shall be 
automatically renewed for successive periods of five (5) years as to all parties executing the 
same except that this agreement can be cancelled by giving notice of the intention by the party 
who intends to cancel by registered mail to the other party to this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
Mattoon Fire Department    Date: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ ______________________________ 
Mayor, City of Mattoon    Fire Chief 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Charleston Fire Department   Date: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ ______________________________ 
Mayor, City of Charleston    Fire Chief 
                                                                               
     
 
 
 





                    

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION 2007-2707 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RETIREMENT OF POLICE CHIEF LARRY 
METZELAARS 

 
WHEREAS, Larry Metzelaars, employed as a Probationary Police Office with the Mattoon 
Police Department beginning June 22, 1979 with promotions throughout his years of service to 
Police Chief as of July 1, 2004, has submitted his written retirement notice, effective at the end 
of his workday September 14, 2007, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Police and Fire Commissioners has recommended that the retirement 
be accepted, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, Illinois hereby accepts the retirement of Police Chief Larry Metzelaars effective at the 
end of his workday September 14, 2007 with the City Council and citizens of Mattoon express 
their gratitude to the faithful years of service provided by Chief Metzelaars.    
 
Upon motion by    , seconded by      
adopted this    day of   , 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):          

       
       

NAYS (Names):         
ABSENT (Names):        
      
Approved this    day of   , 2007.  
 
 
             
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
 
  
            
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney   
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on   , 2007.  
 



 

                 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE   8/07/2007     CDR NO:  2007-780  SUBJECT: Funding request for       
                                                                                      $1,500 to the Lincoln Heritage RC            
                                                                                      &D for a towable loading ramp to  
                                                                                   load computer hardware for recycling 
                                                                                         
SUBMITTAL DATE:  8/01/2007 
 
SUBMITTED BY:                Alan Gilmore, City Administrator 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):   Ramp Specification 
             

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE:      $1,500.00  BUDGETED:  N/A      REQUIRED: $1,500.00      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
I Mayor Charles E. White move to approve a funding request in the amount of $1,500.00 to the 
Lincoln Heritage Resource Conservation District for the purchase of a portable loading ramp 
to be utilized in loading decommissioned computer hardware within the District’s 6 County 
service area, contingent upon the District receiving adequate funding from other sources to 
complete the purchase of the towable ramp.   

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Rollie Spaniol, Chairman of the Lincoln Heritage Resource Conservation District, which serves the 6 
counties of Champaign, Coles, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar and Vermillion has received a grant to 
recycle used computer hardware and other similar devices at no cost to the consumer. Total project costs 
are estimated to be $42,468 of which $27,479 is grant funds.  There exists a funding short fall of $8,089 
for the total projected cost of initiating the program.  Equal participation by the 6 counties would generate 
$9,000, which would cover the funding short fall and leave approximately $900 for incidental start up 
costs.  The central location for this service will be the merchants building located on the Coles County 
Fairgrounds.  All used item will be identity protected through a chain of custody procedure.  Additionally 
the ramp may be used for other purposes by the contributing entities, subject to availability. 

 









 

                 

 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1240  

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND NATHAN BURTON DBA: EZ PARCEL & 
BUSINESS SERVICE IN CONNECTION WITH THE MATTOON MIDTOWN 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
 
WHEREAS, NATHAN BURTON DBA: EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS SERVICE   (the 
“Grantee”), have submitted a proposal to the City of Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) for 
redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s Mattoon Midtown Redevelopment Project Area 
(the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have 
engaged in negotiations related to a Grant Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in 
connection therewith, the “Grant Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and 
assistance related to the preservation, development and redevelopment of a part of the 
Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this _______ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 



 

                 

ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of ____________________, 2007. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 
Attachment (1) - EXHIBIT “A”  



                   

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Grant Agreement is made this __________ day of ___________________  , 2007, 
by and between the CITY OF MATTOON, Coles County, Illinois, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter the “Grantor”), and NATHAN BURTON DBA: EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS 
SERVICE  of 1312 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, (hereinafter the 
“Grantee”), as follows: 
1. Grantor does grant unto Grantee up to the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($7,500.00), to be disbursed as hereinafter described, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
  

A. It is agreed and understood that said grant shall be for the sole purpose of 
achieving compliance with the City’s Storm water detention regulations at 1312 
Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. Said compliance with the City’s 
Storm water detention regulations shall be pursuant to a design which first must be 
acceptable to the City of Mattoon. The authorized agent acting on behalf of the City is the 
City Administrator or such other official the City Council may designate.  The 
undersigned acknowledges that the primary consideration for the grant herein from the 
City of Mattoon unto the undersigned is to achieve compliance with the City Storm 
Water Detention Regulations, and, as such, the undersigned acknowledges this 
consideration and agrees to abide by the rules and regulations and oversight of the City of 
Mattoon for implementation and/or construction of said design including, but not 
necessarily limited to: construction of said design pursuant to the design specifications; 
prior consent from the City of Mattoon before any alterations or changes to the design; 
oversight authority on the part of the City of Mattoon during the construction of said 
design if reasonably necessary to ensure said design and specifications are being 
complied with.  Further, as additional consideration herein, the undersigned covenants 
that once completed, said City-approved storm water detention structures shall remain the 
same and not be substantially changed without prior written consent of the City within 15 
years of completion of the same, which covenant shall survive the payment of the grant 
and remain obligatory unto the parties herein whether or not they retain control of the 
property or transfer the same to a third party within said 15 years.  Should the 
undersigned sell or convey all or a part of said property, it guarantees and promises unto 
the City of Mattoon that it shall include in the deed of conveyance a restriction for said 
15-year period.  Said prohibition upon a substantial alteration of said structures does not 
prohibit the undersigned from periodic and regular maintenance of the same, which 
maintenance shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, cleaning, and material 
replacement if warranted.  The undersigned agrees to install an approved storm water 
detention structure within 30 days of initial approval from the City, and to proceed 
diligently to the completion of the same, but in no event to be completed in not less than  
2 months from the date hereof. During said construction, the City, at any time, can issue a 
written notice to the undersigned that it is in violation of the agreed upon design and 
specifications heretofore approved by the City. The undersigned will have thirty (30) 
days from receipt of written notice of noncompliance with design to correct the same to 



 

                  

the City’s satisfaction or otherwise reach a mutually agreeable resolution of the same.  If 
correction or a mutual resolution is not completed within said thirty (30) day response 
time, then in that event, the City may consider this grant to be in default, to cease all 
future payments due hereunder, and shall rescind the grant. Though the City of Mattoon 
retains approval authority and oversight responsibility for the storm water detention 
compliance discussed herein, it is not responsible for the construction of the same or for 
the payment of the same.  Accordingly, the undersigned hereby agrees to assume all 
responsibility for any damages or claims for damages as a result of any injuries or claims 
for injuries for said environmental engineering construction, and, further, agrees to 
indemnify and hold the City of Mattoon free and harmless in association with any 
damages or claims for damages by the undersigned, or other third parties. 

 
B. It is agreed and understood that the grant shall be for the purpose of achieving 
storm water detention compliance 1312 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Coles County, 
Illinois. 
 
C. It is agreed and understood that there is dollar limit flexibility between the 
elements of construction cost as more fully set forth hereinabove. Said grant proceeds 
shall be based upon the actual construction cost of work, but not to exceed Seven 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500.00) as determined by the City’s authorized 
agent.  
 
D. Said grant is to be used solely for the following described real estate, commonly 
known as 1312 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Illinois, but more specifically described as: 
Lot Seven (7) Block One Hundred and Twenty (120) in the Original Town, now City of 

Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 

E. Grantee shall secure the necessary building permits from Grantor, and shall 
indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from any and all claims, damages, and injuries 
associated with or resulting from the rehabilitation and improvement of said real estate. 
 

 
2.   Grantor shall disburse the grant funds to Grantee in the following manner upon the 
completion of the storm water detention structure in compliance with the City’s storm water 
detention regulations authorized within the scope of this grant, as certified by the City’s 
authorized agent. The payment (s) shall only be made if this grant is valid and in full force at the 
time the payment is to be made. 
 
3. This Grant is expressly contingent upon the execution of this grant agreement by Grantee 
and Grantor and upon presentation to Grantor of vouchers or other sufficient proof of work 
authorized and approved and within the scope of this grant in amounts which exceed the grant 
money provided herein.  
 
4. Grantee does hereby guarantee and covenant that it will apply the grant money only for 
the uses intended as set forth herein pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 



 

                  

5. Grantor’s grant as made herein is made contingent upon Grantee performing all of the 
covenants and conditions by it to be performed.   
 
6. This grant is to be disbursed in 3 equal installments of $2,500 upon the Grantee achieving 
compliance with the Grantor’s storm water detention regulations, commencing the 25th of 
September 2007 and a like amount to be disbursed on or about September 25th of 2008 and 2009. 
This is an outright grant and is not repayable to Grantor unless Grantee fails to perform one or 
more of the covenants and conditions herein by it to be performed, and in that event, Grantor 
shall send written notice of said breach to Grantee and afford it an opportunity to correct the 
same within 30 days. Should Grantee fail to correct the breach within 30 days of said written 
notice, then in that event, Grantor shall rescind the grant. and shall be entitled to recover from 
Grantee any and all grant moneys heretofore delivered to Grantee, which grant money Grantee 
agrees to repay unto Grantor. 
 
7. This grant made herein is pursuant to a Special Ordinance duly adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Mattoon meeting in regular session on August 7, 2007. 
 
8. Grantee covenants unto Grantor that it intends to retain ownership of the building for the 
operation of a commercial business, including offices and office/general business use, and that it 
is not its intention to use the grant money herein to render the building and then resell the same 
to a third party. To secure this covenant, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the building is sold to 
a third party, then there shall be a rebate of the grant based upon the following schedule: if sold 
within one year of the date of the grant, there shall be a 75% rebate of the grant amount already 
paid; if sold after one year from the date of this grant but within two years of the date of this 
grant, then there shall be a 50% rebate of the grant amount already paid; and if sold after two 
years from the date of this grant but within three years of the date of this grant, then there shall 
be a 25% rebate of the grant amount already paid. Further, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the 
business operation ceases for a period in excess of thirty days, and within three years from the 
date of this grant, then Grantor’s obligation to make continuing payments from the grant shall 
cease immediately and this agreement shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, 
and there shall be a rebate of the grant money heretofore paid based upon the timeline and 
percent established herein for the sale of the business, being 75% within one year of the date of 
this grant, 50% after one year but within two years from the date of this grant, and 25% after two 
years but within three years of the date of this grant.  
 
9.    Grantor reserves to itself the right to seek reimbursement for the amount expended under 
this grant from revenues of the Mattoon Mid-town Tax Increment Financing District.  
  
Executed at Mattoon, Illinois, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
GRANTEE      CITY OF MATTOON, GRANTOR 
 
__________________________   ____________________________________ 
Nathan Burton dba:     Charles E. White, Mayor 
EZ Parcel & Business Service    



 

                  

 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 
 



 

                  

 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-1241  

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND CORY SANDERS DBA: CORY SANDERS & 

COMPANY REAL ESTATE; IN CONNECTION WITH THE MATTOON MIDTOWN 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

 
WHEREAS, CORY SANDERS DBA: CORY SANDERS & COMPANY REAL ESTATE; and 
(the “Grantee”), has submitted a proposal to the City of Mattoon, Illinois (the “Municipality”) 
for redevelopment of a part of the Municipality’s Mattoon Midtown Redevelopment Project Area 
(the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and, thereafter, the Municipality and the Grantee have 
engaged in negotiations related to a Grant Agreement (including all exhibits and attachments in 
connection therewith, the “Grant Agreement”) concerning redevelopment incentives and 
assistance related to the preservation, development and redevelopment of a part of the 
Redevelopment Project Area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The Grant Agreement, in substantially the form thereof presented before the meeting 
of the City Council at which this ordinance is adopted, shall be and is hereby ratified, confirmed 
and approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver the Grant 
Agreement for and on behalf of the Municipality; and upon the execution thereof by the 
Municipality and the Grantee, the appropriate officers, agents, attorneys and employees of the 
Municipality are authorized to take all supplemental actions, including the execution and 
delivery of related supplemental opinions, certificates, agreements and instruments not 
inconsistent with the Grant Agreement, desirable or necessary to implement and otherwise give 
full effect to the Grant Agreement.  Upon full execution thereof, the Grant Agreement shall be 
attached to this ordinance as EXHIBIT “A”. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval 
by the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this ___________ day of ___________________, 2007, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 



 

                  

ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________________, 2007. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Charles E. White, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2007. 
 
Attachment (1) - EXHIBIT “A”  



 

                    

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Grant Agreement is made this _________  day of ____________________, 
2007, by and between the CITY OF MATTOON, Coles County, Illinois, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the “Grantor”), and CORY SANDERS dba: CORY SANDERS 
& COMPANY REAL ESTATE; of 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, 
Coles County, Illinois, (hereinafter the “Grantee”), as follows: 
 
1. Grantor does grant unto Grantee up to the sum of Twenty Nine Thousand, Four 
Hundred and Fifty Five Dollars ($29,455.00) to be disbursed as hereinafter described, 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 
  

A. It is agreed and understood that said grant shall be for the sole purpose of making 
restorations to the building for the purchase and installation of 22 windows, 
electrical wiring upgrades and the relocation of 3 Ameren/Cips natural gas meters 
at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. This 
grant is specifically contingent upon the undersigned first receiving initial design 
approval from the City.  The undersigned acknowledges that the primary 
consideration for the grant herein from the City of Mattoon unto the undersigned 
is to achieve an historical restoration program for the City, and, as such, the 
undersigned acknowledges this consideration and agrees to abide by the rules and 
regulations and oversight of the City of Mattoon for implementation and/or 
construction of said design including, but not necessarily limited to: construction 
of said design pursuant to the design specifications; prior consent from the City of 
Mattoon before any alterations or changes to the design; oversight authority on 
the part of the City of Mattoon during the construction of said design if 
reasonably necessary to ensure said design and specifications are being complied 
with.  Further, as additional consideration herein, the undersigned covenants that 
once completed, said City-approved restoration work shall remain the same and 
not be substantially changed without prior written consent of the City within 10 
years of completion of the same, which covenant shall survive the payment of the 
grant and remain obligatory unto the parties herein whether or not they retain 
control of the property or transfer the same to a third party within said 10 years.  
Should the undersigned sell or convey all or a part of said property, it guarantees 
and promises unto the City of Mattoon that it shall include in the deed of 
conveyance a restriction on changing the exterior architectural appearance of the 
said buildings for said 10-year period.  Said prohibition upon a substantial 
alteration of said exterior does not prohibit the undersigned from periodic and 
regular maintenance of the same, which maintenance shall include, but not 
necessarily be limited to, cleaning, painting and material replacement if 
warranted.  The undersigned agrees to commence the building restoration within 
60 days of initial design approval from the City, and to proceed diligently to the 
completion of the same, but in no event to be completed in not less than 12 
months from the date hereof. During said construction, the City, at any time, can 
issue a written notice to the undersigned that it is in violation of the agreed upon 
design and specifications heretofore approved by the City. The undersigned will 



 

                    

have thirty (30) days from receipt of written notice of noncompliance with design 
to correct the same to the City’s satisfaction or otherwise reach a mutually 
agreeable resolution of the same.  If correction or a mutual resolution is not 
completed within said thirty (30) day response time, then in that event, the City 
may consider this grant to be in default, to cease all future payments due 
hereunder, and shall rescind the grant.  Accordingly, the undersigned hereby 
agrees to assume all responsibility for any damages or claims for damages as a 
result of any injuries or claims for injuries for said building restoration and, 
further, agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Mattoon free and harmless in 
association with any damages or claims for damages by the undersigned, or other 
third parties. 

 
B. It is agreed and understood that the grant shall be for the purpose of 
purchasing and installing 22 exterior windows, electrical wiring upgrades and the 
relocation of 3 Ameren/Cips natural gas meters at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway 
Avenue, Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 

 
 
C. It is agreed and understood that there is dollar limit flexibility between the 
elements of construction cost as more fully set forth hereinabove. Said grant 
proceeds shall be based upon the actual construction cost of work, but not to 
exceed Twenty Nine Thousand, Four Hundred and Fifty Five Dollars 
($29,455.00) as determined by the City’s authorized agent.  
 
D. Said grant is to be used solely for the following described real estate, 
commonly known as 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway Avenue, Mattoon, Illinois, 
but more specifically described as: 
Block One Hundred Nineteen (119) Lot Eight (8) in the Assessors Subdivision of 
the Original Town, now City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
Block One Hundred Nineteen (119) Lot Ten (10) in the Assessors Subdivision of 
the Original Town, now City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
Block One Hundred Nineteen (119) Lot Twelve (12) in the Assessors Subdivision 
of the Original Town, now City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 

 
E. Grantee shall secure the necessary building permits from Grantor, and 
shall indemnify and hold the Grantor harmless from any and all claims, damages, 
and injuries associated with or resulting from the rehabilitation and improvement 
of said real estate. 
 
F. It is agreed and understood that improvement of said real estate shall also 
include making restorations to the building for the purchase and installation of 22 
exterior windows, electrical wiring upgrades and the relocation of 3 Ameren/Cips 
natural gas meters at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway Avenue. Grantee warrants 
that the total value of the improvements at 1400 and 1402-1404 Broadway 
Avenue shall not be less than Twenty Nine Thousand, Four Hundred and Fifty 
Five Dollars ($29,455.00), including the grant authorized by this agreement.   



 

                    

 
2.   Grantor shall disburse the grant funds to Grantee in annual partial payments. 
These partial payments shall begin on September 1, in the year following the completion 
of all the restoration/renovation work and said annual payments shall continue to be paid 
on each September 1st thereafter for a period of ten years. The amount of each partial 
payment shall be Two Thousand, Nine Hundred and Forty-five Dollars and Fifty Cents 
(2,945.50) or 10% of the actual construction cost for the work authorized within the 
scope of this grant, whichever is less, as certified by the City’s authorized agent. The 
payments shall only be made if this grant is valid and in full force at the time the payment 
is to be made. 
 
3. This Grant is expressly contingent upon the execution of this grant agreement by 
Grantee and Grantor and upon presentation to Grantor of vouchers or other sufficient 
proof of work authorized and approved and within the scope of this grant in amounts 
which exceed the grant money provided herein.  
 
4. Grantee does hereby guarantee and covenant that it will apply the grant money 
only for the uses intended as set forth herein pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth herein. 
 
5. Grantor’s grant as made herein is made contingent upon Grantee performing all of 
the covenants and conditions by it to be performed.   
 
6. This is an outright grant and is not repayable to Grantor unless Grantee fails to 
perform one or more of the covenants and conditions herein by it to be performed, and in 
that event, Grantor shall send written notice of said breach to Grantee and afford it an 
opportunity to correct the same within 30 days. Should Grantee fail to correct the breach 
within 30 days of said written notice, then in that event, Grantor shall rescind the grant. 
and shall be entitled to recover from Grantee any and all grant moneys heretofore 
delivered to Grantee, which grant money Grantee agrees to repay unto Grantor. 
 
7. This grant made herein is pursuant to a Council Decision Request approved by the 
City Council of the City of Mattoon meeting in regular session on July 3rd, 2007 and a 
Special Ordinance duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mattoon meeting in 
regular session on August 7th, 2007. 
 
8. Grantee covenants unto Grantor that it intends to retain ownership of the building 
for the operation of a commercial business or businesses, and that it is not its intention to 
use the grant money herein to remodel the building and then resell the same to a third 
party. To secure this covenant, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the building is sold to a 
third party, then there shall be a rebate of the grant based upon the following schedule: if 
sold within one year of the date of the grant, there shall be a 75% rebate of the grant 
amount already paid; if sold after one year from the date of this grant but within two 
years of the date of this grant, then there shall be a 50% rebate of the grant amount 
already paid; and if sold after two years from the date of this grant but within three years 
of the date of this grant, then there shall be a 25% rebate of the grant amount already 
paid. Further, Grantor and Grantee agree that if the business operation ceases for a period 
in excess of thirty days, and within five years from the date of this grant, then Grantor’s 



 

                    

obligation to make continuing payments from the grant shall cease immediately and this 
agreement shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, and there shall be a 
rebate of the grant money heretofore paid based upon the timeline and percent established 
herein for the sale of the business, being 75% within one year of the date of this grant, 
50% after one year but within two years from the date of this grant, and 25% after two 
years but within three years of the date of this grant.  
 
9.    Grantor reserves to itself the right to seek reimbursement for the amount 
expended under this grant from revenues of the Mattoon Mid-town Tax Increment 
Financing District.  
  
Executed at Mattoon, Illinois, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
GRANTEE      CITY OF MATTOON, GRANTOR 
 
__________________________  ____________________________________ 
CORY SANDERS dba:    Charles E. White, Mayor 
CORY SANDERS & COMPANY  
REAL ESTATE 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk 
 



 

                    

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  8/7/07 CDR NO:  2007-781       
 
SUBJECT:   Approving an emergency contract with Howell Asphalt to overlay streets in 

Midtown Mattoon with asphalt 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE: 8/3/07  
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director  
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable):  
        

EXPENDITURE   AMOUNT   CONTINGENCY FUNDING 
ESTIMATE: $250,000 BUDGETED: $0     REQUIRED: $250,000      

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 

 
“I move to approve an emergency contract with Howell Asphalt in an amount not to 

exceed $250,000 for the paving of the streets in Midtown Mattoon.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Approving this CDR will allow the city to enter into a “Cost Plus” contract not to exceed 
$250,000 with Howell Asphalt for the asphalt paving of the midtown streets. The “Cost 
Plus” unit prices will be calculated according to the table below. 

Item Rate

Labor State prevailing wage rate plus 35%

Material 2007 City bid price

Equipment (Howell Owned) IDOT equipment rate

Equipment (Rented) IDOT equipment rate plus 5%  
 
The money to pay for this contract will come from the Capital Improvement Fund. It will 
require a re-appropriation of funds from three other projects; $200,000 from this year’s 
sidewalk replacement plan, $30,000 from the oil and chipping portion of the commercial 
alley project, and $20,000 for the oil and chipping of the roads in the cemetery. 

Capital Fund Budget Items Line Item

Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget
 Streets

   Sidewalks 200,000 0

   Alley Gringing & Resurfacing 75,000 45,000

   Midtown Asphalt Project 0 250,000

 Streets 130-5321-730 275,000 295,000

  Buildings & Grounds - Dodge Grove Cemetery

    New Section & Cremation Memorial 48,000 28,000

Dodge Grove Cemetery 130-5383-720 48,000 28,000  
 



 

                    

The streets to be overlaid are in the city’s midtown area. 
 
The driving lanes of the following streets will be overlaid: 

Broadway Avenue from 13th Street to 21st Street 
Western Avenue from 19th Street to 21st Street 
14th Street from Marshall Avenue to Richmond Avenue 
15th Street from Wabash Avenue to Richmond Avenue 
16th Street from Wabash Avenue to Richmond Avenue 
17th Street from Wabash Avenue to Richmond Avenue 
21st Street from Charleston Avenue to Richmond Avenue 

 




